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Group Structure

eI A PR A ]
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.

Hong Kong (Holding) Limited

91.3%

Chongqing Longhu Development Co., Ltd.

Property Development Property Investment
oo 2 W) eI H
Subsidiaries JCE* Projects
W 9 THEHT B L2l PN
Longfor Chongqing 1.3% Chongqing Bamboo 49.6% Chongqing North  91.3% Ch EEMOIVEC())CO 91.3%
Grove Paradise Walk ongqng
RIS o,
Longfor Chengdu B 40 e R VYR A= T4
TR Chengdu Century ~ 49.1% Chongqing Wese ~ 91.3% Chengdu 93.48%
Longfo; Beijing 89.9% el Wi Paradise Walk Three Thousand Mall
- L ot T B 2 B
g SRl i ¢
. 91.3% NAEHEN 48.4% Chongging 91.3%  Beijing Summer Palace 89-93%
Longfor Shanghai Dalian Longhe o Crystal Palace 1t Sgtar‘;y Street
5
TR 9150 TR
ongtor Atan Chongqing Fairy Castle 91.3%
Paradise Walk
SR ) . 91.3%
Longfor Wuxi T REU AR
e 30 850 Chongqing University 95.56%
Longfor Shenyang 98.5% City Fashion Hall
AR 05.20 L HISRE]
2% s
Longfor Qingdao C}P}:L{Z{?;Zgwl;llte 91.3%
Longfriﬂﬁ?fgzhou 96.8% AR
Chongqing Chunsen  91.3%
W BEI 100% Starry Street
Longfor Hangzhou
SR HE
Longfor Yantai oL.3%
ERIHE W
Longfor Yunnan o1.3%
YW 100%

Longfor Ningbo
LT I

Longfor Xiamen

W)
Longfor Dalian

SR 91.3%

Longfor Quanzhou

91.3%

* JCE BIERTERIES

AR BLRE ) } 100% * JCE - Jointly Controlled Entity
Longfor Shaoxing
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- Corporate Information

Madam WU Yajun

M:r. SHAO Mingxiao

Mr. ZHOU Dekang

Mzr. QIN Lihong

Mr. FENG Jinyi

Mr. WEI Huaning

Mr. FANG Shengtao (Resigned on
16 May 2012)

M. Frederick Peter CHURCHOUSE
Mr. CHAN Chi On, Derek

Mr. XIANG Bing

M:r. ZENG Ming

Mr. CHAN Chi On, Derek (Chairman)
Mr. Frederick Peter CHURCHOUSE
Mr. XIANG Bing

Mr. ZENG Ming (Chairman)
Madam WU Yajun

Mr. XIANG Bing

Mr. CHAN Chi On, Derek

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor

One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Registered Office

Principal Place of
Business and Address
ofHeadquarters in the PRC

Principal Place of Business
in Hong Kong
Website Address

Company Secretary

Authorized Representatives

Stock Code:

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman
KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

7/F, Tower 2, FuSheng Building
No. 4 Huixin East Street
Chaoyang District

Beijing PRC

15/F, 1 Duddell Street,
Central, Hong Kong

www.longfor.com

Mr. Lo Chi Lik, Peter

Madam Wu Yajun
M. Qin Lihong
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Schedule of Principal Properties

LS DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES

B Lk B
jiEpand] LTI & TR EmH BEmH MR EuR
KR4 ViR HEELEE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(Fk) (Fik) (Fk)
(Sqm) (Sqm)
FRiiE B E B B A 8% 31122016 9L30% 121,772 84,694 185621 RSIO/CP
Chunsen Land Chenjiaguan, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC
gl TREE LB 954 3112015 91.30% 19986 62815 60848 NSCP

Peace Hill County Lijiazhen, Beibu New District, Chongging PRC

R HEEETIFEE SN 81% 311202014 95.56% 64,866 549,530 - RISICP
Toschna Villa University City, Shapingba District, Chongging PRC

Y REET LK 67% 311122016 9579 111,149 23445 3119 RSICP
Bamboo Grove Dazhuzhen, Beibu New District, Chongging PRC

£ TREETRVELT 5% 311122016 9130% 4333 270,386 458,382 RISICP
Crystal Magic Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging PRC

K THEBTTRELEA 2% 3111202016 95.56% 7925 31171 820426 RISICP
University Town Univessity City, Shepingba District, Chongging PRC

B PRERTILLEANE 5% 311122015 93481 107,041 376,372 182834 RSICP
Mopan Shan Dashiba, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC

Bifei HEEETARERES 16% 30162017 100.00% - 339953 497014 RASICP
Beibei New Town Xiemazhen, Beibei District, Chongging PRC

il TREEIRERER 0% 31120017 83.08% - - 2808273 RSICP
Lijia Lijiazhen, Beibei District, Chongging PRC

ERA Chongging Subtotal 508,371 2315968 3337,171

LT HERNERATDET AR 80% 31120015 91.30% 133,880 294331 - RISICP

Chengdu Flamenco Spain ~ Shuangbaicun & Yilicun, Pitongzhen, Pi County,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

JLEw B S AR A KB 55% 31122016 913% 560 216576 23305 RISICP
Century Peak View No.! Tianfu Road Central, Gaoxin District, Chengdu,
Sichuan Province PRC
DA SR R T LS A 63% 31122017 9.48% 10211 40,682 30981 RISICP
Jade Town Datiancun, Qingchengshanzhen, Dujiangyan, Chengdu,
Sichuan Province PRC
i 1] LR EERAR 63% 311122014 0.15% 90 31583 - RsicP
Wkuai Shi Wukuaishizhen, Jinniu District, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province PRC
R: fEE NENGES 0: MAE CP: {FHiY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

JZ3 B
THY L il BEmH AR EuR
HHAR B HEELEE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
5 R 7
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
xR SRR TR RS 0% 3112016 9L43% - 59548 28253 Rsicp
Mou Ma Heaven Baiyuncun, Huayuanzhen, Xinjin County,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

Gilve SR R AR 0% 31122016 9L30% - 821,088 31055 Rsicp
Time Paradise Walk Xibuyuanqu, Gaoxin District, Chengdu,
Sichuan Province PRC
R SR 5% 3105 94.17% - 131,788 362339 Rsicp
Jingyang Project Wuhou District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC
bt Chengdu Subtora 192,640 2059848 1,135,113
¥ SRSl 30% 3122014 91.30% - 270625 - RsicP
Changying ChangyingXi‘ang, Chaoyang District, Beijing PRC
FRLEERERMA  FRITREE R 10% 3122014 91.30% - 157,87 52,34 RsicP
Niulan Shan Niulanshanzhen, Shunyi District, Beijing PRC
GE3: HEARTERERYIREAFiE 0% 31208 9L30% - - 161,806 hsicp
Hou Sha Yu Baixinzhuang, Houshayuzhen, Shunyi District,
Beijing PRC
JBEH R RERH % 3062015 91.30% - 350567 - Rsicp
Daxing Huangeun, Daxing District, Beijing PRC
#il EL AT ARERTE 0% 3112015 91.30% - - 96,858 RISICP
Sunhe Sunhe, Chaoyang District, Beijing PRC
ot Beijing Subtotal - 718229 311,008
REGER SEURERAT A VERRAH o1 & % 311 91.30% - 556978 6439.33 hsicp
Yangma Island No.601 Binhai Road East, Mouping District,
Yantai, Shandong Province, PRC
KERD I R EER TR FERR 0% 31122018 100.00% - - 696,147 e
Yangma Island BPlot ~ Binhai Road East, Mouping District, Yantai,
Shandong Province, PRC
FEa it Yantai Subtotal . 556978 1135482
R % S W o WAE CP: {FHY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]




Schedule of Principal Properties

ARy B
jiGEanik HH iR R R HHREmR
HRAR iER N HBELEE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(FAk) (Fik) (Fik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
HESER R LA BASS AR 65% 3122013 9.56% - 146,109 - RS(CP
Bai Yin Lu Project Baiyin Road & Hezuo Road, Jiading District,
Shanghai PRC
INTRBER S LR AT KA RIS 8 75% 3062013 91.30% 31055 9,738 - RISICP
Long Xing Lu Renming Road North & Meijizbang Road,
Songjiang Uninversity City, Songjiang District,
Shanghai PRC
HECANHERR  PELETHGERRE 3% 31122016 93.48% - 153432 - RS0CP
Hong Qiao CBD Project ~ Shenchang Road, Minghang District, Shanghai PRC
Lt Shanghai Subrotal 31,25 339,019 -
EHCH SRR & T AR AT B 30% 30112013 9130% - 84419 - RISICP
Xian Fairy Castle 11 Qujiang Road, Qujiang New District, Xi'an,
Shanxi Province PRC
FRA SO TG T T G 16% 31122018 9130% - 399,565 1,158,259 RISICP
Xi'an Chianti Chanhe Road West, Xi‘an, Shanxi Province PRC
liR% OB TG % T A S T 0% 311202015 9130% - - 583531 RISICP
Chang'an Wonder Furong Road West, Qujiang New District, Xi'an,
Shanxi Province PRC
KEAR HRRAEBLTESEE S 03 587 31072013 9417% - 1287%9 - RISICP
Daxing Project No.20 Xinghuo Road, Lianhu District, Xi'an,
Shansi Province PRC
KRB SR T LT AR A 2R BT 10% 31122004 9417% - 178,146 - RISICP
Crystal Town Middle Section of Yongquan Road West,
Daxin New District, Xi'an, Shanxi Province PRC
JHEER B S I T AR 1% 31122014 9130% - 155,191 - RISICP
Waft Yard Weiyang District, Xi'an, Shanxi Province PRC
[ Xian Subtotl - 946,059 121679
K2 HRILE S BT AMARES 0% 31112015 9130% 6,091 60,721 21139 RISICP
Taike Yuan Il Zhenze Road, Taikeyuan, Wauxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC
HUERRFLE BT RS BSE 30% 3122015 91.30% - 9,539 m3 RiSiCP
Xihu Road Xihu Road Central, Xishan District, Wi,
Jiangsu Province, PRC
R EE N E o MAZE CP: fFHily
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

JZ3 B
THY L il BEmH AR EuR
B4R iR HEELEE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(Fk) (Fk) (Fik)
(Sqm) (Sqm)
Bl e S SRS TS 2% 31122014 91.30% - 101,234 97426 RISICP
Quite tale Xilu Road, Yangshanzhen, Huishan District,

Wi, Jiangsu Province, PRC

H RIS ESHIE 0% 3112015 91.30% - - 159,886 RISICP
Xidong Xishan District, Wi, Jiangsu Province, PRC

HRIER HRITHS BHTER 0% 31122016 91.30% - - 308676 RISICP
Dongjiu Yising, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Bt Wasi Subtoel 6091 258494 1,006,701

B KSR =35 68% 31120014 93.48% 1,106 113,157 - RISICP
Qinglong Project Sanxin Road & Yongning Road, Tianning

B RERKEH =8 55% 3112015 96.83% 54 364,037 - RISICP

Qinglong Project 11 Sanxin Road & Yongning Road, Tianning

R 0ER EHTHRE FHARA 1208 630 3 9850% - 274045 - Rsicp
Dongjing 120 Project Dongjing 120 Road, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province PRC
REI0ER - B M 10088 3% 31122015 100,00 - 94632 96,72 RsiCP
Dongjing 120 Project I Dongjing 120 Road, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province PRC
A PETEE F AR 36 31122016 97.38% - 31,703 487,694 RsicP
Hongzhuang Project Qinye Road, Zhonglou District, Changzhou,

Jiangsu Province PRC
HAG Changzhou Subtotal 1630 1,208,574 584,266
AR SRR EERS 85% 31120014 9849% 17833 618 - ncp
Huishan Project Shiyuan Street, Shenbei New District,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province PRC
AR = RS R ER R % 32018 98.49% - 167,31 460570 RsiCP
Huishan Project I Shiyuan Street, Shenbei New District,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province PRC
gl EEE A BRI R 465 13% 31122015 9.15% 55,180 184,267 1458739 RSCP
Daoyi Project No46 Pufeng Road, Shenbei New Distric,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province PRC
R 8 TREEAERTILTE R 9 % 0% 31019 96.15% - - 09,74 wsicp
Daoyi Project 11 NoA49 Pufeng Road, Shenbei New District,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province PRC

R fEE NENE S 0 MAE CP: {FHIG
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

KA BRLIE i
ARLHY L HiEREmH R MR Euk
HHAR iR HEELEE Bxpected  Group'sIncerest  Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(Fk) (Fk) (Fk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
AEH TREEELHE 15% 311202015 91.30% - 124,679 27333 RISICP
Ceramics City Dadong District, Shengyang, Liaoning Province PRC
il PEEEERRTATE 0% RPN 9L30% - - 20447 wsicp
Tiexi Tiexi District, Shengyang, Liaoning Province PRC
BN Shenyang Subtotl 73013 515,755 2,746,663
YRR HRIEAER AR STH 105 55% 30112015 95.20% 2,079 363,122 123,259 RISICP
Baisha Project No.10 Shuangyuan Road, Chengyang District, Qingdao,
Shandong Province PRC
AYRH P HRIEH B R 8% 30512015 10000% - 28421 97,83 Rsicp
Baisha Project F Plot Shuangyuan Road, Chengyang District, Qingdao,
Shandong Province PRC
e ELREAETR A8 0% 30112014 10000% - 219433 - wsicp
Shankeda Project Kedayihaoxian, Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC
foft R RE AT E 8% 31120014 9L30% - 106,181 B6442 RSCP
Zhongeun Zhongeun, Chengyang District, Qingdao,
Shandong Province PRC
il HRLREESTABEL T 0% 311205 9130% - - 33,200 o)
Anlecun Xiazhuang Streer, Chengyang District,

Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC

FEGt Qingdao Subtotal 20719 897,157 790,084
TWEH HRMIT B RATERRRE L 3% 31120017 100.00% 12579 381907 142162 RISICP
Xiasha Project Shangsha Road North, Jingjikafaqu,

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province PRC

AR HHTERAT ARSI S0 31204 91.30% - 3820 - K3
Chaoshan Project Zhanghecun, Tanggizhen, Yuhang District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province PRC
bt B8 AR 10% 31015 91.30% - 64,212 41411 Rsicp
Hangzhou Kegiao Kegiao Zhen Shaoxin, Zhejiang Province PRC
UL I A MR 0% 3112015 95.65% - - 303,47 NSCP
o't Project Binjiang, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province PRC
MG Hangzhou Subtotal 12579 774339 886,880
R fEE NENES 0 MNE CP: {FHIG
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

4 #t Annual Report 2012




Schedule of Principal Properties

JZ3 L
THY L il BEmH AR EuR
HHAR B HEELEE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
5 R 7
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
fi SRS A TR AR 0% 31122016 91.30% - - 819,181 Rsicp
fairy Lake Zhangyingeun, Lujuzhen, Jiangchuan County,

Yuxi, Yunnan Province PRC

ZHNT Yunnan Subtotal - - 819,181
2 hREEE K BTN 0% 311122018 4840% - - 669,724 RISICP
Longhe II Xiaonancun, Shuishiying Street, Dalian,

Lisoning Province PRC
TR R RS KEHTEE 0% 31122015 93.48% - - 227,702 RISICP
East port CBD Donggang District, Dalian, Lizoning Province PRC
it Dalian Subtotal - - 897426
A BRI LA 10% 3111202015 9130% - 101,653 276,154 RSICP
Chianti Longshan Zhen, Cixi, Zhejiang Province, PRC
11 LA RIN RO R Rk SR 20% 3111202014 100.00% - 397,060 261577 RISICP

Rose & Gingko Coast No.68 Chunxiaozhongqi Road, Beilun District,
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province PRC

it Ningbo Subtotal - 488713 531,730
ExiEn TRREREN T EEEEDS 5% 311202015 93.36% - 388,918 299 RISICP
Jimei Guankou Guankou Zhen, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province
PRC
#l MERE AR 3% 31122017 91.30% - 264,169 1,195,699 RISICP
Jinjiang Chidian, jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province PRC
BN Xiamen Subtotal - 653,083 1418698
AFTOTAL 827,658 11,792,476 2502329

R: HE EE 0: HAE CP: {FHE

Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Schedule of Principal Properties

BRLIE i
L HiEREmH BEmH AR Euk
BHAR RN HEELEE X Group’s Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date inthe Project  Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(FIK) (FIK) (FIK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BRI FEEEHHLLELRR 63 83 100% CRE 9130% 146262 - - $
North Paradise Walk No.6 & No.8 Beichengtianjie, Jiangbei District, completed
Chongging PRC
BRI REET R BRLFER 100% R 9130% 043 - - $
Fairy Castle Yusongyizhilu, Longshan Street, Yubei District, completed
Chongging PRC
ERREH TR LHE AR 1025 100% El% 9130% 1554 - - S
Crystal Palace No.162 Xinnan Road, Renhezhen, completed
Beibuxinqu, Chongging PRC
il ST AR B R PRI 495 100% ERE 9L30% 11654 - - s
West Paradise Walk No.48 Zhujiang Road, Yangjiaping, Jiulongpo District, completed
Chongging PRC
MOCO PR AR AR 1665 100% Rk 91.30% 2,104 - - $
MOCO Center No.168 Xinnan Road, Renhezhen, Beibuxing, completed
Chongging PRC
v FREE T VE 40 3112016 9130% 804 163,597 97,696 )
Fashion Paradise Walk ~ Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging PRC
RER HTEHFREER 100% S 9.56% 716 - - )
University Town Uninversity City, Shapingba District, Chongging PRC completed
Faiik RERTILLEARHE 10% ER% 9130% 54618 - - s
Chunsen Land Chenjiaguan, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC completed
BN SHTETLLE DR 0% 311016 94861 - - 137,110 s
Hometown Phase 11 Dashiba, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC
=Tk SR AT AR 100% ERE 948 304 - - )
Three Thousand Castles  Section 2,Erhuan Road East Chengdu, Sichuan Province completed
PRC
Lt SRR A A R 4oge 313 90.75% - 0345 - $
North Paradise Walk Wukuaishi, Jinniu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province
PRC
R: fFE NEE S 0 WA= CP: (#HLE
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

JZ3 B
THY L il BEmH AR EuR
B4R iR HEELEE Bxpected  Group'sIncerest  Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(Fk) (Fk) (Fik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
UK R &R RN EE 7 3112016 9L30% - - 450,99 $
Time Paradise Walk Xibuyuanqu, Gaoxin District, Chengdu,
Sichuan Province PRC
EfERE PR REN 1007 ERE 8995% 6320 - - )
Sumnmer Palace Xiyuan, Haidian District, Beijing PRC completed
Paradise Walk
gk PR HNE RSN 100% ERE 9130% 344 - - $
Blossom Chianti Banbidiancun, Liyuanzhen, Tongzhou District, completed
Beijing PRC
RetiRf WAL ARE 100% BT 91.30% - 280767 - $
Changying Paradise Walk ~ Changyingxiang, Chaoyang District, Beijing PRC completed
w3 SRR AR b 0% 31122015 91.30% - - 20825 $
Time Paradise Walk Huangcun, Daxing District, Beijing PRC
B WA LT ERRR 100% BT PB4 19203 - - $
Sunshine City Shengxin Road, Jiading District, Shanghai PRC completed
e s ETR R R 0% 31122016 PB48% - - 284905 $
Honggiao Paradise Walk ~ Shenchang Road, Minghang District, Shanghai PRC
HEAE RN AL 0% 5% 313 9417% - 54,18 - $
Daxing Paradise Walk ~ No.20 Xinghuo Road, Lianhu District, Xian,
Shansi Province PRC
Fike BN B S KR S R0 0% 31120018 9L30% - - 109852 S
Blue lake Jinghui Road East, Kejiyuan, Taihu, Wusi,
Jiangsu Province PRC
ERE SEILE SRR B 5 0% 32018 91.30% - - 17,714 §
Wusi Splendor Xihu Road Central, Xishan District, Wi,
Jiangsu Province PRC
F& 10 (1) BB HMTRA 1205% 0% 311005 100.00% - - 23,100 y
Dongjing 120 Project I Dongjing 120 Road, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province PRC
LN SR £ T B 0% 31122016 97.38% - - 154,490 $
Longcheng Paradise Walk  Qinye Road, Zhonglou District, Changzhou,
Jiangsu Province PRC
R BT NENE S 0: MAE CP: FEG
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

KEMR BRLIE Bt
fiEEan] L HiEREmH R MR Euk
HHAR iR BHELRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
WK EER (K
(Sqm) (Sqm)
) RLREE SRR 03 0 311015 95.20% - - B30 $
Baisha Mall No.10 Shuangyuan Road, Chengyang District,
Qingdao, Shandong Province, PRC
% SR E SRR 0% RUvAY 10000% - - 183,360 )
Xiasha Mall Shangsha Road North, Jingjikafaqu,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC
& 735,576 0 1982898 $
Total
R: fFE NEHE S 0 WA= CP: {FHLE
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Chairman’s Statement
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I am pleased to present to the shareholders the business review and outlook of
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), for the year ended December 31, 2012.

RESULTS

In 2012, the Group's contracted sales achieved RMB40.13 billion, representing
a4.9% growth from 2011. The Group recognized revenue of RMB27.89 billion,
representing an increase of 15.8%. Excluding minority interest and revaluation
gains, core profit attributable to shareholders was RMBS5 .4 billion, representing
an increase of 20.0%. Core net profit margin attributable to shareholders rose to
19.4% from 18.7% over last year.

REVIEW OF 2012

In 2012, the PRC real estate industry stepped out of the trough, with both
average selling price and transaction volume stabilized starting from the
second quarter. First-tier and core second-tier cities saw a general increase in
sales towards the end of the year. The Group surpassed the annual sales target
of RMB39 billion and managed to achieve a stable growth. On the backdrop
of various austerity measures such as the home purchase restrictions and the
mortgage restrictions, the Group proactively readjusted its product mix and
geographic focus, launched more products targeting first-time homebuyers and
first-time home upgraders. At the same time, the Group promptly reduced the
proportion of large-size units and outer-suburbs housing products accordingly.
As a result, the Group achieved a year-on-year growth of 27.2% in terms of
contracted sales area as compared to 2011. Although we served a ever broader
customer base, according to a third party survey, the Group’s customer
loyalty stood at 76% in 2012, the same level as in 2011, and property service
satisfaction was as high as 92%. This demonstrated that our brands continued
to be widely recognized by customers despite market volatility and product
mix adjustment. The Group continued to win industry awards in both product
design and construction quality. Our Beijing Summer Palace Splendor project
was awarded the Best International Architectural Design from US Nationals.
Our Chengdu Thousand Castles and Chongqing Hometown projects were
awarded the “Golden Award for Outstanding Residential Project” of the 2012
Zhan Tianyou Civil Engineering Award.
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Chairman’s Statement

With ample cash on hand and a relatively low net gearing ratio at the start of
the year, the Group leveraged opportunities arising from a changing industry
landscape to further consolidate its market share in existing regional markets,
and to expand and diversify its geographic and business coverage, at relatively
low costs to fuel a sustainable growth. In the year, the Group acquired 17 new
parcels of land with a combined gross floor area of more than 8.91 million
square meters, and the average premium paid relative to the auction reserve
price was only 8.72%. We focused on replenishing landbank in the core districts
of major cities such as Beijing, Hangzhou, Xi'an, Chengdu and Shenyang, while
adding three cities with robust local economy and healthy property market

dynamics, namely Xiamen, Quanzhou and Shaoxing.

While proactively replenishing our land bank, the Group enjoyed strong
supports from prompt collection of sales proceeds as well as external financing.
Thanks to the sound customer management and bank mortgage coordination,
the cash collection rate of the Group reached 91% for the year. With respect
of financing, during the year, the Group secured a HKD2.43 billion overseas
syndicated loan, issued USD400 million senior notes denominated in the US
dollar with a term of seven years and completed the first share placement in the
amount of HKD3.09 billion since IPO. Our onshore loans also remained stable

with more favorable interest rate conditions.

In terms of our commercial property segment, three new commercial projects
successfully commenced operation as scheduled. Times Paradise Walk Phase
I project is located in the heart of Daping District in Chongqing, with a
gross floor area in operation of about 160,000 square meters, and achieved an
occupancy rate of over 90% upon commencement of operation. It attracted
over 500,000 customer flow during the first three days of the commencement
of operation, set a new record in terms of the customer flow during the initial
operation stage in Southwest China and laid a solid foundation for subsequent

commercial development and residential sales.

In mid 2011, together with my resignation as the Group’s CEO, the Group
conducted an extensive adjustment of the core management on the headquarters
level as well as the regional leadership. Several experienced regional general
managers were promoted as executive directors of the Group, while a number
of highly qualified deputy regional general managers with great potentials were
promoted to become regional general managers. 2012 was the first full year that
the new management team took full responsibility. While the new management
team was adapting themselves in the new roles, they demonstrated strong

entrepreneurship and competency, and are able to closely collaborate with
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each other. Undoubtedly, operating efficiency and quality of the management
and leadership may be adversely affected during the initial adapting and
transitional period, which in turn adding short-term pressure on the Group's
profit margin and inventory level. However, I am pleased that the new CEO and
the management team have been able to implement and execute the strategies
laid out previously, and I firmly believe that the management transition from
founder to professional management team is the only way for the development
of every single modern enterprise. The current adaptation will lay a solid

foundation for the long-term healthy growth of the Group.

As a corporate citizen, while growing its business, the Group has always been
committed to fulfilling its social responsibilities. We have provided Longfor’s
New Year Gifts for four consecutive years to support the poor, and donated
tens of millions of RMB for the renovation of dilapidated apartments for the
handicapped and the construction of care centers for “left-behind children”. We
have invested RMB 30 million in total to participate in the “Greening Yangtze
River” project for three consecutive years since 2010, to actively contribute to

environmental protection and improvement as a responsible corporate citizen.

OUTLOOK FOR 2013

In 2013, the economy of China will usher in a new round of development
opportunities. With the deepening of urbanization, differentiation and
consolidation will be more apparent in the real estate industry. We believe the
agglomeration of population in megacities and economically developed core
cities will accelerate. Accordingly, we expect to see under-supply and inventory
pressure to co-exist in different markets. Therefore, targeted and prudent

regional focus will be particularly important.

In 2013, the Group will continue to proactively adjust its geographical and
product mix. The Company has acquired a land parcel in Wangcheng, Changsha
at the beginning of the year and strategically entered into the Central China
market. As to product mix, the Group will continue to focus on the proportion
of products targeting first-time homebuyers and first-time upgraders.
Meanwhile, the Group will optimize middle and high end product lines in order
to improve sale through rate and achieve stable profit margins. With an ample
land reserve replenished in 2012, the Group has great flexibilities in terms of
product supply. The management team, which has adapted itself for one full
year and continues to improve, is expected to achieve better performance steadily

in terms of quality decisions and execution efficiency.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group will continue to grow its commercial property segment steadily as a
strategically important component to the Group's overall operation. The three
major commercial brands, namely, Paradise Walk, Starry Street and MOCO,
will be launched in more cities across the country. This year, Chengdu North
Paradise Walk will commence operation, and Beijing Changying Paradise Walk
and Hangzhou Jinsha Paradise Walk have also entered into the pre-leasing stage

in full scale.

Since the end of the third quarter of 2012, with a rebound in both transaction
volume and average selling price, and a new round of upsurge in financing
by real estate enterprises, land markets in various regions saw increasingly
intensified competition and, as a result, new transactions with high premiums
relative to the auction reserve price. The Group will maintain its strict
investment discipline and stay vigilant under a heated environment. It will focus
on key land parcels in more mainstream cities and make selective acquisitions
when opportunities arise. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to prudently

manage its cash and balance sheet position to ensure financial safety.

Looking forward, while key elements supporting the long-term growth of the
real estate industry are expected to remain unchanged, various issues leading
to short-term market volatility and fluctuation will continue to emerge. We
believe pure investment and speculation demand has been effectively curbed
in China’s real estate market with the several round of austerity measures in
the past, and customers are becoming more sophisticated. The industry focus
will gradually shift from pursuing rapid growth and expansion to establishing
brand name, efficient operations and differentiation in market positions. The
Group will, supported by its financial soundness, continue to strengthen its
market leading position in high-value cities and regions, focus on the innovative
research and development of suitable products, retain and optimize our team

and culture, to achieve the long-term and steady growth.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun

Chairman
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In 2012, revenue from property development business of the Group was
RMB26.95 billion, representing an increase of 15.3% over last year. The Group
delivered 2,746,461 square meters of property in GFA terms, of which 234,430
square meters were contributed from jointly controlled entities. Gross profit
margin of overall property development business decreased slightly to 39.7% in
2012 as compared with that of last year. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the concentrated delivery of projects with high gross profit margin such as
Summer Palace Splendor during last year. Recognized average selling price was
RMB10,727 per square meter in 2012.

PN
Chongqing West Paradise Walk
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Table 1: Breakdown of property development revenue by projects of the Group in 2012
After deducting sales tax

*

i CES A ST B
City Revenue Total GFA
e e e e
2012 2011 2012 2011
ANRWET T ANRWFTTT FIik FIk
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 Sqm Sqm
A AR iR ¢ Jem 2,879,190 582,437 229,264 42,334
Beijing Chianti Riverside Beijing
AL b A e Jex 2,381,192 113,979
Beijing Azure Chianti Beijing
gl 2L M 2,163,631 196,413
Changzhou Sunshine City Changzhou
HEU2 B 2,160,977 327,085
Chongqing U2 Chongqing
HERE B 1,944,486 1,129,459 251,584 106,079
Chongqing Hometown Chongqing
UK B 1,931,512 135,273
Chongqing Time Paradise Walk ~ Chongqing
& oy =8 1,598,207 100,957
Qingdao Rose & Gingko Coast Qingdao
B SR L B 1,364,258 77,312
Hangzhou Rose & Gingko Villa ~ Hangzhou
[frd gt 7% 1,255,309 337,927 168,243 70,411
Xi'an Fairy Castle Xi'an
JEAR ALK B JIHS 1,234,370 1,656,169 117,947 186,405
Chengdu North Paradise Walk Chengdu
BRI HE 1,174,257 990,938 118,507 140,586
Chongqing Chunsen Land Chongqing
i b 2 i 1,042,252 66,227
Shanghai Long Xing Lu Shanghai
g Cai 949,776 1,610,813 101,035 128,995
Wuxi Rose and Ginkgo Villa Wusxi
i) b L 892,510 1,918,888 65,550 112,419
Shanghai Sunshine City Shanghai
JAR A A X JAS 889,462 270,411 144,972 37,111
Chengdu Flamenco Spain Chengdu
E%%Tﬁﬁlﬁ HE 830,463 1,204,556 72,851 106,834
Chongqing Toschna Villa Chongqing
T A 1 e 531,988 58,252
Wuxi Rose & Gingko Villa II Wuxi
JRADFAGER JAD 464,308 272,448 44,601 17,385
Chengdu Bridge County Chengdu
AL A 5 Jes 303,992 4,414,414 8,635 68,594
Beijing Summer Palace Splendor ~ Beijing
AL &% ONE Jex 298,451 5,683,712 15,858 195,089
Beijing Tangning ONE Beijing
iuia. tN it 140,996 6,170
Shanghai Rose and Ginkgo Villa ~ Shanghai
VN b5 91,505 64,874 24,822 13,939
Beijing Elegance Loft Beijing
JAR /IS 7k JHR 78,973 458,495 4,016 19,549
Chengdu Jade Town Chengdu
BRI B 73,838 730,878 19,341 118,406
Chongqing Peace Hill County Chongqing
1 10 A 1 66,507 311,939 8,024 38,833
Shenyang Chianti Shenyang
It 203,719 1,737,654 35,113 275,191
Others
At 26,946,129 23,376,012 2,512,031 1,678,160
Total
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The Group achieved contract sales of RMB40.13 billion (including RMB2.43
billion from jointly controlled entities) in 2012, representing an increase of 4.9%
as compared to last year. The Group sold 4,179,622 square meters in total GFA,
representing an increase of 27.2% over last year. Contract sales from regions
of western China, Pan Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta and southern China
were RMB18.73 billion, RMB11.00 billion, RMB10.32 billion and RMBO0.08
billion respectively, accounting for 46.7%, 27.4%, 25.7% and 0.2% of the
contract sales of the Group, respectively.

Table 2: Details of contract sales of the Group during 2012

* Before deducting sales tax
i s A ST AR
City Contract Sales Total GFA
AW T Ik
RMB mn Sqm
B8 3,419 120,166
Beijing
Jea 2,552 181,821
Beijing
LM 2,333 160,171
Hangzhou
HE 2,030 243,850
Chongqing
HE 1,690 206,215
Chongqing
iy 1,678 233,353
Chongqing
JHR 1,632 195,056
Chengdu
HE 1,627 195,227
Chongqing
Y- 1,605 137,392
Chongqing
B 1,578 228,287
Chongqing
WM 1,528 250,846
Changzhou
Py % 1,141 160,367
Xi'an
JHR 1,066 135,160
Chengdu
L 1,021 63,908
Shanghai
A 924 65,115
Yantai
M 887 97,035
Changzhou
JRHR 742 142,827
Chengdu
B 738 77,047
Chengdu
it 656 42,440
Shanghai
B 638 70,455
Hangzhou
(LS 634 86,293
Xi'an
M 630 72,560
Changzhou
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JHH i S A S A
Project City Contract Sales Total GFA
ABRHE T FIrk
RMB mn Sqm
H &L HE 621 43,245
Qingdao Original Qingdao
JRAR IS LR JAR 596 74,819
Chengdu Peace Hill County Chengdu
A S g B 592 56,000
Ningbo Rose & Gingko Coast Ningbo
ARELE RS 552 44,325
Shaoxing Hometown Shaoxing
HER AR HE 540 72,797
Chongqing Chunsen Land Chongqing
Teg i 5 526 55,589
Wuxi Rose & Gingko Villa II Wuxi
H 5w HE 517 54,516
Qingdao F Plot Qingdao
Ll I HE 473 60,610
Qingdao Rose & Gingko Coast Qingdao
JEHChFE I /3 461 33,681
Beijing Hill of Good Hope Beijing
7Y LHA A LK 437 59,802
Xi'an Waft Yard Xi'an
AR 614 418 65,583
Shenyang Fairy Castle Shenyang
AR F Jbxt 349 21,510
Beijing Chianti Riverside Beijing
(LR 3508 (¥ 340 45,190
Xi'an Fairy Castle Xi'an
atiige N0 Lt 294 12,684
Shanghai Rose and Ginkgo Villa Shanghai
75% MOCO BU 79 % 250 35,013
Xi'an MOCO Xi'an
JICHR R AR JAHS 248 27,005
Chengdu Bridge County Chengdu
He 5 Ca L it 241 36,251
Wuxi Rose and Ginkgo Villa Wuxi
M £ W v iks) 240 10,718
Yantai Yangma Island Yantai
g s & 231 49,874
Shenyang Chianti Shenyang
AR TR e Jea 207 10,597
Beijing Azure Chianti Beijing
J65 % ONE Jext 200 6,580
Beijing Tangning ONE Beijing
TR 1y 186 19,862
Shanghai Sunshine City Shanghai
TG KILER e 123 13,987
Wusxi Peace Hill County Wuxi
IR HE 107 9,908
Qingdao Peace Hill County Qingdao
Lt el 12 94 11,463
Shenyang Rose and Ginkgo Villa Shenyang
% 538 82,422
Other
40,130 4,179,622
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As of December 31, 2012, the Group had RMB54.5 billion (derived from 5.18
million square meters) sold but unrecognized contract sales which formed a
solid basis for the Group's future growth in revenue.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group maintains a prudent property investment strategy. Currently, all
investment properties of the Group are shopping malls under three major
product series, namely Paradise Walk series, which are metropolitan shopping
malls, Starry Street series, which are community shopping malls, and MOCO,
which are middle and high end household and lifestyle shopping centers. As
of the end of 2012, the Group has investment properties of 547,813 square
meters (712,908 square meters in GFA with parking space included) which
have commenced operation with an occupancy rate of 98.8%. Total rent reached
about RMB510 million. Rental income, net of sales tax, was about RMB480
million, representing an increase of 20.2% as compared with last year. The series
of Paradise Walk, Starry Street and MOCO accounted for 83.5%, 12.1% and
4.4% of the total rental respectively, and recorded increases of 16.1%, 47.7%
and 43.3% respectively.

Table 3: Breakdown of rental income of the Group during 2012

* Tk E EBLUE * After deducting sales tax
JIC S5 I
2012 2011
HeRA
fhilezs ez HR%
GIELIUN Al K HEMA A HH%  Change
S Rental % of Occupancy Rental % of Occupancy  of rental
GFA Income  Revenue Rate Income  Revenue Rate income
Tk ANRETL AEHTFIE
Sqm  RMB'000 RMB'000
Ei3l6 BR| Chongging Notth 120778 271,296 56.1% 99.5% 240,967 59.9% 99.3% 12.6%
Paradise Walk
EX Jib SR Chongqing West 76031 108,628 22.5% 99.5% 88,259 22.0% 99.1% 23.1%
Paradise Walk
R =T 4 Chengdu Three Thousand Mall 38,043 22,955 47% 96.8% 18,506 4.6% 95.4% 24.0%
BERRAE M Chongging Time 160,343 773 0.2% 94.7%
Paradise Walk Phase I
KNt Paradise Walk Subtotal 395,195 403,652 83.5% 99.3% 347,732 86.5% 99.0% 16.1%
BEGEN Chongqing Crystal Castle 17,648 16,534 3.4% 100.0% 14,892 3.7% 100.0% 11.0%
BERHENE Chongqing Starry Street 54,618 11,416 2.4% 91.8%
i Chongqing Fairy Castle 29,413 15,501 3.20 100.0% 14,743 3.7% 100.0% 5.1%
LABEMEGE Beijing Starry Street 6,319 10,633 2.2% 88.6% 6,397 1.6% 97.7% 66.2%
BEEUN Chongqing University City 15,516 793 0.2% 87.7%
ity Others 3,350 0.7% N/A 3,399 0.8% N/A -14%
BB N Starry Street Subtotal 123,514 58,227 12.1% 96.1% 39,431 9.8% 99.6% £1.7%
EEMOCO Chongging MOCO 29,104 21,494 4.4% 97.3% 15,004 3.7% 100.0% 43.3%
Kbt Nt MOCO Subtotal 29,104 21,494 4.4% 97.3% 15,004 37%  1000% 43.3%
st Total 547,813 483373 100.0% 98.8% 402,167 100.0% 99.1% 20.2%
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The Group has 4 shopping malls under construction with a total GFA of about
655,000 square meters. The total areas under construction of Paradise Walk
series and MOCO series are about 611,000 square meters and 44,000 square

meters respectively.

Table 4: Breakdown of investment properties under construction of the Group
in 2013 to 2015

LGB

Estimated
Commencement ) e S i
of Operation Planned GFA
FHk
Sqm
JCHRAC I K Chengdu North Paradise Walk 2013 223 455
X EAWR e ] ) Chongqing Time Paradise Walk Phase II Section I 2014 163,597
Jert R K Beijing Changying Paradise Walk 2015 224,165
F A /NG Paradise Walk Subtotal 611,217
5% MOCO Xi'an MOCO 2013 44,263
P R-2E MOCO Subtotal 44,263
EHIEE AR Projects under construction Total 655,480

ARG BEY B L TR AR
SR ARG EE Y AT E AR 130
{8 -

P P

TR TR AT AL B R R > 4R
R~ R Y RV AT
A7 30 0 I B B N P Rt A > — R S AT B
BH S A B TR B B B LR L AR R 0,329 &
2.17% o [N - 65 55 K 2 6 T 5 SR 1k
RAVERERE > W T B
B BB AR A R B SRR Y LB L R A
Wi 0.04% £1.72% °

Attributable to the construction and commencement of operation of new
investment properties, the valuation gain of investment properties of the Group
amounted to RMB1.31 billion in 2012.

COST CONTROL

During 2012, in accordance with the regional expansion strategy, the Group
established management teams and recruited key personnel for newly-entered
cities, such as Ningbo, Dalian, Xiamen and Changsha, the portion of general and
administrative expenses to the total contract sales increased by 0.32% to 2.17%
as compared with last year. With the sales team focusing on the effectiveness
and preciseness of the sales strategy and their further efforts committed to the
routine control of the efficiency of marketing costs, the portion of sales expenses
to the total contract sales only increased by 0.04% to 1.72% as compared with

last year.
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SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

Contribution of jointly controlled entities (JCEs) during 2012 mainly came
from the Group’s 49.6%-owned Bamboo Grove Project in Chongging and
49.1%-owned Century Peak View Project in Chengdu. These two projects
delivered 234,430 square meters. The attributable profit after tax of the Group
in JCEs was RMB250 million.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expenses comprised of PRC enterprise income tax and land
appreciation tax. The enterprise income tax and the land appreciation tax of the
Group in 2012 were RMB2.33 billion and RMB2.11 billion, respectively. The

total income tax expenses for the period amounted to RMB4.44 billion.

PROFITABILITY

The core net profit margin of the Group (the ratio of profit attributable to
equity shareholders excluding minority interest and revaluation gain to revenue)

increased from last year’s 18.7% to 19.4%.

In 2012, Return on Equity (ROE) of the Group reached 24.3% with core
Earnings Per Share (EPS) of RMB103 cents (2011: RMB87 cents), providing

stable returns for shareholders despite the volatile market.

LAND BANK REPLENISHMENT
As of December 31, 2012, the Group's total land bank was 39.52 million square

meters or 35.82 million square meters on an attributable basis. The average unit
acquisition cost of our land bank was RMB 1,964 per square meter, accounting
for 20.5% of unit price of current contract sales. In terms of regional breakdown,
geographically, land bank in Pan Bohai Rim, western China, Yangtze River
Delta and southern China accounted for 38.6%, 37.1%, 19.0% and 5.3% of the

total land bank, respectively.

In 2012, the Group has acquired new land bank with total GFA of 8.91
million square meters, 40.8%, 23.3%, 18.6% and 17.3% of which are located
in western China, southern China, Yangtze River Delta, and Pan Bohai Rim,

respectively. The average acquisition unit cost was RMB2,479 per square meter.

The locations of the projects acquired by the Group in 2012 were in proximity
to the downtown area. The Group has strategically entered into southern China
after its acquisition of the Jimei Guankou Plot in Xiamen in June and the

subsequent acquisition of the Jinjiang Plot.
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TRAHR A AR - A S T S T L 0 R After the reporting period, the Group successfully acquired the land plot in the
W MBI EREROROET A RUE New Town in Qingpu District, Shanghai, the land plot in the sports-theme park
Il RN B B S R A 48 in Wangcheng District, Changsha, the land plot in Minda, Yunnan, the land
Tk BRI - BB E L 514 plot in Changbai Island, Shenyang, and the land plot in Dinggiao, Hangzhou,
HEOFOOK G IR A B REEREEA with a planned GFA of about 90,000, 480,000, 140,000, 350,000 and 120,000
35 EOF O K 5 AU T ARG U > BB SR AT A square meters, respectively.

128 FIAK -
ALY L R I The geographic spread of the land bank of the Group was as follows:
Fh - ALEE LA 7T Table 5: Breakdown of land bank of the Group
A
R S T A
o Wl A SR FirAbi kel Aceributable FieAfs L1
Region City Total GFA % of Total GFA % of Total
TR TR
Sqm Sqm
Bish i s [ Jex 1,570,919 4.0% 1,434,249 4.0%
Pan Bohai Rim Beijing
4% 3,262,418 8.2% 3,126,122 8.7%
Shenyang
HE 1,720,491 4.3% 1,636,752 4.6%
Qingdao
ks 7,692,461 19.5% 7,083,781 19.8%
Yantai
N 897,425 2.3% 537,002 1.5%
Dalian
/it 15,143,714 38.3% 13,817,906 38.6%
Subtotal

4% MOCO % S PR
Xi'an MOCO Center Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk
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&
LTI
o Wi A ST R fifk el Ateributable Bl el
Region City Total GFA % of Total GFA % of Total
FIrk FIrk
Sqm Sqm
T = Ly 624,184 1.6% 585,661 1.6%
Yangtze River Delta Shanghai
45 1,492,361 3.8% 1,362,525 3.8%
Wuxi
gl 2,160,430 5.4% 2,107,828 5.9%
Changzhou
B 1,338,896 3.4% 1,297,149 3.6%
Hangzhou
AREL 505,683 1.3% 461,689 1.3%
Shaoxing
34 1,026,443 2.6% 993,574 2.8%
Ningbo
ANt 7,147,997 18.1% 6,808,426 19.0%
Subtotal
i Fg [ & 1 611,917 1.5% 571,286 1.6%
Southern China Xiamen
M 1,459,864 3.7% 1,332,856 3.7%
Quanzhou
ANEE 2,071,781 5.2% 1,904,142 5.3%
Subtotal
o [0 P S e Y 8,251,548 20.9% 7,140,520 19.9%
Western China Chongging
A 3,869,412 9.8% 3,371,421 9.4%
Chengdu
[iRA 2,217,073 5.6% 2,034,551 5.7%
Xi'an
A 819,181 2.1% 747,912 2.1%
Yuxi
N 15,157,214 38.4% 13,294,404 37.1%
Subtotal
Bt 39,520,706 100.0% 35,824,878 100.0%
Total
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Table 6: Breakdown of Land acquisition from_January to December in 2012

JREAY HE 25
Ml [ JHHAM W Attributable Al T s Yiapy
Region Project City Interest Site Area Total GFA
% Frok Frok
% Sqm Sqm
B o Ik Jeat R dex 91.3% 66,300 96,858
Pan Bohai Rim Sunhe Beijing
LRI (AL P B3 1] 91.3% 113,543 342,012
Ceramics City Shenyang
it 5 e 1Y 91.3% 81,000 200,447
Tiexi Shenyang
K R I H ‘ 93.5% 62,800 227,702
East Port CBD Dalian
FELER (FhRIE ) Hh 91.3% 210,500 342,623
Zhongcun Qingdao
£ 0] Gl 91.3% 271,900 333,200
Anlecun Qingdao
it 806,043 1,542,842
Subtotal
RV = A Y J52 (HiE) ARE 91.3% 167,000 505,683
Yangtze River Delta Keqiao Shaoxing
HEILHHE L 95.7% 77,300 303,247
Ao'ti Project Hangzhou
HRE L ka3 91.3% 298,266 377,807
Chianti Ningbo
HEJHH ) 91.3% 309,000 308,676
Dongjiu Wuxi
B HIAH 37 91.3% 123,900 159,886
Xidong Wuxi
/Nt 975,466 1,655,299
Subtotal
HE i UL (N IEE) J 93.4% 270,200 611,917
Southern China Jimei Guankou Xiamen
R (BLHH) EM 91.3% 461,400 1,459,864
Jinjiang Quanzhou
it 731,600 2,071,781
Subtotal
o 7 S 3 [ SRR (EHEH) B 94.2% 96,700 494,127
Western China Jinyang Project Chengdu
K TR kS 94.2% 45,206 178,146
Crystal Town Xi'an
t A E (R E) % 91.3% 36,300 155,191
Waft Yard Xi'an
Gt ES 83.1% 879,300 2,808,273
Lijia Chongqing
/Nt 1,057,506 3,635,737
Subtotal
At 3,570,615 8,905,659
Total
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Qingdao Rose & Gingko Coast
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2012, the Group's consolidated borrowings amounted to
RMB32.84 billion (December 31, 2011: RMB23.97 billion). The net debt to
equity ratio of the Group was 47.6% (December 31, 2011: 43.0%). Cash in
hand reached RMB18.61 billion (December 31, 2011: RMB14.53 billion). The
credit rating of the Group was BB+ by Standard & Poor and Ba2 by Moodys,

with the outlook maintained as “stable”.

Approximately 63.9% of the Group’s total borrowings were denominated in

RMB, while 36.1% were denominated in foreign currencies.

Approximately RMB11.76 billion of the Group’s consolidated borrowings
were quoted at fixed rates ranging from 4.21% per annum to 9.5% per annum
depending on the tenors of the loans, and the rest were quoted at floating rates.
Ratio of fixed interest debt to total debt increased from 35.5% at December
31, 2011 to 35.8%. As of December 31, 2012, the Group's average cost of
borrowing was 6.72% per annum. The average term of loan was extended from

4.0 years to 4.1 years. The ratio of unsecured debt to total debt was 49.4%.

In April, 2012, the Group completed the overseas issuance of syndicated loans
of equivalent HKD2.43 billion at HIBOR plus 400 basis points with a tenor of
3 years. In September, 2012, the Group completed its first share placement after
listing, raising an amount of RMB2.52 billion. In October, 2012, the Group
completed the overseas issuance of debentures of USD400 million at 6.875%
with a tenor of 7 years. In January, 2013, the Group completed the overseas
issuance of debentures of USD500 million at 6.75% with a tenor of 10 years,

all of which had extended the average term of the corporate borrowings while

reducing the average cost of the same.
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EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As of December 31, 2012, the Group had 9,288 full-time employees in China
and Hong Kong. 2,480 of these employees worked in the property development
division, 228 in the property investment division, and 6,580 in the property
management division. Average age of our employees is 30.2 years old. In the
property development and investment divisions, approximately 83.8% of the
employees have bachelor degrees and 13.3% of the employees have master

degrees or above.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, work
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total compensation of the
employees consisted of base salary, cash bonus and share-based rewards. Cash
bonus is a major part of senior employees’ cash compensation which is a function
of, amongst other things, the net profit, the net profit margin, results of a

balanced scorecard and operating cash inflow of the individual subsidiaries.

T EA
Chonggqing Hilltop’s Garden

ez A
Shengyang Rose & Gingko Villa
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PROSPECTS

In 2013, affected continuously by the macroeconomic control measures, the
real estate market in China will continue its steady trend in 2012. However,
industry differentiation will intensify. To achieve continued growth in the
future, the Group will continue to extend its regional coverage and increase
the weight of its investment in urban areas. Following establishing a presence
in Xiamen in 2012, the Group will officially enter Changsha, Hunan in 2013
and increased its investment in the two major areas, southern China and central
China, on the basis of the three major areas, the Pan Bohai Rim, the Yangtze
River Delta and western China. In 2013, the Group will have 52 key projects
for sale, among which 13 are brand new projects and 23 will launch new
phases and new products. The products of the Group will cater for different
groups of customers, including first-time home buyers, upgraders and business
operators, while the proportion of different product types will be adjusted in
response to market changes, thus enabling the Group to grasp the demand and

opportunities in the complicated and volatile market.

AR

Changzhou Hongzhuang Project
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The Group (including jointly controlled entities) has completed the construction
of about 3,150,000 square meters of properties in 2012. In 2013, the Group
plans to complete construction of approximately 6,020,000 square meters of
properties, most of which will be completed in the second half of the year. The

construction and sales of projects maintain smooth progress.

For investment properties, Chongqing Time Paradise Walk Phase I,
Chonggqing Chunsen Starry Street II and Chongqing University City Fashion
Hall commenced operation and received rental income during the year. The
construction of Beijing Changying Paradise Walk has been started during
the year. Chengdu North Paradise Walk and Xi'an MOCO will commence
operation, while the construction of Hangzhou Jinsha Paradise Walk, Chengdu
Time Paradise Walk Phase I, Chongging Time Paradise Walk Phase II Section
II, Chongqing Hometown Phase II, Beijing Time Paradise Walk, Shanghai
Hongqiao Paradise Walk and Changzhou Longcheng Paradise Walk are
expected to be started in 2013. These projects lay a solid foundation for the

future growth in rental income from investment properties of the Group.

Amid the ever-changing market environment, the Group will continue to
implement a prudent cost control strategy in respect of financial management
and will reasonably plan and arrange investment and operating expenses in
accordance with its cash inflow to ensure healthy and sound financial condition

and gearing ratio of the Company.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere appreciation
to all of our employees for their diligence and all of our shareholders for their

support over the past year.

o2l e
Ningbo Rose & Gingko Coast
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Wu Yajun, aged 48, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on December 21, 2007, and is the Chairman of the Board of the
Group. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Madam Wu joined the Group since its inception in 1994. She graduated
from Northwestern Polytechnical University (P 4t T 2 K ) majoring in
navigation engineering and obtained a Bachelor's degree in Engineering in
1984. Madam Wu serves as a representative of the National Peoples’ Congress
(R ARERE ), a member of the Standing Committee of the All-China
Federation of Industry & Commerce (& TR ), vice-chairperson of the
Federation of Industry & Commerce of Chongqing Municipality ( ZE BT 174
Ht) and vice-chairperson of the Real Estate Branch Chamber of the Chongqing
General Chamber of Commerce (ZZ B 17 48 7 € [ M0 2 7 ). Madam Wu has
extensive experience in property development, property investment and property

management.

Mr. Shao Mingxiao, aged 46, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Mr.
Shao joined the Group in 2006. He graduated from Renmin University of China
(PEI AN K ) and obtained a Master's degree in Economics in 1992. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Shao served as the deputy general manager of Hangyu
Economic Development Company (i F 48 %8 J& A R 22 7 ), a subsidiary of
Beijing Capital Group (U5 & #FEIZESE ), and Beijing Xinlian Xiechuang
Real Estate Development Limited (AL H W 1 ) = b s B S PR H )
respectively. Mr. Shao was also the general manager of Beijing Zhongjing
Yiyuan Real Estate Development Limited (j Lot *E’?%ﬁﬁ%i@ﬁ R R YN
H]) and the director of the real estate development division of Beijing Hualian

Group (e HERHEEE).

Mr. Zhou Dekang, aged 45, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Operating Officer of the Group.
Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 2005. He graduated from the Architecture
Institute of Chongqing Jianzhu University (FE B 7 8 R 2 1 58 T2 B B )
and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Architecture in 1989. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Zhou served as the head of the construction division of the
Chonggqing City Planning and Design Research Institute (ZZEE T4 #1551
FeBE @S ) and a director in charge of design at Chengdu Bo Rui Real Estate
Development Limited ( 5 85 5 L B EE A FR A A ).
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Mr. Qin Lihong, aged 39, was appointed as executive director of the Company
on September 8, 2009, and is the Chief Marketing Officer of the Group. Mr.
Qin joined the Group in 2008. He graduated from the School of International
Studies of Peking University (At 5 K 5% B B B 1% £ Bi) and obtained a
Master’s degree in Law in 1999 and obtained a Master’s degree in Public
Policy (MPP) from John Fitzgerald Kennedy School of Government, Harvard
University in 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qin worked in the
marketing department of Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Limited (E%J”%f{g
A B2 F), Roland Berger Strategy Consultants and Anhui Chery Automobile
Sales and Service Company (‘“ZH&IAT Fi{AHLEH & A R A)).

Mr. Feng Jinyi, aged 41, was appointed as executive director of the Company on
June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Business Development Officer of the Group. Mr.
Feng joined the Group in 2008. He graduated from Changsha Communication
College (VP 3CHAZRE ) (currently known as Changsha University of Science &
Technology (& IPH T K% )) and obtained a Bachelor's degree in Engineering
in 1994. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Feng worked for No. 3 Aviation
Engineering Design Institute Co., Ltd. (A = s LA RS SRt B A PR
NGRS Shanghai Kangqiao Bandao (Group) Co., Ltd. (LEHEEEE )
A FR/AF]) and Zhejiang Jubao Real Estate Co., Led. (Wi /TR E B A RA
).

Mr. Wei Huaning, aged 35, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
Mr. Wei joined the Group in 2006 and has served as the Head of the Strategic
Management Centre and the Operational Management Centre of the Group.
Mr. Wei graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics ( -1
I 88 K B ) majoring in accounting and obtained a Doctoral degree in 2005.
Prior to joining the Group, he has previously worked as a researcher at Center
for Strategy and Execution of Cheung Kong Research Institute in Cheung Kong

Graduate School of Business.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Frederick Peter CHURCHOUSE, aged 63, was appointed as independent

non-executive director and member of the Audit Committee of the Company
on November 1, 2009, he has been involved in Asian securities and property
investment markets for more than 30 years. Currently, he is a private investor
including having his own private family office company, Portwood Co. Ltd. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Hysan Development Company
Limited (a company listed on the SEHK) and a board member of Macquarie
Retail Asset Management Limited. He is also the publisher and author of “Asia

Hard Assets Report”.

In 2004, Mr. Churchouse set up an Asian investment fund under LIM Advisor.
He acted as a director of LIM Advisors and as Responsible Officer until the end
of 2009. Prior to this, Mr. Churchouse worked at Morgan Stanley as a managing
director and advisory director from early 1988. He acted in a variety of roles
including head of regional research, regional strategist and head of regional
property research. Mr. Churchouse gained a Bachelor of Arts degree and a

Master of Social Sciences degree form the University of Waikato in New Zeland.

Mr. CHAN Chi On, Derek, aged 49, was appointed as independent non-
executive director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and the member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on November 1, 2009. Mr. Chan is
Chairman of Halcyon Capital Limited and Halcyon Securities Limited, which is
engaged in corporate finance and securities business in Hong Kong respectively.
Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
degree in Social Sciences (majoring in Economics) in 1985 and from the Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology with a Master degree in Business
Administration in 1994. He worked for The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and has been Executive Director of Haitong International Securities
Group Limited and head of its corporate finance division for 16 years. He is
an independent non-executive director of Yuexiu REIT Asset Management
Limited, manager of Yuexiu REIT, which is listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong and is also an adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and
Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chan possesses over 20

years of experience in the financial services industry.
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Mr. Xiang Bing, aged 50, was appointed as independent non-executive
director, member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company on November 1, 2009. He obtained a Doctoral degree in
Accounting from the University of Alberta in Canada. Mr. Xiang is currently
the founding dean and professor of the Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. Mr. Xiang is an independent non-executive director of Dan Form
Holdings Company Limited, HC International, Inc., Enerchina Holdings
Limited, Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited, China Dongxiang (Group)
Co., Ltd., Peak Sport Products Co., Limited and Guangzhou Automobile Group
Co., Ltd., all of which are listed on the SEHK. Mr. Xiang is an independent
non-executive director of LDK Solar Co., Ltd., Perfect World Co., Ltd. and
E-House (China) Holdings Limited, both of which are listed in the U.S.. Mr.
Xiang is an independent non-executive director of Yunnan Baiyao Group Co.,
Ltd and Shanxi Qinchuan Machinery Development Co., Ltd., both of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. In the past 3 years, Mr. Xiang was an
independent director of Little Sheep Group Limited, a company listed on the
SEHK.

Mr. Zeng Ming, aged 42, was appointed as independent nonexecutive director
of the Company on June 3, 2011. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zeng is currently the chief strategy officer
of Alibaba Group. Mr. Zeng obtained his Ph.D in International Business and
Strategy from University of Illinois at Urbana-Champain, USA in 1998 and a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Fudan University (1€ H K 8 ) in
1991. Mr. Zeng was the professor of Strategy at Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business, Beijing China and a faculty member at INSEAD, France.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wei Jian, aged 38, is the general manager of the Commercial Properties
Operating Department of the Group. Mr. Wei joined the Group in 2008. He
graduated from Tianjin University (K AK%E%) and obtained a Master's degree
in Management Science and Engineering in 2000. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wei worked for Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Ltd. (E% WEBARRATF ),
Roland Berger Strategy Consultants and Tiens Group (K4 ).

Mr. Zhou Hongbin, aged 43, is the general manager of the Properties
Management Department of the Group. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 1999.
He graduated from China University of Mining and Technology (H' [ i 3£
K %) majoring in Financial Accounting and obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Management in 1992. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou worked for
Chongging Design & Research Institute of the Ministry of Coal Industry (H/k

TR E B ST T B ).

Mr. Li Chaojiang, aged 44, is the general manager of the Human Resources
Department of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in 2011. He graduated from
Yangzhou Teachers College (%7 Fli#52 Pt ) majoring in Chinese Language &
Literature and obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Li worked for P & G (China) Co., Ltd. (BETPBHARA A,
Ericsson (China) Communications Co. Led. (%5 VA5 (F B #E H R A 7))
and Zovie Real Estate Group Co, Ltd. ( Hh B R T A A PR ).

Mr. Wang Yajun, aged 41, is the general manager of the Strategic
Development Department of the Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2012.
He graduated from Arizona State University in U.S. and obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration (MBA) in 2001. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang worked for Beijing Environmental Resources Management Co., Ltd.
(AL RURET R HN A ), United Technologies Corporation, DOW Chemical
Company and Mckinsey Consultancy Company.

Mr. Zhao Nannan, aged 36, is the general manager in charge of the Group’
Shanghai business operations. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 2001. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Chongging Jianzhu University (H B E#ZEAE ) and obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in Management Engineering in 1999. Prior to joining the

Group, Mr. Zhao worked for Chongging Residential Construction Limited (E
BEEEARAR).
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Mr. Cui Hengzhong, aged 45, is the general manager in charge of the Group's
Chongqing business operations. Mr. Cui joined the Group in 2007. He
graduated from Beijing University of Technology (At T3 K5 ) majoring in
Structural Engineering and obtained a Master’s degree in Engineering in 1997.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cui worked for Jiangsu Urban Construction
Engineering Company (VL # & Y T £ 2 T F2 48 /0 F]), Building Research
Institute of the Ministry of Metallurgical Industry (1 4 #0 22 52 fF 7% 48 Bx)
and Beijing Wanda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (b3 B TS bR B
AR AD.

Mr. Song Hailin, aged 40, is the general manager in charge of the Group’s
Beijing business operations. Mr. Song joined the Group in 2011. Mr. Song
graduated from the Department of Architectural Design and Theory of Tsinghua
University in 2001 and obtained a Doctoral degree in Engineering. Mr. Song
was a visiting scholar for Urban and Regional Studies (SPURS) of Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MIT) in the United States from 2009 to 2011. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Song was the president of the Architectural Design and
Research Institute of Tsinghua University (E#ERBREZFIFBE) and
during such office, he acted as the temporary Deputy District Chief of Fushan

District of Yantai in Shandong Province.

Mr. Yuan Chun, aged 38, is the general manager in charge of the Group's
Hangzhou business operations. Mr. Yuan joined the Group in 2010. He
graduated from the Tongji University (7] # K £) and obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Heating and Ventilating in 1996. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuan worked for China Overseas Land & Investment Led ( H BV 71V8% & A [R
2.

Mr. Yang Xiaopeng, aged 37, is the general manager in charge of the Group's
business operations in Southern Jiangsu. Mr. Yang joined the Group in 2008.
Mr. Yang graduated from the Department of Urban Planning of Tsinghua
University (1 # K5 ) and obtained a Master’s degree in Engineering in 2001.
Subsequently, he obtained a Doctoral degree in Architecture from Tsinghua
University (EHEKRKE)in June 2008. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yang
worked for China International Engineering Design and Consult Co., Ltd (14}

TR BB A ).
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Mr. Li Jun, aged 40, is the general manager in charge of the Group's Shenyang
business operations. Mr. Li joined the Group in 2006. Mr. Li graduated
from Beijing University of Technology (At 51 T 2 K &) majoring in civil
engineering and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1996. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for Beijing Beichen Innovation Hi-tech
Development Limited (It 5% I8 & 8187 5 B 4 8 & A R 2 7)), Markgold
International Housing Land Consulting (Beijing) Co., Led. (&4 45 B 5 Hh 5
A A (At mt) A PR Al ) and Beichen Property Development Company (It /R
5 M e B 8 7] ).

Mr. Zeng Li, aged 46, is the general manager in charge of the Group's Xi'an
business operations. Mr. Zeng joined the Group in 2001. He graduated from
Zhengzhou Grain College (3 M| #& £ £ Pt (currently known as Zhengzhou
Institute of Technology (¥ M L. #2 £ Bt )) majoring in Industrial and Civil
buildings with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1988. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Zeng worked for Chongging Grain Storage and Transportation
Company at its preparatory office (T B T & £ il /0 vl B A &K ) and
Chongqing Jiliang Real Estate Development Co., Led. ( B 5 [ 55 b 78 B 4%
AIRZAH).

Mr. Peng Jiang, aged 38, is the general manager in charge of the Group’s
Qingdao business operations. Mr. Peng joined the Group in 2008. Mr. Peng
graduated from the Tongji University (] % K &) and obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering in 1997, and graduated from Tsinghua University (I% 4
K% and obtained a Master degree in Engineering in 2001. Prior to joining to
Group, Mr. Peng worked for China Resources Land (Beijing) Limited (#Ei# &
b (AL ) AR A7 BRZA ] ) and Taikang Real Estate Investment Co. ( 485 & 1L
YNGIDY

Mr. Tong Jianliang, aged 40, is the general manager in charge of the Group's
Ningbo business operations. Mr. Tong joined the Group in 2011. He Graduated
from Chongqing Construction Engineering College (H & 2 5% T £ £ [f)
(currently known as Chongqing Jianzhu University( F B E SR E ) majoring
in industrial and civil buildings and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering
in 1995. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tong worked for China Construction
First Building (Group) Corporation Limited (H' # — J&J) and China Overseas
Property Group Co., Led. (B HIESE B A BRA ).
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Longfor
Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the property development, property investment and property

management businesses in China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the year by
principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on page 82.

DIVIDENDS
The Board proposed the payment of a finial dividend of RMBO0.20 per share

for the year ended December 31, 2012 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on May 24, 2013. The proposed final
dividend will be paid on or about June 4, 2013 after approval by shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM").

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in Hong Kong
dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be converted from
RMB at the average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars as announced by
the People’s Bank of China for the period from May 14, 2013 to May 16, 2013.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, May 13,
2013 to Thursday, May 16, 2013, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting to be held on Thursday, May 16, 2013, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
May 10, 2013.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
May 23, 2013 to Friday, May 24, 2013 (both days inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not
later that 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, May 22, 2013.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year is set out in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2012, the distributable reserve of the Company amounted to
approximately RMBS,213,812,000.
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Report of the Directors

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
RMB19.02 million (2011: approximately RMB28.25 million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 236 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue attributable to the largest
customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.49% of the total revenue
in the year and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 2%

of the Group's revenue in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, purchases attributable to the largest
supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 2.43% of the total purchases
in the year and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 9%

of the Group's purchases in the year.

So far as the Board of the Company is aware, neither the Directors, their
associates nor any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any interest

in these major customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note

31 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Wu Yajun (Chairman)

Mr. Shao Mingxiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Dekang

Mzr. Qin Lihong

Mzr. Feng Jinyi

Mr. Wei Huaning

Mr. Fang Shengtao (Resigned on 16 May 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek

Mzr. Xiang Bing

Mr. Zeng Ming

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Madam Wu
Yajun, Mr. Qin Lihong, Mr. Zeng Ming and Mr Frederick Peter Churchouse
shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a period of three years. None of the directors of the Company
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the directors and those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in

note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2012, none of the directors of the Company are considered
to be in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted for the year ended 31 December 2012.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any
such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no arrangement to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is
a party that would enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS AND THE DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into the non-competition deed dated 1 November
2009 with the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Charm Talent
International Limited (“Charm Talent”), Junson Development International
Limited (previously known as Precious Full International Limited) (“Junson
Development”), Silver Sea Assets Limited (“Silver Sea”), Silverland Assets
Limited (“Silverland”), Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) and Mr. Cai Kui
(“Mr. Cai”) pursuant to which Madam Wu, Charm Talent and Silver Sea
have jointly and severally undertaken, and Mr. Cai, Junson Development and
Silverland have jointly and severally undertaken, not to compete with the
Group. Each of Madam Wu, Mr. Cai, Charm Talent, Junson Development,
Silver Sea and Silverland has also undertaken with the Company to procure that
any investment or commercial opportunity relating to any property business or
investment or management in the People’s Republic of China that they or any
of their respective affiliates identify or propose or that is offered or presented to
them by a third party, be first referred to the Company in accordance with the

terms of the non-competition deed.

In March 2013, the Company has received an annual declaration from each of
the controlling shareholders of the Company and the Directors in respect of
their respective compliance with the non-competition undertakings as at 31
December 2012. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
said undertakings and are of the view that each of the controlling shareholders
of the Company and the Directors has complied with their respective non-

competition undertakings during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Report of the Directors

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 26th April 2010, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a
4-year term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$2.15 billion (the
“Facility”) was made available to the Company on the terms and conditions

stated therein.

On 5th April 2012, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a 3-year
term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$2.125 billion and
USD39.23 million (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company on the

terms and conditions stated therein.

It is provided in the Facility Agreement, among other things, that an event of
default will occur if the controlling shareholders of the Company (namely, the
Wu Family Trust, the Cai Family Trust, Charm Talent International Limited
and Junson Development International Limited) cease to collectively maintain
(directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the entire beneficial shareholding
interest in the Company. If an event of default under the Facility Agreement
occurs, the lending bank or the agent acting for the lending banks may, and
shall if so directed by two-thirds of the lending banks, terminate the Facility
or declare that all or part of the loans made under the Facility together with
accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility

Agreement be immediately due and payable.

Other than as disclosed above, there are no other events which are required to be

disclosed by the Company under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain directors and their close
family members, and companies controlled by certain Directors and/or their
close family members entered into transactions with the Group which are
disclosed in note 39 “Related party transactions” to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

Save that certain sales of properties to key management and shareholders
constituted de minimis connected transactions of the Company which were
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), the other related party transactions which were carried out
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2012, did not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as

the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Option Scheme which were adopted on 30 November
2007 and 1 November 2009 respectively.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) available for issue
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2012 was
514,235,500 shares which represented approximately 9.47% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 15 March 2013.
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CFTE O ORREMR O RREER 0 CRCE
e i Numberof — Numberof TZA=1—H
(#7) WAMTHE  ShareOption  Share Option WA

4 i bailit ] Exercise  Outstanding at reclassified  exercised during  Outstanding at
Name Capacity Date of Grant Price (HKS$) 1Jan 2012 during the period theperiod 31 Dec 2012
(i)
(Note 3)
RREM-E-F  RRREAE) 3R 294 5588000 (5,588,000) -
TATARER Beneficiary of t=A=1H Wit2)
Fang Shengtao Resigned on ~ a crust (Move /) 30 November 2007 (Note 2)
16 May 2012)

oo FiEzaAz)  “FRLE 294 5,588,000 - 5,588,000 -
Shao Mingxiao Beneficiary of t=A=1A

atrust (Note 1) 30 November 2007
s N S S 2 29 5,588,000 - 5,588,000
Zhou Dekang Beneficiary of t=A=1H

atrust (Note 1) 30 November 2007
Eo% T IN < S e 294 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Feng Jiayi Beneficiary of t=A=1H

atrust (Note 1) 30 November 2007
GiE [EExaAdz) 3R 294 600,000 - 600,000
Wei Huaning Beneficiary of T=A=1H

atrust (Noee 1) 30 November 2007
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Employees

ARSI AER
ZE-CE ORMENMERENE  RABRE
L —A—H Numberof — MEERELE

(70) WAL Share Option  Number of Share
Exercise  Outstanding at reclassified ~ Option exercised

Price (HKS) 1Jan 2012 during the period ~ during the period
(Wiit2) (Hits)
(Note 2) (Note 3)

294 14,576,000 5,788,000 7,423,000

i S
+ZR=t-H
WA
Outstanding at
31 Dec 2012

12,741,000

Note 1:  Such number of pre-IPO options granted pursuant to a Pre-IPO Option

Scheme adopted by the Company on 30 November 2007 are currently

held by Long Faith subject to the terms of the Long Faith Trust. The

Long Faith Trust is a discretionary trust of which HSBC (HK) Trustee

is the trustee and the relevant director and employees are discretionary

objects.

Note 2:  The Share options re-classified to employees due to the resignation of

Director.

Note 3:  The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the date

on which the option were exercised was HK$12.00.
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‘Report of the Directors

No further options can be offered under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme.

The terms of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme are similar to those of the Post-

IPO Option Scheme (see below) except in respect of the following:

] there is no provision limiting the maximum number of options
that might be granted to any individual grantee under the Pre-IPO
Option Scheme;

o the provisions on the granting of options to connected persons (as

defined in the Listing Rules) were not included,

o the Pre-IPO Option Scheme does not contain provisions relating
to the “refreshing” of the 10% limit or the seeking of separate
approval for granting options beyond the 10% limit as anticipated
in Note 1 of Rule 17.03(3) of the Listing Rules, or the restrictions
on the number of Shares issued or to be issued under options in any
12 month period to any participant of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme
not exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue as anticipated in the note
to Rule 17.03(4) of the Listing Rules.

Post-IPO Option Scheme

On 23 December 2009, 17 January 2011 and 28 September 2011, the
Company granted options to subscribe for a total of 10,600,000 Shares,
46,000,000 Shares and 150,000,000 Shares under the Post-IPO Option
Scheme to certain directors and employees of the Company, with the

following details:
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Name

e
Shao Mingxiao

it
Zhou Dekang

A
Qin Lihong

B5%
Feng Jinyi
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Capacity

Ra#AA

Beneficial Owner

HihAA

Beneficial Owner

Ras#AA

Beneficial Owner

HihAA

Beneficial Owner

(1)  Directors

G

Date of Grant

e i
17 January 2011
“FEARZTAR
28 September 2011

Bt
17 January 2011
“E—EAR AR
28 September 2011

“FTNE
+oAZT=H

23 December 2009
“E—E-fth
17 January 2011
“E—EARZTAR
28 September 2011

TN

i =

23 December 2009

B AR
17 January 2011
“FEUAZTAR
28 September 2011

frfif
(#7)

Exercise

Price (HKS)

12528

8.28

12528

8.28

8.4

12528

8.28

8.4

12528

8.28

WS
Number of Share Option
“FIE
AR RAEREE
HATTHE Movement
Outstanding at during
1Jan 2012 the period

1,600,000 -

30,000,000 -

1,200,000 -

4,000,000 -

3,000,000 -

3,000,000 -

4,000,000 -

1,000,000 -

800,000 -

8,000,000 -

e S
FRE
Wik

Outstanding
at 31 Dec 2012

1,600,000

30,000,000

1,200,000

4,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

1,000,000

800,000

8,000,000



k4 St
Name Capacity
g% HaHAA
Wei Huaning Beneficial Owner
Ao hede
Interests of spouse
LA HEHAA
Frederick Peter Beneficial Owner
Churchouse
E% 1IN
Chen Chi On, Beneficial Owner
Derek
if FaHAA
Xiang Bing Beneficial Owner
e A A
Zeng Ming Beneficial Owner

FRME (R -E-—F HahAA
EATAHRE) Beneficial Owner
Fang Shengtao (Resigned on
16 May 2012)

BERE T ol S AT ERT B 2 A
W o

ik

Date of Grant

“FF
~AttH

17 January 2011
“F—k
AAZ AR
28 September 2011
o
i

17 January 2011
AAZHAR
28 September 2011
“FENE
tZAZHER
23 December 2009
i

28 September 2011
“FENE
T-AZ+=H
23 December 2009

AAZHAR
28 September 2011
“EENE
TZAZ =R
23 December 2009
Ik
AAZHAH
28 September 2011
o
AAZHAR
28 September 2011

o
AAZHAH
28 September 2011

Lt G
Number of Share Option
S
frfi it AR REEEER
(#7) HATTHE Movement
Exercise  Outstanding at during
Price (HKS) 1Jan 2012 the period

12528 2,600,000

8.28 8,000,000

12528 1,000,000

8.28 2,000,000

8.4 150,000
8.28 400,000
8.4 200,000
8.28 400,000
8.4 200,000
8.28 400,000
8.28 400,000

8.28 4,000,000

ort of the Directors

KB R
Lk L
TR
Number of
Share “E-TE
Option +ZH=+—H
re-classified WAL

during  Outstanding

the period  at 31 Dec 2012
(Wit 1)
(Note 1)

- 2,600,000

- 8,000,000

- 1,000,000

- 2,000,000

- 150,000

- 400,000

- 200,000

- 400,000

- 200,000

- 400,000

- 400,000

(4,000,000) -

Note 1:  The share options re-classified to employees due to the resignation of

Director.
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Name Capacity
“EENE -tk ZiUN
+-A-+=H Beneficial Owner
23 December 2009

S i A
—ATtH Beneficial Owner
17 January 2011

e i A
A= AR Beneficial Owner
28 September 2011
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(2)  Employees

PAKIRR
TRRHER R BHAHN
Number of Share Option TR H

“R-TE O RARBAER Number of “FTE
fri Etk i TR H shareoption ~ TZHZT—H
(#7) WAL Number of Share re-classified AL

Exercise Outstandingat ~ Option exercised during Outstanding at
Price (HKS$) 1Jan 2012 during the period the period 31 Dec 2012

(Wit (Wit2)

(Note 1) (Note 2)
844 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
12528 35,800,000 714,500 - 35,085,500
8.28 88,400,000 - 4,000,000 92,400,000
Note:

1 As for the share option granted on 23 December 2009, the closing price
of the shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$8.26. The options are
exercisable in 4 tranchs of 25% each, from 23rd December 2010, 2011,
2012, 2013 to 22nd December 2019.

As for the share option granted on 17 January 2011, the closing price of the
shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the date on
which the options were granted was HK$12.88. The options are exercisable
in 4 tranchs of 25% each, from 17th January 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 to
16th January 2021.
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‘Report of the Directors

As for the share option granted on 28 September 2011, the closing price
of the shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$8.17. The exercisable
period for 10,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Shao Mingxiao is
28th September 2017 to 27th September 2021. The remaining options
are exercisable in 4 tranchs from 28 September 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 to
27th September 2021, the exercisable percentage is 10%, 30%, 30%, 30%

respectively.

2 The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the date

on which the option were exercised was HK$14.02.

A summary of the principal terms of the Post-IPO Option Scheme is set

out as follow:

®

(ii)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Participants (defined
in paragraph (ii) below) who have been granted Options under the
Scheme to subscribe for Shares with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage Participants
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and the
Shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a

whole.

Who may join

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at their discretion,
invite any directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and employees
of any member of the Group and any advisers, consultants,
distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
service providers of any member of the Group who the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute

to the Group (the “Participants”) to participate in the Scheme.
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(iv)
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(vi)
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme

Initially the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other option schemes adopted by the Company shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the date of which
trading of the Shares commences on the Stock Exchange and any
Shares which may be allotted and issued by the Company under
the over-allotment option. The lapsed share options are excluded

when calculating the 10% limit.

The total number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of the
Options which may be granted pursuant to the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Options granted and to be granted pursuant to
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to each Participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant of the Options shall not exceed 1% of the total

number of Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of the Options

The period within which the Options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period must

expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.

Payment on acceptance of Option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant to the Company on

acceptance of the Option offered as consideration for the grant.
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Report of the Directors

(vii) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per Share under the Scheme is a price
determined by the Board and notified to each Participant and shall
be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date

of grant.

(viii) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain valid until 31 October 2019 after which
no further Options will be granted but in respect of all Options
which remain exercisable on such date, the provisions of the

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Company adopted two Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes on 30 November
2007 and 31 July 2009 respectively. Their principal terms are substantially the

same and are summarized below.

(i)  Objective
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes to recognise
the contribution of certain of its employees, especially those whom
the Company considered had contributed to the early development
and growth of the Group, and to align their interests with those of the

shareholders of the Company.
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(iii)
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(iii)

Implementation

For the implementation of the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes, the
Fit All Trust was established on June 11, 2008 for the benefit of
selected employees of the Group. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme adopted on 30 November 2007, the Company issued a total of
64,014,000 Shares to Fit All Investments Limited (“Fit All”), a special
purpose vehicle incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by HSBC
(HK) Trustee acting as the trustee of the Fit All Trust, on June 11,
2008. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme adopted on 31 July
2009, Charm Talent and Junson Development transferred to Fit All a
total of 30,000,000 Shares. A total of 94,014,000 Shares (the “Awarded
Shares”) were granted to selected employees of the Group (the “Selected

Employees”).

Vesting of the Awarded Shares

The Selected Employees are not entitled to exercise or enjoy the rights
to the Awarded Shares pending the vesting of the Awarded Shares in

accordance with the applicable vesting period.

In general, vesting period is either four or five years during which the
Awarded Shares granted to any particular Selected Employee will vest on

each anniversary of the first vesting date in equal portions.

Prior to vesting, the Selected Employees are not entitled to the rights to
and interests in the Awarded Shares, including voting and distribution

rights.



G N

Report of the Directors

B 25 0k % DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

L Y EL Y. YN-P4 £ Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
WoF—"HFE+A=Z+—H  FEFHLAL As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
A T BATBON B R AR A w) B H AT o] A g Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
(F 38 S 75 MO B e 061 ([ 38 2 T A B Ak 9] 1) its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
S5 XV R ) B AR U8 R 5 SO0 B AR B 5 352 4% Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register which were required to
BUE A B R MR RT > SRR b T R be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
7 NE AT 55 757 28 S i A 6 < JI) ([ 36 < and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
) J) ZER o A ) B A e 2 B Ay > AR TR by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

B AEERR Z ERITE -
G)  FiFEARA RS (58 (i)  Interest in the Company (long position)
B AN RS
Betrz s BT
5/ HERIEE Wi Interest in  Approximate %
HRUA Capacity/Nature Number of underlying of inerest
Name of director of interest ordinary shares shares in the Company
SE EHEfREAA (1) 2,343,736,600 - 43.172%
Wu Yajun Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
Gl fRREZ A (M7t 2) 478,125 0.009%
Shao Mingxiao Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2)
(EHZ2 INU 2, 19,929,000 0.367%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
o€t 2PN 8,741,875 31,600,000 0.743%
Beneficial Owner (Wit 4)
(Note 4)
el Rt A (it 2) 570,750 0.011%
Zhou Dekang Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2)
fEREZ AN (M7t 3) 19,929,000 0.367%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
HaHA A 3,341,250 5,200,000 0.157%
Beneficial Owner (Hit4)
(Note 4)
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HREA

Name of director

Fhit
Qin Lihong

LIRS
Feng Jinyi

R
Wei Huaning

EUE 13
Capacity/Nature

of interest

Rtz g A (Mt 2)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2)
HifEHA

Beneficial Owner

Rt 2w AL 2)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2)
[CET e INIEEY
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
¥ 2N

Beneficial Owner

Btz H#2)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2)
Rt 2N 3)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
-§:3 2N

Beneficial Owner

i {8 1

Interests of Spouse

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E W Hb & A B 2 ]

EERHHE
Number of

ordinary shares

735,875

2,664,125

750,000

1,250,000

50,000

363,000

388,500
(Wiits)
(Note 5)
40,000
(Wiits)
(Note 5)

il R AL £
ey his: B2

Interest in Approximate %

underlying of inerest

shares in the Company

0.014%
10,000,000 0.233%
(Hit4)
(Note 4)
0.014%
19,929,000 0.367%
9,800,000 0.204%
(Wit 4)
(Note 4)
0.001%
19,929,000 0.367%
10,600,000 0.202%
(Ht7t4)
(Note 4)
3,000,000 0.062%
(Hit4Ks5)
(Note 4 and 5)
0.001%



il '_|.l-.\'. L:r" L

il L AL £

JBtA Z RS WAE L

Bt/ HEREE A Interest in  Approximate %

FhEH Capacity/Nature Number of underlying of inerest

Name of director of interest ordinary shares shares in the Company

AR AN 50,000 550,000 0.011%
Frederick Peter Beneficial Owner (Hiit4)
Churchouse (Note 4)

B ki % 87T XN 600,000 0.011%
Chen Chi On, Derek Beneficial Owner (Hi7t4)
(Note 4)

I L7 2N 600,000 0.011%
Xiang Bing Beneficial Owner (Wfzt4)
(Note 4)

B gk TN 400,000 0.007%
Zeng Ming Beneficial Owner (Wit 4)
(Note 4)

BieE1 ¥4 %2,343,736,600 % & £ Hi Charm Note 1:  These 2,343,736,600 Shares are held by Charm Talent Investment Limited

Talent Investment Limited ([ Charm
Talent ) LVETUFEH NI S O3 35 -
Charm Talenc 2 # C 3517 % 4 H Silver
Sea Asset Limited ([ Silver Sea]) % ¥
o i Silver Sea ¥ C % 17 i 4 HI
1 HSBC International Trustee Limited
([HSBC International Trustee ) A 5% [%
FIEEFEMZ NG 2 EHH - SIK
FEFARR FZNEA T —H il
SEE L (TR DIERSL AR E
N HSBC International Trustee {F £
ZAL NI — AR T - RIRKIR
15 FER 2 4 B AR S 4 1 T R

Ho

family members of Madam Wu.

(“Charm Talent”) as registered holder. The entire issued share capital of Charm
Talent is wholly owned by Silver Sea Asset Limited (“Silver Sea”), the entire
issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited (‘HSBC International Trustee”) as the trustee of the Wu Family
Trust. The Wu Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu Yajun
(“Madam Wu") as settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee

on 11 June 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include certain

4F # Annual Report 2012
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. _d "} - i iy _?"v-'r'l\‘lr‘:-._

A o Fie AL A E 817 IR A H HSBC
Trustee (HK) Limited ([HSBC (HK)
Trustee]) LA Fit All Trust %L A &4y
A © Fir All Trusc it %% 4
7NH+—HLLHSBC (HK) Trustee {4
ZHENFOL © Fie All Truse MR 3 2
RAETHERESHEANAFANE RS
P 3 B A Mt 4 0 B e o o

DRERBALARRZEELET A
= H R Y2 B R i A HE
T B U R S B HE B o
Long Faith Management Limited ([ Long
Faith]) IR % Long Faith Trusc 06 5 HF
e Long Faith Trust B —HAHEAE 5T -
HZ Gt N HSBC (HK) Trustee > 1M1 7
B R R — 2 2R EEH S -

R I S AR A 2 B S AR M T
BURERZ Al GO % B E PR 19 B AR

EHERAMEMBRE L HA
388,500 % 1 0 8 A HE 45 > AR H K
N BB A R IR R 8 e B = F
——4—H L B REG 12,528 1
JC A7 14 45 28 451,000,000 fi% 1 i 1 >
T ——IH =\ H S R
8.28 1k 70 119 47 i {5 4 4% 2,000,000 Ji% 1
JRHE  3RE LR Fie ALl Truse 1952
EDNER (R wiiS 3= R/ N gt
Ty BERE T #I0E £y 0508 2 B T 40,000 T
B A7 R AT B 2 o AR R 5 O B ik
SE XV o B S A A A R B A
LAY bl AR A RS
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WeE2 o SR RO Fie ALLDME OB R0 Note 2: Such number of Shares are held on trust by Fit All. The entire issued share

capital of Fit All is wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee (HK) Limited (“HSBC (HK)
Trustee”) as the trustee of the Fit All Trust. The Fit All Trust was set up on 11
June 2008 with HSBC (HK) Trustee acting as the trustee thereof. The beneficiary
objects of the Fit All Trust are certain selected employees and directors of the
Group as participants of the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes adopted by the
Company.

Such number of pre-IPO options granted pursuant to a Pre-IPO Option Scheme
adopted by the Company on 30 November 2007 are currently held by Long Faith
Management Limited (“Long Faith”) subject to the terms of the Long Faith Trust.
The Long Faith Trust is a discretionary trust of which HSBC (HK) Trustee is the

trustee and the relevant director is one of the discretionary objects.

The relevant director was granted options to subscribe for such number of shares

under the Post-TPO Option Scheme.

Mdm. ZHANG Yan, the spouse of Mr. WEI Huaning, has personal interest of
388,500 shares under the Post-IPO Option Scheme. She was granted 1,000,000
options on 17 January 2011 at an exercise price of HK$12.528 per share and
2,000,000 options on 28 September 2011 at an exercise price of HK$8.28 per
share. Mdm. ZHANG Yan is also the beneficiary of the Fit All Trust under
which Mdm. ZHANG Yan is interested in 40,000 Shares as selected participant
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes. Mr. WEI Huaning is deemed to
be interested in the aforesaid interests of Mdm. ZHANG Yan by virtue of Part
XV of the SFO.
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T 2B OB 2

RE-F—_HFT_A=+—H> BALARES
W EFATEO A S AN LA R B AR B
FBEA7 AT AR 0 5 2 S ) B 912 336 BRI A
AR BRI > AERRR (BEALT
A BRCA) {8 59 A 2 SR AT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of persons, other than the directors or
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company representing 5% or more of the nominal value of shares comprised in
the relevant share capital of the Company as recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

AARAF HRERS (BFE) Interest in the Company (long position)
A A )RR
BEATE
ELVa LA R A Approximate %
JR Ak £ Capacity/Nature Number of of interest
Name of shareholder of interest ordinary shares in the Company
e B FTRMA (7L 1) 1,559,394,400 28.725%
Cai Kui Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
BREA N (Mt 2) 3,100,000 0.057%
Registered owner (Note 2)
Junson Development BREAE N (A1) 1,559,394,400 28.725%
International Limited Registered owner (Note 1)
Silverland Assets Limited ZRER R 2 WA (A 1) 1,559,394,400 28.725%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
HSBC International FZRb N (a1~ 2K 4) 3,903,195,000 71.90%
Trustee Limited Trustee (Notes 1, 2 and 4)
Charm Talent International BRI N (Mt 3) 2,343,736,600 43.172%
Limited Registered owner (Note 3)
Silver Sea Assets Limited TR R 2 R (Mt 5) 2,343,736,600 43.172%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
Jumbomax Investments Limited ZEHIEE 2 RELS (i s) 325,721,000 6.00%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5)
Woo Kwong Ching, Peter SZPET 2 A (s ) 325,721,000 6.00%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5)
Pao Pui Yung, Bessic T {6 22 W 45 (Mt s) 325,721,000 6.00%

Interest of spouse (Note 5)
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Fff &k 2
FEaE3

Bt st 4

MEEs -

L R%5E1,559,394,400 R R Junson Development LA 5

FOREA A SRR o Junson Development 23
O BEAT IR i Silverland 22 & HEA > T Silverland
AT T A R HSBC International Trustee
DR F KGN Z i NS R - 5
REBHELERR -FL/NEAA+—AME
St AE B ik r A B N KX HSBC Incernational
Trustee {55 5% 76 NROL I —TH R HERS 5E - 4%
RA MG RE M0 32 1 B R @R T R
MO o BRI R B R BIXVER - A
(1F B B2 IR A5 SR ) BLAEBEAT B Junson
Development A1 1,559,394,400 A O RERS ©

B S0 DM BHBRRA 3,100,000 BB

%% 2,343,736,600 B M3 tH Charm Talenc DL
FOFEA NI BB © Charm Talent 22 #B EL 38
ATIEAS 1 Silver Sea 2B HEA » T Silver Sea 223
BV BT A% Il 1 HSBC International Trustee A 5¢
REBHELNZAENSBRERE - RIREKIR
RRARR-ERZNEAA+— Il R LA
#r N A N HSBC International Trustee fF
BTN — 2R T - RIRKRGE T
MR RERER L LA TRERE - Ru+
(SR KA LA ) BLVEHE A Charm Talent
JiTE 2,343,736,600 IR (3 (R 4 -

M5 HSBC International Trustee $2 58 1) e i 4
P 7% > HSBC International Trustee bk %6 A\ &
I AHAE TF 465 H 64,000 IR - 7% 55105
ERRREEFHEEEREEF OB LS =
J o

W45 325,721,000 BB AR A4 3% Jumbomax Tnvestments
Limited 75 #8122 1H] 22 ¥ I JB 28 vl 9 20 T BE
fit © Woo Kwong Ching%iﬁﬁ%@%ﬂ%@%
TE £ 7% 3% 47 325,721,000 M % b B A M 4
1Ml Pao Pui Yungﬁiﬁﬂ%i@ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ@a%
325,721,000 SR M AT M i

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:
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These 1,559,394,400 Shares are held by Junson Development as registered holder. The
entire issued share capital of Junson Development is wholly owned by Silverland, the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee as the trustee of the Cai Family Trust. The Cai Family Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Cai as settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee
on 11 June 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Cai Family Trust include certain family
members of Mr. Cai. Mr. Cai as founder of the Cai Family Trust is taken to be interested
in the 1,559,394,400 Shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Cai Kui is beneficially interested in 3,100,000 Shares.

These 2,343,736,600 Shares are held by Charm Talent as registered holder. The entire
issued share capital of Charm Talent is wholly owned by Silver Sea, the entire issued share
capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of
the Wu Family Trust. The Wu Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu
as settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on 11 June 2008. The
beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include certain family members of Madam
Wu. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family Trust are each taken to be interested in
these 2,343,736,600 Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

According to the latest disclosure of interests filing submitted by HSBC International
Trustee, these 64,000 shares are held by HSBC International Trustee as trustee of several other

trusts which are independent third parties of Wu Family Trust and Cai Family Trust.

These 325,721,000 shares represent the corporate interest of Jumbomax Investments
Limited through a number of its wholly owned subsidiaries. Mr. Woo Kwong Ching,
Peter is interested in these 325,721,000 through the interest of corporation controlled
by him while Ms. Pao Pui Yung, Bessie is interested in these 325,721,000 through the

interest of spouse.
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A% 10,000,000,000 5 IC ©
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had not redeemed, and
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the

Shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholder.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rules 8.08(1)(a) and (b) of the Listing Rules require there to be an open market
in the securities for which listing is sought and for a sufficient public float of an
issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that (i) at least
25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public; and (ii) where an issuer has more than one class of securities apart from
the class of securities for which listing is sought, the total securities of the issuer
held by the public (on all regulated market(s) including the Stock Exchange) at
the time of listing must be at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital.
However, the class of securities for which listing is sought must not be less than
15% of the issuer’s total issued share capital, and must have an expected market

capitalization at the time of listing of not less than HK$10,000 million.
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The Group had applied to the Stock Exchange to request the Stock Exchange to
exercise, and the Stock Exchange exercised its discretion under Rule 8.08(1)(d)
of the Listing Rules to accept a lower public float percentage of the Company
of 15% (assuming the over-allotment option is not exercised) or such higher
percentage of the issued share capital as would be held by the public in the
event that the whole or a part of the over-allotment option is exercised (which
discretion may be exercised in respect of issuers with an expected market
capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10,000 million) on the basis
that the Stock Exchange was satisfied that the number of the Shares concerned
and the extent of their distribution would enable the market to operate properly
with the lower percentage, and on the condition that the Company would make
appropriate disclosure of the lower prescribed percentage of public float in
the Prospectus and confirm sufficiency of public float in the successive annual
reports after listing. At the time of the listing of the Company on 19 November
2009, the market capitalization exceeded HK$10,000 million.

The over-allotment option was fully exercised on 24 November 2009 in respect
of an aggregate of 150,000,000 shares and accordingly the lower public float
percentage of the Company accepted by the Stock Exchange is approximately
22.33%. Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Ditectors confirm that the Company has maintained the amount of public float

as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by Messts.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the reappointment of Messts.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March, 2013
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve

its corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the period, the Company had adopted, applied and complied with
the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(effective until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code (effective
from 1 April 2012) (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

except the following deviations:

Due to personal commitments, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Zeng Ming, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 17 May 2012. These constitute a

deviation of the code provision A.6.7 of the Code.

During the period, the Company has not established Nomination Committee
as required by the provision A.5 of the Code. Madam Wu is responsible for the
nomination and appointment of directors. In accordance to Company’s corporate
strategy, Madam Wu will review and discuss with other board members the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the board from time to time and identify individuals suitably qualified to
become directors and make recommendations to the board on the nomination
for directorship. According to the situation of the Company, the Board is of view
that Chairman responsible for the nomination directorship is more appropriate

than establishment Nomination Committee at current period.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Madam Wu Yajun serves as the Chairman at the Board whereas Mr. Shao
Mingxiao, an executive director, serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Board currently comprises six executive Directors (including
Madam Wu) and four independent non-executive Directors and therefore has
a fairly strong independence element in its composition. The Chairman of the
Board should be responsible for the management of the Board while the Chief
Executive Officer for the day-to-day management of business. The division of

responsibilities should be set out in writing as below:
Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board:

1. To provide leadership for the Board; to ensure that the Board works
effectively and discharge its responsibilities; to ensure that good corporate

governance practices and procedures are established.

2. To attend annual general meeting and ensure that issues raised by
shareholders are answered by the chairman of the Board committees, and

the appropriate alternate on the meeting.

3. To lead the formulation of corporate strategies, mid-to-long term plans of

development, annual budget and significant organizational and structural

adjustments.
4. To lead the formulation of an investment and financing decision system.
5. To provide leadership in respect of internal audit and crisis management.
6. To lead the recruitment and appointment of senior management

and Board members of the Company; to participate under the
recommendation of the remuneration committee in decision making
in respect of remuneration and bonuses of, and share option incentive
schemes for, senior management and directors, and other material changes

and reforms in human resources management system and remuneration

system.
7. To participate inauguration of key projects.
8. To provide leadership in respect of corporate culture.

4 #t Annual Report 2012
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Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer:

1. To provide leadership in the execution of corporate strategies and

achieving the objectives of plans.

2. To establish and continuously improve the management system and

management team.

3. To lead the corporate team and continue to retain and train management
talents.
THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 10 Directors, including six executive Directors
namely Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou Dekang, Mr. Qin
Lihong, Mr. Feng Jinyi and Mr. Wei Huaning and four independent non-
executive Directors namely Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, Mr. Chan Chi On,
Derek, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Zeng Ming.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
overseeing the Group's business, strategic decisions and performances, as well
as performing the corporate governance duties, including: (a) developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) reviewing
the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report). During the year, the
Board has reviewed the Code of Conduct of the Group, assessed the internal
control measures of the Group, assessed the training needs of the Directors and
senior management and arranged relevant trainings accordingly, and reviewed

the status of compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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The Board has delegated the management the day-to-day management and
administrative functions as they think fit and provides guidance of the rights
of management. The Board will review the relevant delegation from time to
time to ensure that clear guidance and rights have been provided and the proper
reporting procedures have been complied. In addition, the Board has also
established various Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the investment committee (the “Investment Committee”) (together, the
“Board Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles

in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, business, family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.

All of the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries except that each of them has been granted options under the Post-
IPO Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 1 November 2009, details of
which are set out in the Directors’ Report. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all

of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the

requirements of the business of the Company.

4 #t Annual Report 2012
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During the year under review, the Company held four Board meetings and one

general meeting, the attendance of each director is as follows:

e 8 g oF Ve Ve -r Vel
No. of Board meetings attended/

Total no. of Board meetings

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

2/2

4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4

T Nt VS e
No. of general meetings attended/

Total no. of general meetings

1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1

171

1/1
1/1
0/1

0/1

M. Fang Shengtao resigned as an executive director, member of the Remuneration Committee and chief human resources officer of the Company on 16 May
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1 November 2009
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in
paragraph B.1.2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include evaluating and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration system and package of the Directors and senior
management, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy. During the year, Mr. Fang Shengtao resigned
as an executive director, member of the Remuneration Committee and chief
human resources officer of the Company on 16 May 2012. Madam Wu Yajun
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
the same day. The Remuneration Committee consists of Madam Wu Yajun, an
executive Director, and Mr. Zeng Ming, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Chan Chi On,
Derek, three independent non-executive Directors. On 1 April 2012, Mr. Zeng

Ming was appointed as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year to review the
remuneration structure of the Directors and senior management of the Group
and appraisal system of the key positions of the Group, discuss the challenges of
attracting and retaining mid to senior level staff of the Company, and approve
the remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior management for

2013. The attendance of each member is as follows:

iAo o A

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings

1/1
1/1
/1
1/1

0/0

Wi RREEER T F - TELA AR RHEALRRTES - HMZ A e A RER AN ERE -

Note 1

M:r. Fang Shengtao resigned as an executive director, member of Remuneration Committee and Chief human resources officer of the Company on 16 May 2012.
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Details of the remuneration of the directors during the year are set out in note
11 to the financial statements. The remuneration of the Senior Management

during the year falls within the following bands:

N

Number of individuals

Nil to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,000 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,000 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,000 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,000,000 to HK$9,000,000
HK$9,000,000 to HK$10,000,000

— RN = W N

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 November 2009 with

written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in paragraph
C.3.3 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process
and internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and monitoring
external auditors. The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Frederick Peter
Churchouse, and Mr. Xiang Bing and is chaired by Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek.
In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit

Committee possesses the appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings with the senior management
and independent auditor of the Company during the year, to consider the
independence and audit scope of independent auditor, and to review and discuss
the internal control system, interim and annual financial statements of the
Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor before submitting

to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

Y ACE Ve Vb Vet

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings

2/2
2/2

2/2
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INVESTMENT DECISION COMMITTEE

The Investment Decision Committee reports directly to the Board and is
responsible for appraising land acquisition proposals submitted by the regional
companies and the business development department of the headquarters as
well as making land purchase decisions. The Investment Decision Committee
consists of Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou Dekang, Mr.
Qin Lihong, Mr. Feng Jinyi, Mr. Wei Huaning and Mr. Wei Jian, the General

Manager of Commercial properties Operating Department.

A o

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings

13/13
13/13
13/13
13/13
13/13
13/13

13/13
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors are aware of the latest development relevant to
the operation of the Group, the Company has arranged and funded suitable
training for the Directors. During the year, each of the Directors have attended
the training on the new inside information regime organized by the Company
and reviewed the relevant materials. Certain directors also attended seminars
organized by accounting firm and the third party institutes on directors’ duties

and development in securities laws.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Given that the Nomination Committee has not been established, the Board as
a whole will be responsible for the selection and approval of the new Directors
and assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors.
The Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3 years.
Under the articles of associations of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not more than one-third) will retire from office by rotation
provided that every Directors shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. The Board will consider the
factors including the expertise, experience and integrity of the candidates when

selecting the new Directors.

During the year, Mr. Fang Shengtao resigned as an executive director, member
of the Remuneration Committee and chief human resources officer of the
Company on 16 May 2012. Madam Wu Yajun was appointed as a member of

the Remuneration Committee with effect from the same day.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are
RMB2,816,000 and RMB1,056,000, respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2012 which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period.
The Directors consider that the financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with all appropriate accounting standards and requirements and
reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed
and prudent judgment of the Board and the management. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements of

the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section

headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 79 of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance of an effective system of
internal control. The Company has established internal audit department which
is responsible for the independent review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system and for the periodic report of the auditing result to
the Audit Committee and the Board. The Company has also engaged external
professional agent to re-assess and evaluate the internal control system of the

Company.

During the year, all functional departments of the Group improved their
internal control by strengthening their daily supervision. The Group had
launched various important management systems to enhance its internal
control, including Administrative Measures on Marketing and Sales Expenses
of Longfor Group (FHE ¥ 42 [ & 85 # & JLH¥ 1% ), Evaluation Measures on
Property Delivery Management of Longfor Group ( HEI#4E B 58 7 RUH) & 4 3
FEAE %), Administrative Measures on Identification and Control of Project
Customers Risk of Longfor Group (HEIWI4E B TH H % i Ja o 722 il A £ 5 2
J#:), Administrative Measures on Contract Plans of Longfor Group (FEM%E
B 5 7] B 81 4 #9882 ), Guidelines on Assec Management of Demonstration
Area of Longfor Group (HE4E B bR [ % 7 & #4651 ) and Regulations of
the Economic Analysis Committee of Longfor Group ( HE it 4 [%] 48 375 7 A7 &
).

4 #t Annual Report 2012
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During the year, as an internal department responsible for conducting
independent and objective review of operation and internal control of the
Company, the risk management centre of the Group carried out a series of

special audit, which includes:

1. Audit at headquarter cost and headhunting cost, Audit at control of

marketing expenses

2. Audit at management system of the kick-off meetings and system of cost

control, Audit at the management of purchase and cultivation of seedling

3. Audit at documentation filing system and information security
management

4. Audit at property management centre

5. Routine audit of district company_Ningbo Company

The Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing Branch in 2012 and appointed its corporate risk
management setvices department to assess and evaluate the internal control of
the Company. The scope of re-assessment includes the control of the Company,
the control of financial reporting process and the control of business flow which
covers the aspects of operation, financial report, risk management, compliance
and the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function. The re-assessment report of Deloitte Touche demonstrates that the
overall control condition of the Company is good and there is no material

control defect.

All of the above mentioned internal and external audit report and the follow-up
measures have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board
is of opinion that the internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2012 is effective and sufficient.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2012 in relation to their securities dealings,

if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management and
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of

the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company secretary, Mr. LO Chi Lik Peter, is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong. Mr. LO, aged 63, was appointed as the Company Secretary on 1
November 2009. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1976 and has been
in continuous practice since qualification. He is currently a partner of Messts.
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. Although Mr. LO is not a full time employee of the
Company, he reports to the Board and is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. The primary contact person of the Company with Mr. LO
is Ms. Zhang Lei, the Controller of Finance and Administration of Hong Kong
office of the Company. During 2012, Mr. LO has confirmed that he has taken

no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Objective

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in enhancing the corporate transparency as well as
establishing market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent
internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws and regulations
in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to information. The Company
has an investor relations department to serve as an important communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders and other investors. To
strive for effective communication and transparency of the Company, the
personnel in charge have frequent contacts with the shareholders and investors
through various channels such as internet, telephone and email. During the
relevant year, the Company has introduced its development strategy and recent
business development to the investors in large investment forums and site visits.
On-site visits to the projects of the Company have been arranged for the fund
managers and analysts from Hong Kong and overseas. The Company endeavours
to create opportunities for direct communication with investors and to provide
the latest development of the Company as well as information of the PRC real
property industry to the capital market in time. In addition, the annual general
meeting also provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. The Chairman of the Board, as well as Chairman of each of the Board
Committees, or in their absence, members of the respective Committees, and
the external auditors of the Company, are available to answer questions from
Shareholders at annual general meetings and extraordinary general meetings
of the Company. As such, investors” understanding of and confidence in the
Company can be enhanced. The Company maintains a website at www.longfor.
com, where information and updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, financial information, corporate governance practices and other

information are available for public access.

4 #t Annual Report 2012




1B 36 1R Bl

Corporate Governance Report

BRI R

4 S AR 05 5 T 8 5 O 0 5 YR > AR
B AR A A R B I A o A
S5 1028 ) B DR R R T B R I
HERE - SUE ROTH > BPORGEROR - BV B
B AT R -

e SR B B SRR K e 2 B e
HFEYeg

S0 SRR A4 LT DR A
KA o AR — i sk DR B Bk A A
DA AT A (A AR & -
2 A SEHE) 4 L — SRR AE T 24 1
BREFREUAL AL AR EEER -
FORH SO0 AR & > DUETA B
SR HE AT R Hok @ AR o %
SR A P RAT o iR 2 2ok i —
1) B > 33 R B 0 AT 7 BB K
MR > SR 2 ok A o] F AT B R ROR
T B K6 A L7 2 0 SR o 2%
] R Bk AL -

(AR EIE LSV B
SRR IR SR 42 2 7 ek R S o A 2
ek 38 2 IR (KO R Y A A R R A
B A o

FBE TR AR 42 5% 198 S = 1 R P SO AR O ] A

www.longfor.com °

I 2 2 7 48 Hh 2l

W SR 37 A 24 9 7 i 2 B
B B E R L5815 ) A
Hh 253 o

R
G o A Z BRICHEL T -

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

Information Disclosure

The Group discloses information in compliance with the securities regulations
of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Group is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful
and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to

make rational and informed decisions.

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

and Propose Resolutions

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any
one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the company's articles of association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set

out in the above paragraph.

Detailed procedure for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director

are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong at 15/F., 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF LONGFOR PROPERTIES CO. LTD.
HEW A A PR 4]

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longfor Properties Co.
Led. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 82 to 235, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal controls as
the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

4F #t Annual Report 2012
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors of
the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at December 31, 2012, and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 15, 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RE =t 1= | H AR

For the year ended December 31, 2012

(T S N
NOTES 2012 2011
ARBFT  ARKTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

A Revenue 5 27,892,830 24,092,893
S A Cost of sales (16,709,740)  (14,324,313)
eyl Gross profit 11,183,090 9,768,580
H A A Other income 6 182,839 168,934
oA (518 di s Other (losses) gains 7 (11,814) 106,653
Sy BUE W E R PR AR Fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties 293,107 916,115
PEYEN T EHEE) Change in fair value of investment properties 1,015,475 1,714,447
BB 2 T S B S Selling and marketing expenses (688,560) (642,736)
FTELBA Administrative expenses (872,743) (709,148)
B A Finance costs 8 (47,612) (202,141)
JREA L 7] 2 ) B 4 2 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 247,760 323,526
R i v ) Profit before taxation 11,301,542 11,444,230
PS8 B 2 Income tax expense 9 (4,436,068)  (4,523,942)
A V6 A Profit for the year 10 6,865,474 6,920,288
AT JE A 6t A1) Profit attributable to:
VI/NEIE: Z DN Owners of the Company 6,301,060 6,327,560
I 42 B 4 Non-controlling interests 564,414 592,728
6,865,474 6,920,288
AR (AN ER¥oT) Earnings per share, in RMB

A Basic 13 1.20 1.23

s Diluted 13 1.19 1.22
A B Vg A Profit for the year 6,865,474 6,920,288
HoAty A T B 5 Other comprehensive expense:

Hoh TREMAFEEE Fair value loss on hedging instruments (114,152) —
SONES PN Total comprehensive income for the year 6,751,322 6,920,288
DA A 42 THT MG A AR Total comprehensive income attributable to:

PNk X SN Owners of the Company 6,186,908 6,327,560

JE il 47 Non-controlling interests 564,414 592,728

6,751,322 6,920,288

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—g-—E+=A=+—H
At December 31, 2012

Bk e Sl
NOTES 2012 2011
ARWEFL ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Jeim B % NON-CURRENT ASSETS
HEE Investment properties 14 18,383,300 13,198,200
W2 ~ BB B Property, plant and equipment 15 186,188 175,083
T & FH Prepaid lease payments 16 8,996,739 6,721,986
TR W 2 W R i Interests in associates 17 1 1
A (] 2 ) £ R Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 2,068,488 1,873,215
At R E Available-for-sale investments 19 8,600 8,600
AL L RS A R R Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 6,949,391 5,837,699
AR JEH G Deferred taxation assets 32 1,012,836 669,202
37,605,543 28,483,986
L CURRENT ASSETS
T& Inventories 20 657,209 594,065
BB Properties under development for sales 21 57,727,061 46,197,041
FHEREYE Properties held for sales 22 4,477,039 3,019,488
R WA Bk B At FRE WS Accounts and other receivables, deposits and
e 4 T TS S OH prepayments 23 4,098,246 3,344,296
B i e ] 42 ) kO Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 24 28,572 13,084
AT i ] B I Taxation recoverable 2,222,095 1,081,031
M ERAT AR Pledged bank deposits 25 227,212 406,125
SRATH B LB & Bank balances and cash 25 18,383,520 14,120,925
87,820,954 68,776,055
i mh A CURRENT LIABILITIES
RERTRRIE ~ E i 4 Accounts payable, deposits received
T and accrued charges 26 48,515,001 41,410,676
JRE A5 ] 2 o) 5 I Amounts due to jointly controlled entities 27 1,051,697 803,170
A BLIE Taxation payable 7,899,467 4,788,074
SRAT B HAtAG 3K — —4E R Bank and other borrowings - due within one year 28 5,108,752 3,580,372
62,574,917 50,582,292
0 B 5 NET CURRENT ASSETS 25,246,037 18,193,763
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
A 7 Y L 8D £ A CURRENT LIABILITIES 62,851,580 46,677,749

4F #t Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
o o | = g P
At December 31, 2012

Wi S SRoow
NOTES 2012 2011
ARBFE  NRMET

RMB’000 RMB 000

JBeA B fik CAPITAL AND RESERVES

JeAR Share capital 31(a) 475,802 453,415

fitifhd Reserves 29,433,446 21,487,126

AN F A N AR 5 Equity attributable to owners of the Company 29,909,248 21,940,541

I 42 il 4 Non-controlling interests 2,668,164 2,154,129

2 AR TOTAL EQUITY 32,577,412 24,094,670

T dn £ i NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

SRAT B AAE X — — AR EI A Bank and other borrowings - due after one year 28 20,475,034 15,645,880

(St Senior notes 29 7,252,980 4,740,473

fird: 4 TR Derivative financial instruments 30 114,152 —

AR ILFLIE B Deferred taxation liabilities 32 2,432,002 2,196,726
30,274,168 22,583,079
62,851,580 46,677,749

B2 R3S HZ A MBIMER - F—=4= The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 235 were approved and

H+ R AR R T s W HUT authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 15, 2013 and are signed

AEfoFEsz . on its behalf by:

HH i

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi #b 7 A B 2 ]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equi

+— A LR

FrEFTRAZ

BEZ

For the year ended December 31, 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

WE-Z—THEFHAZ—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

e St
2012 2011
ANRETFL ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R L i A Profit before taxation 11,301,542 11,444,230
BUAT T Adjustments for:
R A Finance costs 47,612 202,141
W3 - s K s Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 33,232 26,924
Fair value gain upon transfer to
LS ERiG L E YNV €0 investment properties (293,107) (916,115)
B EWIFER A TEBE N Increase in fair value of investment properties (1,015,475)  (1,714,447)
JRE At [ 42 o) B 4 S A Share of results of jointly controlled entities (247,760) (323,526)
HEYIE - R SR R Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (6,379) 3)
FEHA Interest income (139,813) (140,590)
e 56, s 48 (i 4 ) Exchange loss (gain) 18,193 (106,650)
AL R T ROE I I R Dividend income from
available-for-sale investments, unlisted (1,312) (1,028)
DA Ay 2 2 B ) £5F 3 B =2 Share-based payments expenses 131,149 165,781
BIE RS BB SE SRR Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 9,827,882 8,636,717
F &R Increase in inventories (63,144) (178,126)
T BE R ) 3 JFRAE W 3 Increase in properties under development
for sales and properties held for sales (1,379,853)  (4,438,286)
TR W R A R WS OB Increase in accounts and other receivables,
4 B TS R IE B deposits and prepayments (753,950) (827,703)
B i ] 42 ) KO 1 Increase in amounts due from jointly
controlled entities (15,488) (5,722)
B AF e ] 42 ) S UL Increase in amounts due to jointly controlled
entities 248,527 717,051
AT B ~ Ot 4 KR Increase in accounts payable, deposits received
and accrued charges 6,340,923 9,074,721
HEEENBRE Cash from operations 14,204,897 12,978,652
A5 A B A3 Bt PRC income tax paid (2,574,097)  (2,499,870)
AL T B P 4 Bl NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 11,630,800 10,478,782

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE—B -l R

For the year ended December 31, 2012

e St
2012 2011
AREETFL ARETIL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BEED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
TEA & S IE S N Additions to prepaid lease payments (12,684,697)  (7,194,9006)
Eia</ES | Additions to investment properties (1,533,501)  (1,665,252)
WS B =t 7 FREE T S AT A 4 4 Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights (1,872,153)  (2,155,361)
WO — R M8 A Acquisition of a subsidiary — 36,824
i — 2R B[] 12 i e A i S Dividend received from a jointly controlled entity 52,487 —
AT RAT 50 Placement of pledged bank deposits (290,252) (75,123)
PRI AR SRAT 77 3K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 469,165 168,417
EAIZE - R skt Purchase of property, plant and equipment (41,770) (31,591)
B ALE Interest received 139,813 140,590
HEYIE ~ B B e B A5 aKOR Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 9,933 1,435
T B A P S Dividend received from available-for-sale
investments 1,312 1,028

BB B P FH B NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ (15,749,663) (10,773,939)
iy gr FINANCING ACTIVITIES
e RS o J 2 ) 14 AR SN 2 Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries — (177,407)
AR R AT B oAt Repayment of bank and other loans (7,219,558)  (7,353,990)
EAfHFILE Interest paid (1,989,072)  (1,412,287)
HTHEARAT e HoAth K New bank and other loans raised 13,556,259 9,371,509
AT e R T A5 A Proceeds from issue of senior notes 2,513,560 4,909,200
BT SR B Expenses on issue of senior notes (43,529) (104,696)
JEFE I i i Capital injected from non-controlling interests — 102,786
BT IR AD i 15 2K 0H Proceeds from issue of shares 2,565,338 381
BAT AR B 3 Expenses on issue of shares (11,708) —
B 1] JE 75 i 2 S A 1 BB Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (50,379) (190,667)
et R Dividend paid (902,980) (515,505)
il 5 % 180 O 7 B NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 8,417,931 4,629,324
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

WE-Z—THEFHAZ—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

—FCFE ZEZ
2012 2011
ANRIETIE  ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
B4 KB &5 In A CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,299,068 4,334,167
SERTI B T B CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 14,120,925 9,863,132
e 3% 5 B 1 5 28 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (36,473) (76,374)
ERMBLE R BEEEHY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 18,383,520 14,120,925
B4 KB &5 EMAE R A ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
SRAITHE R LB & Bank balances and cash 18,383,520 14,120,925

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]




ok 8 25 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on December 21, 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”).
The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The addresses of the principal place of business of the Company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong are 7/
F, Tower 2, FuSheng Building, No. 4 Huixin East Street, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, and 15/F, 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong,

respectively.

The principal place of business of the trustee of Wu Family Trust is Level
13, 1 Queen’s Road Central Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the

principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 44.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the Company and its major

subsidiaries.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to
IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets;

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

- Transfers of Financial Assets.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to IFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

4F #t Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2012
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to IAS 12
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets in the current year. Under
the amendments, investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain

circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair value model.
As a result of the application of the amendments to IAS 12, the directors
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group's investment properties are held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, the directors have determined that the “sale” presumption
set out in the amendments to IAS 12 is rebutted. Deferred taxation in
relation to the investment properties was and is continued to be measured
based on the tax consequences of recovering through use. Hence, the
application of the amendments to IAS 12 has no effect on the Group’s
financial performance and financial position in the current and prior

periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

PRER B e R — R R 2 =R —— AR R BUg!
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle'
Wi — e MEE e AR

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’

8 5% 5 3 5 4 U5 0 58 D B 5 0 o5 48 U255 7 SR A6 T A I o s Y ) 565 9% 2 B ) A 2 1 A B A R >

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures’

B P R A M L 10 B~ BUBRIA RSO RS 109 AR A RABEGR » JUR P R A R b R RS

e B 5 5 Y6 R 12 SR AB R T A
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IERS 12

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle issued in
June 2012

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle include a number
of amendments to various IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Amendments to IFRSs
include the amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and

the amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The amendments to IAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by equipment
and servicing equipment should be classified as property, plant and
equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment in IAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The directors do not
anticipate that the application of the amendments will have a material

effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify that income tax on distributions
to holders of an equity instrument and transaction costs of an equity
transaction should be accounted for in accordance with IAS 12 Income
Taxes. The directors anticipate that the amendments to IAS 32 will have
no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group

has already adopted this treatment.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes
the requirements for the classification and measurement of financial

liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit

or loss.

. With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,

2015, with eatlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in
the future may have significant impact on amounts reported in respect
of the Group's financial assets. The directors of the Company are in the

process of ascertaining the financial impact.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures was issued, including IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS
12, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011).
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements. SIC-Int
12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon
the effective date of IFRS 10. Under IFRS 10, there is only one basis
for consolidation, that is, control. In addition, IFRS 10 includes a new
definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been

added in IFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. IFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control should be classified. SIC - Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities -
Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon
the effective date of IFRS 11. Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under IAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities,
jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition,
joint ventures under IFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under
IAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of accounting or

proportionate consolidation.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements

in IFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In 2012, the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 were issued
to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of these five
IFRS:s for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013 with earlier application permitted provided that all

of these standards are applied at the same time.

These five standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning January 1, 2013.
Taking into account the new definition of control and the additional
guidance on control set out in IFRS 10, the directors of the Company
have a preliminary review on the group structure and anticipate that the
application of IFRS 10 will have no material impact on the consolidation
financial statements, based on the existing group structure. The directors
of the Company are in the process of ascertaining the financial impact on

application of the remaining four standards.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope
of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements
in IFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by

IFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the new standard may affect certain
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and result in
more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
directors of the Company are in the process of ascertaining the financial

impact.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income introduce new terminology for the statement of comprehensive
income and income statement. Under the amendments to IAS 1, a
“statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as a ‘statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’ and an ‘income statement’
is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss”. The amendments to IAS
1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to IAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions
are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis - the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income either before tax

or net of tax.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after July 1, 2012. The presentation of items of other comprehensive
income will be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied

in future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for the investment properties and financial instruments
that are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the

Group's equity therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
cartying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e., reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly

controlled entity.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related

costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred taxation assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire or share based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquitee are measured in accordance with IFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting

policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis

specified in another standard.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales

related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised upon delivery of the properties to the buyers, at which time all

of the following criteria are satisfied:

. the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are

transferred to buyers;

o neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the properties

are retained,;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management and related service fees are recognised in the period

in which the services are rendered.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services are rendered.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Promotion and advertising income is recognised when advertisements are
displayed on the advertising screens; or ratably over the displayed period

of the advertisement contract.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included

in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties

under construction.

Property under construction or development for future use as an
investment property is classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment property under construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or development is completed, in
which time any difference between the fair value and the carrying amount

will be recognised in profit or loss in that period.

Properties under development for sales and properties held for sales are
transferred to investment properties under construction and completed
investment properties, respectively when it is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its

previous carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the

profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for administrative
purposes (other than properties under development) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than properties under development) over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development
for production, rental or for administrative purposes, the release of the
leasehold land is included as part of the costs of the properties under
development. Properties under development not for sale are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Properties under development
which are intended to be held for own use are shown as non-current

assets.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for land use
rights and are initially recognised at cost and released to profit or loss, or
capitalised as part of the cost of building as mentioned above, over the
lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that are classified and
accounted for as properties under development intended to be held for

sale.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over these policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associates. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of an associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included within

the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group'’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with TAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group' consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate that are not related to the Group.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which the venturers have joint control over the economic

activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
jointly controlled entities. When the Group's share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly

controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a jointly controlled entity
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is

included within the carrying amount of the investment.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not

related to the Group.

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development are classified as current assets, and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the related
land cost, development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,

borrowing costs capitalised.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to properties held

for sales upon completion.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the costs of land, development expenditure incurred
and, where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value

is determined based on prevailing market conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables or
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial

recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees, points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
accounts and other receivables and deposits, amounts due from jointly
controlled entities, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss

on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit

or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment

loss on financial assets below).

4F #t Annual Report 2012




o B U 25 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ey ST

For the year ended December 31, 2012

FEEFBOR @)
SMITH )

S RERE ()

2B R
SHEEGNAREWRTEREH W
HIg - SREENERBEEEL S
Tl A £ R R B TR R A
RELMEEREEY —HR L HE
52 3 5 ZEREAR B W o

SR A B T E > HAFEK
e SR AT R AR RS - A TR
% B g

so B K I TR MR R 5+ (A B
IRk

o EEAT NS F Oy B E K B R
# B

o EAY (A R B AE A A R R S AR
%) 5 B

o BN B & B A BT M
415 =

o HRBEIRNE - RN
B2 -

B TR0 B 2l (o B Wi B ) T
oA RAERBARENEE G AT
— (F TG E o IR AL B
% 1BLAS IR B 45 A% 4 TR 1 Wik 8
AL T T K (R gL £ 65 009) SR s
I 2% S5 7 A AR D i 35 A B A A
FEWGHRIE R RE AR -

52 30 8 A 1 R F < O 2 W B 4R
S BRE RD M T [ B4 < K 7 i
R 1 BB it R AR B R B
b iil:bP=

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to

be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

U breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

U disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as accounts receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period, observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss

will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of accounts and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When an account and
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net cartying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including accounts payable, amounts due to jointly
controlled entities, senior notes and bank and other borrowings) are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the

hedge relationship.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges for foreign currency

and interest rate movements exposure (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in

offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit

or loss and is included in the ‘other gains or losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or loss
in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in the
same line of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as the

recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain
or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the hedged

risk is ultimately recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with TAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition

policy.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental

expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group

assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of

the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,

plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e., the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred taxation liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred taxation assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred taxation
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at each end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For the purposes of measuring
deferred taxation liabilities or deferred taxation assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred taxation liabilities
and deferred taxation assets for such investment properties are measured
in accordance with the above general principles set out in IAS 12 (i.e.,

based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred taxation are recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxation
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred taxation arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, which is a defined
contribution plan, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments
to defined contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under
the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution

retirement benefit plan.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options/share awards to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options or shares granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase

in equity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options or shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share

option reserve or capital contribution reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will

be transferred to retained earnings.

For any modification to the terms and conditions of share options granted,
the incremental fair value granted is determined at the difference between
the fair value of the modified share options and that of the original share

options, both estimated as at the date of the modification.

If the modification occurs during the vesting period, the incremental fair
value granted is included in the measurement of the amount recognised
for services received over the period from the modification date until the
date when the modified share options vest, in addition to the amount
based on the grant date fair value of the original share options, which is

recognised over the remainder of the original vesting period.

If the modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental fair value

granted is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Whete an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair values based on the valuation
petformed by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
values, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation report,
the directors of the Company have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss recognised in

profit or loss.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Income tax expense

As at December 31, 2012, deferred taxation assets of RMB1,012,836,000
(2011: RMB669,202,000) mainly in relation to tax losses, land

appreciation tax provisions, allowance for doubtful debts, government

grants, unrealised profit on intra-group purchases and others have been
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position,
after offsetting certain deferred taxation liabilities as set out in note
32. The realisability of the deferred taxation assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. The directors of the Company determine the
deferred taxation assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted
tax rates and the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred taxation assets are expected to
be utilised. The directors of the Company review the assumptions and
profit projections by the end of the reporting period. In cases where
the actual future profits generated are more or less than expected, an
additional recognition or a reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

recognition or reversal takes place.

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst different
tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the
Group have not yet finalised their land appreciation tax calculations
and payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgment is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The Group recognises
land appreciation tax based on management’s best estimates. The final tax
outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
and these differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with

local tax authorities.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (i.e., the executive directors of the Company) in

order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their types of
activities, based on which information is prepared and reported to the
Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance. The Group's operating
segments under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are identified as three main

operations:

. Property development: this segment develops and sells office
premises, commercial and residential properties. All of the Group’s

activities in this regard are carried out in the PRC.

o Property investment: this segment leases investment properties,
which are developed by the Group to generate rental income and
to gain from the appreciation in the properties’ values in the long
term. Currently the Group's investment property portfolio mainly

comprises retail properties and are all located in the PRC.

o Property management and related services: this segment mainly
represents the income generated from property management.
Currently the Group's activities in this regard are carried out in the
PRC.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Company’s executive directors
monitor the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to

each operating segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets directly
attributable to each segment with the exception of certain property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, deposits paid for
acquisition of land use rights, interests in associates and jointly
controlled entities, available-for-sale investments, deferred taxation
assets, taxation recoverable and other corporate assets. Other
corporate assets are not allocated to the operating segments because
they are head office assets or assets which are managed centrally by
the Group. The investment properties included in segment assets
are stated at cost when assessed by the chief operating decision
maker. Segment liabilities include trade payables and accrued
expenditure on construction, bills payable, deposits received and
receipt in advance from property sales, and other payables but
exclude taxation payable, deferred taxation liabilities, bank and
other borrowings, senior notes, derivative financial instruments
and other corporate liabilities. Other corporate liabilities are not
allocated to the operating segment because they are head office

liabilities or liabilities which are managed on a group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. Segment profit does not include the
Group's share of results arising from the activities of the Group's

jointly controlled entities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation, share of results of jointly
controlled entities, change in fair value of investment properties
and upon transfer to investment properties, and finance costs
(“Adjusted Earnings”), where “interest” is regarded as including
investment income and “depreciation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at Adjusted
Earnings the Group's earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as directors’
and auditor’s remuneration and other head office or corporate

administration costs.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment

profit, management is provided with segment information

T &5 ) K concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales) and additions

to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their

operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices

TSEHHNR % 5 G B 4 2 o charged to external parties for similar service.

A BA S B TR ERL SR

Information regarding the Group's operating segments is set out

o below.
BEZZ-"HEFTA=T—HIEEE
Year ended December 31, 2012

WEEIR

A TR

Property

LB MR E management
Property Property  and related gt
development  investment services Total
ARWFLE  AREFLZ  ARWFL  ARFFL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
RESMREFRRA Revenue from external customers 26,946,129 483,373 463,328 27,892,830
rEpEA Inter-segment revenue — — 81,607 81,607
ViR N Segment revenue 26,946,129 483,373 544,935 27,974,437
i ] (B8R 2 ) Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 9,941,407 380,066 173,057 10,494,530
SR Segment assets 67,084,344 9,491,397 22,553 76,598,294
A K Segment liabilities 44,819,990 202,010 6,352 45,028,352
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5. R ) 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) EPESE - BEERAM ) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

HWE-F——EF-H=t—HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2011

WEER L

B B

Property

E 43 WERE  management
Property Property  and related KD
development  investment services Total

ARWTFL  ARETT ARHTT ARKTIL
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R EIMEEFHUA Revenue from external customers 23,376,012 402,167 314,714 24,092,893
IR A Inter-segment revenue — — 57,020 57,020
AHBICA Segment revenue 23,376,012 402,167 371,734 24,149913
43 A (AR TR ) Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 8,736,177 309,601 80,066 9,125,844
o Segment assets 52,787,549 5,597,628 17,524 58,402,701
oL R Segment liabilities 38,141,552 89,621 5432 38,236,605
Hefo sy i ¥t Other segment information

WEFHR

T P

Property

IES WERE management
Property Property  and related At
development  investment services Total

ANRHTT ARKTT ARWTT ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

TR E I Amounts included in the measure

Pt A Z 50 - of segment assets:
—F—-_ 2012
BB G () Additions to non-current assets (Note) 27,992 1,543,403 3,876 1,575,271
ZF 2011
NEEREEE (k) Additions to non-current assets (Note) 26,479 1,667,442 2,922 1,696,843
ML : RIAGFEREREWEURY Note:  Amounts comprise additions to investment properties and property, plant

% R Rt o and equipment.
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5. JHBER

(a)

(b)

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

AL BEKAGE @) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
5 188 A B 2 v ) Y 2 B R In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
G FERE PR R B A profit, the chief operating decision maker is provided with
EELGAER > FA RN information concerning the Group’s consolidated amount of
BN T RO 55 B B A5 AR BH 2E 4 (i interests in associates and related share of results (if any), interests
)~ S ] AL Y ME 25 % in jointly controlled entities and related share of results, changes in
IRAABHEE AR ~ BUE )26 N & fair value of investment properties and upon transfer to investment
BRI TEAE S ~ HARIA - properties, other income, other gains, finance costs from
oMb s ~ 18 R A Y A R borrowings, depreciation and impairment losses (if any) which are
P18 DA AT 40 TiE 2 898 40 S0 A Uk not allocated to operating segments.
{EER () -
SHEPMN ~ HaE - BERA (b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,
& 1 R assets and liabilities
i
2012 2011
ANR¥EFE AR TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
WA Revenue
SRR Segment revenue 27,974,437 24,149,913
3 SO 3 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (81,607) (57,020)
HEAIRA Consolidated revenue 27,892,830 24,092,893
it A Profit
3 v ) Segment profit 10,494,530 9,125,844
HAt A Other income 182,839 168,934
FoAth (fe48) Ui i Other (losses) gains (11,814) 106,653
Fair value gain upon transfer to
TR 1 4% W E RN A B i AR investment properties 293,107 916,115
REMEN AT EEE) Change in fair value of investment properties 1,015,475 1,714,447
il AR Finance costs (47,612) (202,141)
JREE Ak e ] 5 o) B 2 4 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 247,760 323,526
ik Depreciation (33,232) (26,924)
R AT BL B3 Unallocated expenses (839,511) (682,224)
S A BRI Consolidated profit before taxation 11,301,542 11,444,230
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5. IBER )
(b) #AEWA -~ HiE - EEKA

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

R R (40) assets and liabilities (Continued)
“F T4 R4
2012 2011
ANRWEFE AR TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
2903 Assets
IR Segment assets 76,598,294 58,402,701
BEW N N TH RS Cumulative change in fair value of investment
properties 8,930,669 7,622,087
T B F0E Prepaid lease payments 8,996,739 6,721,986
TR W O ) i Interests in associates 1 1
L ] 2 o O Interests in jointly controlled entities 2,068,488 1,873,215
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 8,600 8,600
W i 3 7 R REE BT AT A 4 Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 6,949,391 5,837,699
RALHL A G = Deferred taxation assets 1,012,836 669,202
A i [e] i TE Taxation recoverable 2,222,095 1,081,031
R0 T K B A Unallocated head office and other assets 18,639,384 15,043,519
FREEME Consolidated total assets 125,426,497 97,260,041
=L Liabilities
G 5L Segment liabilities 45,028,352 38,236,605
JRE A A Taxation payable 7,899,467 4,788,074
IR AE R IH A fi Deferred taxation liabilities 2,432,002 2,196,726
SRAT I HAth A 5K Bank and other borrowings 25,583,786 19,226,252
BRI Senior notes 7,252,980 4,740,473
A 4 ft TR Derivative financial instruments 114,152 —
R A3 i A % At £ 1R Unallocated head office and other liabilities 4,538,346 3,977,241
e R B Consolidated total liabilities 92,849,085 73,165,371
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5. B EER a0 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(o) B KR st as (¢) Revenue from major product and services
AREE G EYE - BEYE KR The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
PR 5 die g AT n R propetties sold, properties invested and services provided:
e
2012 2011

ANBWTFIL ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

HEY ¥ Sales of properties 26,946,129 23,376,012
&Y Leasing of properties 483,373 402,167
FRAILY) 2578 PR S Provision of property management services 463,328 314,714

27,892,830 24,092,893

(d) HEER (d) Geographic information
S VUL L E RES-CE 3 The following table sets out information about the Group's revenue
PR R BT 7 A R kT A B AR from external customers by cities in the PRC, based on the location
LR AR ARG - 3 at which the properties are sold, properties are invested and services
TG G R G e R B are provided. Information about its non-current assets is analysed
AT by geographical location of assets.
HE S
L9l ON
Revenue from Ferw
external customers Non-current assets
R R CRTHE CFE
2012 2011 2012 2011

ARETL AEWTT ARKETE ARBTIL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Y Chongging 8918384 4951492 16,065,609 12,406,683
TP Chengdu 2,788,468 3,926,284 3,624,105 3,077,689
b Beijing 6,092,996 10,827,469 5,402,335 7,723,633
35 Sunan 3,651,550 1,610,582 1,374,611 1,016,825
[ A 4 T Other cities in the PRC 6,441,432 2,777,066 10,117,447 3,581,354

27,802,830 24,092,893 36,584,107 27,806,184

WEE : EREGEE SRS R T A Lk Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred taxation
Eﬁﬁjﬁg% ° assets.

A e B B — AR B AT R0 5 i No revenue from transaction with single external customer is

A AR 109% B0 o amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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6. FABA 6. OTHER INCOME
ek -5
2012 2011
ARl TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE U A Interest income 139,813 140,590
B ONT RN Consultancy fee income (Note 1) — 1,585
AT R RCE R R R A Dividend income from unlisted
available-for-sale investments 1,312 1,028
UM HERS Government subsidies 16,040 658
THESH B S U A Promotion and advertising income — 19,677
A (Hf5E2) Penalty income (Note 2) 16,400 4,897
METEIRTA Sundry income 9,274 499
At Total 182,839 168,934
BT 1. A B o ) 1) 8 S 5 = iR B Note 1: It represents the design, decoration and consulting services related to real estate
Hh S BB RO RE ST A S IRAS o development provided by the Group to independent third parties in the PRC.
Mizk o Fe Rk L EAZEEHZNYEER Note 2: It represents penalty received from property buyers who do not execute sales and
W B 745 o purchase agreement on property sales.
7. Hofb () W ti 7. OTHER (LOSSES) GAINS
—2—f —z——%
2012 2011
ARWBTFIT  AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEYIE - R B i i Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 6,379 3
57, O 45 i i 548 (FRSE) Net exchange (loss) gain (Note) (18,193) 106,650
(11,814) 106,653
WisE : SRR & AT (T e ) B3 n (138 ) Note: It represents exchange difference arising from bank balances, bank borrowings and
OSRATAEBR ~ SRAT A B B S S e AR 1Y senior notes, original currencies of which are either Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD”) or
HE 5,223 - United States Dollar (‘USD”).
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

8. FINANCE COSTS

S
2012 2011
ABBTE  ARKTE
RMB’000 RMB’000

Interest on bank and other borrowings

Wholly repayable within five years (1,515,565)  (1,190,505)
Not wholly repayable within five years (53,388) (7,808)
Interest expense on senior notes (501,708) (342,973)

Less: Amount capitalised to properties
under development 2,023,049 1,339,145

(47,612) (202,141)

B AL A B R AR B R B AR AR Y —
MR RBE_F— "4+ A
Et—HILFEEREFECIR(ZF——
4 6.20) MEARLILRGEIE > AR
BB B X o

Borrowing costs capitalised arose on the general borrowing pool of the
Group and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 6.9%
(2011: 6.2%) per annum for the year ended December 31, 2012, to

expenditure on the qualifying assets.
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9. PBifBib X 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
= N
2012 2011
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
R A IH Current tax
B ZE TR B ([ SEHE (B ) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (2,439,303)  (2,066,945)
o B b g A B ([ s (B 1) PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) (2,136,277)  (2,087,284)
(4,575,580)  (4,154,229)
AR B R AR A - Overprovision in prior years:
TR LAT* 31,154 —
(4,544,426)  (4,154,229)
iR LB JE (B 3E 32) Deferred taxation (note 32)
AR Current year 108,358 (369,713)
(4,436,068)  (4,523,942)
* BE-Z—-—"H+-H=1+—HILEE * The actual appreciation value of a property project had been finalised in the year

bR — (R 4 378 ) BT P 0 (B AR S AR A
SR At B S ARTR] > SRR AR T 3
(LB R

MR AL BB BEAE B ER A&
W BOI A A AR BL AR -

AR 4% v B A 2 A3 Bk ([ T 18 B
%) RAEFERILEREN > A%
TNFE—H—H L dr B 2w B
355 25% o

ARFRPEEENETHELFSE
H A RGN 25 A B B B AR SE T A
Bl e

AR AR B v 2 3 75 RS R AR
AR ) A T A 1 R ELOE o 2 8
D S5 1 A B N ) A R A S
BBIB R o fif i % O 7 52 SRR P 1
A R AR A 709 > AU
A F— AR 159 BB BURAU 4
EIRR > MR B BRI
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ended December 31, 2012 which differed from the management’s estimated
appreciation value made in prior years, resulting in an overprovision of LAT in

respect of prior years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group

does not have income which arises in, or is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%

from January 1, 2008 onwards.

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible

for exemption from PRC EIT for both years.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and regulations,
preferential corporate income tax rates have been granted to certain of the
Company's PRC subsidiaries which were established in western regions
and engaged in the encouraged business. These companies are subject to a
preferential rate of 15% in 2012, subject to approval of the tax authority,
if the annual income derived from the encouraged business is more than

70% of the annual total income.
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Prfa B i 5 (40)

A4 FE il B B4 A 4 T U 45 2% A I B i
TR BRI

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2 2
2012 2011
ANBETL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
R L i A1) Profit before taxation 11,301,542 11,444,230
25% H) H Bl 4 3 B 1Bt PRC EIT at 25% (2,825,386)  (2,861,057)
B A s (] 2 ) 0 SE A A 5 o 2 Tax effect of share of results
of jointly controlled entities 61,940 80,881
SRBLIEIN 5 AS AT 1R B S Tax effect of expenses not deductible
BTS2 (ko) for tax purposes (Note a) (131,093) (172,070)
FUBLEIN 5 BEABLA MBI 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purposes 4,931 34,378
T (R LAT (2,136,277)  (2,087,284)
- 1 P S e 2 Tax effect of LAT 534,069 521,821
TEAFE R AR B A Overprovision in prior years 31,154 —
R T R B JE s 45 ) B TS o 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (1,027) (483)
AT B i A ) A Y Effect of tax exemption and preferential
o T e S P R 26 1 s 2 rates granted to certain PRC subsidiaries 25,621 5,889
1540 UK PR B Ve L o FE ARG (3T b) Withholding tax on retained profits
to be distributed (Note b) — (46,017)
R Tax charge for the year (4,436,068)  (4,523,942)
Bt 5k Notes:
a. 5255 G R T A AR A AR R A e 2 B a. The amount mainly comprises the tax effect of non-deductible corporate expenses
R T BB A ) B SRR HE A B T L E of the Group and the expenses of certain subsidiaries in excess of the allowable
P AT 11 3k IS 4 P S B 2 o deduction limits in accordance with the relevant tax regulations.
b. FRAB A Hb 0 7 v A T A B8 [ B 3 BT 15 b. According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong

38 4 0 OB B L A6 O P 2 DR ) I B
BLEE 12008111295 > 5% B FANBLBL 3
PR A A A A R AR D 259
5 s S A ) o R BCRE A A 1 o I I
BAAREE -F——F+_H=+—H
1145 JE BT 5 A 2 4R s 1) T 488 5 0 FEL 0 B
138

Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and

the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income” and Guoshuifa

20081112, where the Hong Kong resident company directly owns at least 25%

of the capital of the Mainland company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is

applicable. The amount represents the withholding income tax provided on the

undistributed profits arisen during the years ended December 31, 2011 of certain

PRC subsidiaries.
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WE-Z—THEFHAZ—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

10. AFJE & A

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

—F-"F —F—F
2012 2011
ARl TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RANER (FEA) Profit for the year has been arrived
B 5 TR 1 A B U A at after charging (crediting):
SR AT 4 Auditor’s remuneration 3,520 3,300
FEASH B A 1 ) SRR AR Cost of property inventories included in
cost of sales 16,070,157 13,952,604
Y2k - WE KB Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 33,232 26,924
WY - W B i Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (6,379) (3)
ROB T Y AR AH Minimum lease payment of operating lease rentals 19,623 16,029
BT A Staff costs
FEEHM (LRSS AR Directors’ emoluments (including equity-settled
FBC 3 i BEBE A 5 0 (BRFRE 11) share-based payments) (Note 11) 95,165 98,030
Fopth B T A Other staff costs
B R4 A 2R Retirement benefit contributions 108,425 71,535
VAHE 25 45 58 T Bty £ FEBREA A58 35 Equity-settled share-based payments 85,859 118,050
HAth B T A Other staff costs 922,980 689,899
e T A Total staff costs 1,212,429 977,514
W RPN E AL Less: Amount capitalised to properties
under development (524,222) (362,856)
688,207 614,658
BB BARH S UA Minimum lease income from investment properties 405,692 308,828
ERTEAON Contingent rental income 77,681 93,339
W A S AR B B Less: direct expenses that generated rental income (98,584) (80,040)
384,789 322,127
JRE A L ] 4 ) M O Share of tax of jointly controlled entities
(AR e [] 42 o 1 2 46 (included in share of results
of jointly controlled entities) 190,146 227,594

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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1. ®F - TR RERHM 0

BEZZ-HF A=t HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Rty
RIER
YN Bk ftak
RSt far] fAIfE% Equity-
HEHS Basic Retirement settled
Directors’ salaries and fBAL benefit ~ share-based FLEig
fees other benefits Bonus contributions  payments Total
ANRMTE  ARWTL  ARWTT  ARETT  ARMTTE  ARETFZ
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(k)
(Note)
BE-E-T& Year ended December 31, 2012
TZA=1—H
IHAERE
B4 Name of director
HirES: Executive Director:
REHLL Madam Wu Yajun - 5,000 5,000 80 - 10,080
& e ek Mr. Fang Shengtao = 1,231 = 29 2,907 4,167
R Mr. Qin Lihong — 3,200 2,600 72 5,425 11,297
Gl e Mr. Shao Mingxiao — 5,000 5,000 72 19,723 29,795
AR Mr. Zhou Dekang — 3,200 4,000 80 3,836 11,116
BHEEE M. Feng Jinyi — 3,200 4,000 67 5,703 12,970
BERE Mr. Wei Huaning — 3,200 3,800 72 6,698 13,770
B ES Independent non-executive ditector:
Frederick Peter
Churchouse 76 M. Frederick Peter Churchouse 243 — — — 250 493
B e Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek 213 - - — 253 496
VIR Dr. Xiang Bing 243 — — — 253 496
BEL Dr. Zeng Ming 243 — — — 242 485
972 24,031 24,400 472 45,290 95,165
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

11, EFS TR LREEFHM 11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

(#45) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
DR A
Rl f
R
A 1Bk fitsx
SRt AR AR Equity-
i 2k Basic Retirement settled
Directors  salaries and fedr benefit  share-based A5t
fees  other benefits Bonus  contributions payments Total

AREFE  ARETT  ARBTT  AR®TR  AREFE  ARNTX
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(HzE)
(Note)
H2-Z——4F Year ended December 31, 2011
+ZA=Z1—H
IHAEEE
EHEA Name of director
WirsEs: Executive Director:
REEL L Madam Wu Yajun — 3,698 5,000 68 — 8,766
[ b ek Mr. Fang Shengtao = 2,617 3,600 4 2,539 8,303
BRSLIEE Mr. Chen Kai = 1,051 — 20 3,782 4,853
RN Mr. Qin Lihong — 2,617 3,600 4 11,998 18,262
L e Mr. Shao Mingxiao - 3,351 5,000 48 10,882 19,281
AR Mr. Zhou Dekang = 2,617 3,600 49 5,284 11,550
Ve Mr. Feng Jinyi — 2477 3,600 51 5,019 11,147
REREE Mr. Wei Huaning = 2,420 3,600 48 7,344 13412
BuFHfTES Independent non-executive diector:
Frederick Peter
Churchouse &4 Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse 300 — — — 234 534
Py @it M:r. Chan Chi On, Derek 300 - — — 287 587
L Dr. Xiang Bing 300 — — — 287 587
Bt Dr. Zeng Ming 173 — — - 75 248
1,073 20,848 28,000 378 47,731 98,030

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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11.

[

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Shao Mingxiao is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as

the Chief Executive.

Note: The bonus relates to performance related incentive payment which is determined

based on performance of individual and as a percentage of the profit of the Group
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Employee’s emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included five (2011: five) directors for
the year ended December 31, 2012.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors of the
Company has waived any emoluments during the years ended December
31,2012 and 2011.

DIVIDEND

e

2012 2011
ARl T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Dividend recognised as distribution during
the year:
Final dividend paid in respect of 2011
of RMBO0.175
(2011: in respect of 2010 of RMBO0.1)
per share 902,980 515,505

AN EFERRERE T —-F
ToA=t—HIEFEMAEREAR
#1,085,755,000 G > & Mr A R ¥ 0.270
(ZE——F: HE_F——FT2H
SF—HIEFEEMRBKRE B AR
902,980,000 7 » it AR #0.1757C) >
i 2 15 P SR R i I SR 4K B of o

A final dividend of RMB1,085,755,000, representing RMBO0.2 per share,
in respect of the year ended December 31, 2012 (2011: final dividend
of RMB902,980,000, representing RMBO0.175 per share, in respect of
the year ended December 31, 2011) has been proposed by the directors
of the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

13. BEA 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
AN FI A N A A B AR % 38 2 R The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
5T T LA DA B the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
—%ck %k
2012 2011
ANBRETLT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARG R A K Earnings attributable to the owners of the Company
SRR AR A F A A 2 A for the purposes of calculation of basic
and diluted earnings per share 6,301,060 6,327,560
“%cE %k
2012 2011
T Tz
‘000 000
[ % H Number of shares
R GBI A A Y Weighted average number of ordinary shares
908 R R £ for the purpose of calculation
of basic earnings per share 5,238,342 5,155,049
i AR AT B 4 ) VE /R B 222 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
in respect of
- share options 46,990 22,693
R R e e v 2 Y Weighted average number of ordinary shares
90 J o R 4 for the purpose of calculation
of diluted earnings per share 5,285,332 5,177,742

WE__FE—"FF+_HA=+—HILF
B R ATRERAT A S A
RAT 1A [ A A =) 3 0 - 2 T A >
g R 2 R AT AR =%
FERET A= HEAGE AR
BERERES#HR -F——F—H
T A R o

BE-Z——H+-A=+—HILE
B> MR EERR % —F
ARAT O A2 AR A O P 3 T B > K
il B8 A P M B S AR %
FRFETZAZTZHERANERAR
BERBRESHR T ——%—H
b AR A A

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the share options granted on
January 17, 2011 under the Post-IPO share option scheme adopted
on December 23, 2009 are not included in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share as the adjusted exercise price was greater than the
average market price of the Company’s shares during the outstanding
petiod in 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the share options granted on
January 17, 2011 and September 28, 2011 under the Post-IPO share
option scheme adopted on December 23, 2009 are not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share as the adjusted exercise price was
greater than the average market price of the Company’s shares during the

outstanding period in 2011.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B rEREYE
BEWE  Investment

Completed roperties

P prop:

investment under st
properties  construction Total

ANRWTT  ARETFTLT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

FAIR VALUE
At January 1, 2011 7,326,300 714,700 8,041,000
Additions 43,858 1,621,394 1,665,252
Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 661,203 661,203
Transfer from properties held for sales (Note)
200,183 — 200,183

Transfer 175,111 (175,111) —
Fair value gain upon transfer of properties

held for sales to investment properties 276,417 — 276,417
Fair value gain upon transfer of prepaid

lease payments to investment properties — 639,698 639,698
Net increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss 276,331 1,438,116 1,714,447

=T
+ZHA=+—H

NE

TR TR R

WO R B
(Bt &E)

g

FEL Y EuRs
BEWEZ N TS

AR B R g
BEWEZ AT ER S

TR A R A A
I

At December 31, 2011
8,298,200 4,900,000 13,198,200

Additions 8,639 1,524,862 1,533,501
Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 2,186,077 2,186,077
Transfer from properties held for sales (Note)
156,940 — 156,940

Transfer 2,665,938 (2,665,938) —
Fair value gain upon transfer of properties

held for sales to investment properties 96,360 — 96,360
Fair value gain upon transfer of prepaid

lease payments to investment properties — 196,747 196,747
Net increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss 553,523 461,952 1,015,475

hF A At December 31, 2012
TH=Z1—H 11,779,600 6,603,700 18,383,300
fizk o B ANR AN LRSI S B » B Note: The transfers from properties held for sales to investment properties were made
YIERBD s A hﬂzﬂj’%%%ﬁﬁg‘ since there was a change in use as evidenced by the commencement of operating
BIEYE - leases to outside parties.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

14 BEWE

BEWEA M TR I -

AEBMBEEYFER BB AU
—ZERZF-—HF+ZA=+—HK
P BTG S e B A A O SN A0 B e ) —
R S5 R S A (LA 5 — AP A
S A L e S8 SE o 1T R ) CREA A B o
U 3 00 £ (B b 8 7 A SRR
L ALER) I %5 FUBETT I (W -

(0579 L 958 e 302
il

&Y - B AHEARGHSRA
FHRBEAEARE > WE %5 EAHY
SEATREE FT LA

TE FEW) 3 — FEH A B 0 361 AR R dm i %
Jie e I 9 B MR A (B SR S
58 FRLER FEE TR HL S8 1 RS % Bl % 1 A
MR BE SE B R IAE B

7% 5 1 A0 OB RRL < B AR B AR (T
[ B A AEL K o T M G ) SE R i LY
FE AR B A A SRS BB Y
e

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are all situated in the PRC under medium-

term lease.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at dates of transfer
and December 31, 2012 and 2011 have been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out on those dates by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, a firm of independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group, who have appropriate qualifications and recent

experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined by the

valuers on the following basis:

Completed properties - arrived at by capitalising the net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary

incoming potential of the respective properties.

Properties under construction - valued on the basis that they will be
developed and completed in accordance with the latest development
proposals and taken into account the construction costs that will be
expended to complete the development as well as developer’s profit

margin to reflect the quality of the completed development.

All of the Group's property interests in leasehold land and buildings to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the

fair value model and classified and accounted for as investment properties.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

15. W% ~ B Rt Al

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BN E
WEHEH  Bquipment
R Motor and At
Buildings vehicles furniture Total
ANRETT ARETFLT ARETFLT AREFL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AR COST
N_F——F—A—H At January 1, 2011 167,131 36,942 47,121 251,194
nE Additions 2,594 9,083 19,914 31,591
S B I /A ) Acquired upon acquisition
of a subsidiary — 37 70 107
e Disposals (925) (320) (1,837) (3,082)
REF——4EFZH=1—H At December 31, 2011 168,800 45,742 65,268 279,810
WE Additions 57 8,705 33,008 41,770
EREAE i ) S 1 Transfer from properties held for sales 6,121 — — 6,121
& Disposals (5,554) (2,266) (1,352) 9,172)
AN FR—THEF - H=+—H At December 31, 2012 169,424 52,181 96,924 318,529
REtirEE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
REZFE——F—H—H At January 1, 2011 34,772 20,993 23,688 79,453
SRR Charge for the year 8,315 5,730 12,879 26,924
5 R A Eliminated on disposals (18) (201) (1,431) (1,650)
RZFE——F+ZA=+—H At December 31, 2011 43,069 26,522 35,136 104,727
AR Charge for the year 8,240 7,161 17,831 33,232
A L 8 Eliminated on disposals (2,329) (2,153) (1,136) (5,618)
RZF—-ZHEFZA=+—H At December 31, 2012 48,980 31,530 51,831 132,341
HE T CARRYING VALUES
W_Z—-—#+-H=+—H At December 31, 2012 120,444 20,651 45,093 186,188
RoE——FFZA=+—H At December 31, 2011 125,731 19,220 30,132 175,083
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WE-Z—THEFHAZ—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

15. W3 ~ BB Rt o

Lty - R KB T B KSR R AR
T 4F ARG B A R B M (ELAR DL AR

iy

M A w48
4EH] 20 4F

TR 20%

At AR R 33%

HEFE T TE L 35 7 i v B > AR R

BHEA o

AR = F— R E——
A= — BT A {E T2 R
Bl -

16. B ALEEKH

TR AR B AR R A B T B4 7 P B R A Y
TR AT

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated

residual values at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the estimated useful lives of 20 years
Motor vehicles 20%

Equipment and furniture ~ 33%

The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC held under medium-

term leases.

The Group had not pledged any property, plant and equipment at
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments represents land use rights
held in the PRC and is analysed as follows:

R T DR

2012 2011

ANR¥EFLT ANRETIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

] Medium term 4,806,156 3,073,158
= Long term 4,190,583 3,648,828
JER[H Non-current 8,996,739 6,721,986

7 48 T LA LB TR AR B A AR B A
T 40 5F 2 70 SR VE ) S8 1Y £ i
FAHERT S AT A ZRIE R = — 4+
A=+—H > AREE MK A H SR
TR (B 49 N R 3,872,338,000 7 (=&
——4  NR#1,373,125,000 70) # FE AT
FELES A b (5 P

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent payments for acquisition
of the land use rights in the PRC with lease terms ranging from 40 to
70 years for the purpose of property development. The Group had not
yet obtained the certificates of land use rights of prepaid leases with a
carrying value of RMB3,872,338,000 (2011: RMB1,373,125,000) from

the relevant authorities at December 31, 2012.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

TR BB 2 W) R A 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
e St
2012 2011
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
FEAA > LT Cost of investments, unlisted 415 415
W DR IR (E R 1R Less: Impairment loss recognised (414) (414)
1 1
MNoE——HF+_H=Z=+—HZESEA Details of the associates as at December 31, 2012 are set out in note 44.
) PO A AR B 44
T 3 ] 35 1) B A i BE 2% 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
2% —z—F
2012 2011
ANRHEFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
I b G A Cost of investments, unlisted 1,311,275 1,311,275
R A i A i A+ IR MR Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividend received 757,213 561,940
2,068,488 1,873,215
[ -t il = e S E B A i Details of the jointly controlled entities as at December 31, 2012 are set
BRI R Bt 44 - out in note 44,
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18. A I I ¥ o BE e W B 2 ) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)

DAHE 25 € ik 51 R A0 A% 42 (B B A0 L [F) 2 The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly

i P A Y S DRI RS A T controlled entities attributable to the Group'’s interest therein which are

accounted for using the equity accounting method is set out below:
2% —z—&
2012 2011

ABHTE  ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

B G E Non-current assets 987,021 1,013,349

T B Current assets 2,788,530 2,321,654

b =N Current liabilities (958,318) (672,830)

FE T E A R Non-current liabilities (748,745) (788,958)

A Income 806,598 1,085,257

B Expenses (558,838) (761,731)
19. Wik AR 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

e
2012 2011
ABBFT  AEHTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

JE bSO Unlisted equity securities, at cost 8,600 8,600
El IR bR 2% B e R A T The above unlisted equity investments represent the investments in
SEEYFLAS BT B B AT JE F T RERS B unlisted equity securities issued by private entities established in the
H A 5% 25 4 1 4 TN S (8 4 48 PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
e AN TR SR SR reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
SEAE > iR & H 4 B R DL R A 41 significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that its
25 o fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]




20.

21.

22.

ok 8 25 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

eyl 20. INVENTORIES
e St
2012 2011
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
e g ) Construction materials 656,220 592,893
T2 i B At Consumables and others 989 1,172
657,209 594,065
?&E FP ﬁgﬁ%%% 21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES
e
2012 2011
ANRETFL ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
JRA COST
RAEH) At the beginning of the year 46,197,041 31,590,625
NE Additions 20,372,024 18,920,181
By T st | A AR O Transfer from prepaid lease payments upon
commencement of construction 8,984,328 8,285,597
W R E B Transfer to properties held for sales (17,826,332) (12,599,362)
A2 At the end of the year 57,727,061 46,197,041

FRPEYEYMR PR B
o

RE-FE—-ZHF+ZHA=+—H A%
i R 3 A B T M T
A B #36,194,000,000 TG (=% — — 4 :
N #32,426,000,000 7C) > 16 T 1 F )
HHARE - MA BT LR EERY
SRR (E -

FHAE Bk

ALMEFEEH EW MR PR - BT
FEIE B LA -

22.

The properties under development for sales are located in the PRC under

medium-term lease.

Included in the properties under development for sales classified as
current assets as at December 31, 2012 is carrying value of RMB36,194
million (2011: RMB32,426 million) which represents the carrying value
of the properties expected to be completed and sold after more than

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALES
The Group'’s properties held for sales are situated in the PRC. All the

properties held for sales are stated at cost.
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23, MEWCHE S R LB REMCEKJE - 23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
354 B WA X AND PREPAYMENTS

B o FEWCERTE E Ak 5 W68 B K W2 Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of properties and properties
B&E - FRBEEDENREHRERXBE investment. Considerations in respect of sales of properties are paid by
B E e R St e M ERE T purchasers in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase
T > FH 4 U A d FELF S W 8 AR 9 Al agreements. For properties investment, rental income are paid by tenants
AL o within two months in accordance with the terms in the tenant agreement.
—g =g
2012 2011

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

& 5 MW IR Trade receivables 334,977 128,367
HoARENRIE » WCOR B Other receivables, net of allowance for

doubtful debts 922,613 923,169
1] 4% i A K Advances to suppliers 543,975 308,859
TEA SR K H AR A Prepaid business tax and other taxes 2,280,980 1,965,625
TR SR B i e i Prepayments and utilities deposits 15,701 18,276

4,098,246 3,344,296

DLF B B R $ B 2 H O 25 1 5 The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
JRE 5 2T A B B A0 AT reporting period based on invoice date:
2% —z——&
2012 2011

ARHTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

60 HIA Within 60 days 284,169 65,269
612180 H 61 - 180 days 26,501 11,681
181 % 365 H 181 - 365 days 24,307 51,417
334,977 128,367
AR A =Z—H o 15%(= At December 31, 2012, 15% (2011: 50%) of the trade receivables are
F——14F 1 50%) 19 E 5 MWK I e neither past due nor impaired and with satisfactory credit quality.

WM > BEEERSANE -

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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M M kB L il VB O >

54 BB sk )
MR-+ HA=+—Hit A K%
VR B 4 B 1 2 ) MBS T 2 R T
{H 5 # N R W 284,544,000 6 ( & ——
M0 KR 64,643,000 70) » HE R R
PAEY > HHRAEEREE THE
KPR BB ERG AT
L YR v 7 1 A S P R i T 4
4 A B I 0 R R e W e A o

SO (EL Ak (2 5 B WK I A1) R 0 T -

25

RE-Z-HFZA=ST—HIREE
For the year ended December 31, 2012

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Included in the Group's accounts receivable balance are trade receivables
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB284,544,000 (2011:
RMB64,643,000) at December 31, 2012 which are past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment as the Group has retained the legal titles of the properties
sold to these customers and the estimated fair value of the relevant
properties is expected to be higher than the outstanding receivable

amount.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

SR DR

2012 2011

AR  ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

60 HIA Within 60 days 233,736 1,545
61 %180 H 61 - 180 days 26,501 11,681
181 %365 H 181 - 365 days 24,307 51,417
HEr Total 284,544 64,643

A i 5 R o M WS B T A i [ > A
BI5 B8 B B U R B H A TR
B o BUGRE HE R ML EE) - h
JA % 5 HEBERE R EL e 2 - i f B B
EPREEAR -

BRALM R T - AL HE R R EE
AT RSB E R F 2R RER > A
i C R s MR AR th e R - PR A
A A8 300 0 R B AEL PO 5 R A BB 9 £

MoF——HE+A=+—H  HffE
WOHOR F AR & A - el i
BERAHEE 2R TRES Bk
AF 3R B B AL A 1) 309 F m] 4R 2 Y 45 JH I
HMBES > 2S5 RECHEHAR
12,000,000 G (= &F — — 4 AR ¥
12,000,000 7G) » J§ (R 2 2 07 fE A B 2
{1 B B PR 8 L 52 8 AUt % 55 45 i
B ATATHER o 8% T A0S Bk v AR o

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables from
the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.
The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being

large and unrelated.

Before accepting any customers, the Group uses an internal credit
assessment system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and
considers adequate allowance has been made at the end of the reporting
period. Balances which are neither past due nor impaired are all with

good credit quality.

Other receivables mainly comprise of rental deposits, receivable of refund
of the deposit for land auction, deposits for construction work, temporary
payments and miscellaneous projects related deposits paid which are
refundable upon maturity, of which, approximately RMB12,000,000
(2011: RMB12,000,000) was impaired as at December 31, 2012 because
the counterparties are in severe financial difficulties and the Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The remaining balance was

not yet due for repayment.
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23.

24.

25.

M Mk kB L il VB IR >
g BB K )
FUORRICHOR IR IR D) -

) PR K R

25

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other receivables:

g% -z
2012 2011
AREFTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Balance at the beginning of the year and
at the end of the year 12,000 12,000

MBI I o ol etk 2

Wi ) 2 o A ORISR - 2B H
IR — AN -

TG BRAT ARk AT 45 B
&

CAEM R AU ANRWFHE - FEE
BT RATIAAR > R ATF R
wER R FE—-—HFE+ -H=1+—
Ho 3 EEFFRB035% (2%
——4F 1 0.5%) °

W F— M BB IER - &AM
FER 0 % 2 SRAT 45 68 B B B B 6 2 4
AR AT T A B N R %321,895,000 7T
(ZF——4 + NR" 268,462,000 7C) >
R G E Y SE R RIEH -

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

24.

25.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

The amounts due from jointly-controlled entities are unsecured, interest-

free and are repayable within one year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits are denominated in RMB which mainly represent
deposits pledged to banks to secure the mortgage guarantees provided
to customers. The deposits carry fixed rate at 0.35% (2011: 0.5%) per

annum at December 31, 2012.

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position are balances which, in accordance with the applicable
government regulations prevailing in 2012, are placed in restricted bank
deposits, amounting to of RMB321,895,000 (2011: RMB268,462,000),
which can only be applied in the designated property development

projects.
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25. CICPRATIES $47458%  25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES

BBl ) AND CASH (Continued)
SR RS AEALEBBEENE S Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and demand
e JE S HA 3 PR A =0 F B LA N BT A deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The interest
oo RITMBE & FTAEF KRR E 39 rates on cash placed with banks ranged from nil to 3% (2011: nil to 3.5%)
(ZF——  EF35%) ° per annum.
N
2012 2011
ANRWEETFL AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e B4 BT I E AR R T AR 3K Analysis of pledged bank deposits/bank balances
RITHEBR B2 and cash by currency:
— M AR¥FHE — Denominated in RMB 14,949,588 12,879,964
— DU et E — Denominated in HKD 1,787,906 24,586
— DAETTRHE — Denominated in USD 1,873,238 1,622,500

18,610,732 14,527,050
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26. BEAFIER - Ok 4 B ER 26, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

#H ACCRUED CHARGES
2k -z
2012 2011
ARMFIL ARWFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 REA 0 K Trade payables and accrued expenditure
JERT A S B 5 on construction 4,197,276 3,665,035
T ZE 45 Bills payable — 1,852
EALEIEYEIES s Deposits received and receipt in advance
FEUCRIA from property sales 40,845,115 34,569,718
Hfth JRE A T B B 1R D () Other payables and accrued charges (Note) 3,472,610 3,174,071
48,515,001 41,410,676
FfF=E o At Ao 0 Je e ) R E AR K Note: Other payables and accrued charges comprise mainly tax received and payable to the
B REATEUR I 2 Uk 3280 - EST 54 i government on behalf of customers, accrued salaries and accrued staff welfare.

it B LAEF o

B T MR A R T B JRE o B S B R R A Trade payables and accrued expenditure on construction comprise
B ) B HoAIE AR B B S > TIARIEA LR construction costs and other project-related expenses which are payable
it 2 1 T O R S A o AR A based on project progress measured by the Group. The Group has
W5 S A S BOSR - DAREAR BT AT K financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
MG B AR - settled within the credit timeframe.

IR R 3R > B 5 e 0R - e The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and accrued
TR ] S AT S ) R A expenditure on construction and bills payable at the end of the reporting

period:

SR "Z——4F
2012 2011
ARETFL ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000

60 HIA Within 60 days 3,146,952 2,520,267
612180 H 61 - 180 days 437,526 734,431
181 2365 H 181 - 365 days 199,552 178,561
1824 1 - 2 years 357,561 214,283
2R3 2 - 3 years 40,114 7,449
A 3 4F Over 3 years 15,571 11,896

4,197,276 3,666,887

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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R Ak 3 i e o) 6k 27. AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ZaEHUNREEHE > AR - 2R The amounts are denominated in RMB which are unsecured, interest-free
AR BRI - and repayable on demand.
AT B A Ak 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
R —F——F
2012 2011
ARETTE AR¥TT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
SATE > A Bank loans, secured 15,223,211 9,199,252
SRATRK > JEHEHR Bank loans, unsecured 8,968,587 8,637,076
B A Bond, secured 1,391,988 1,389,924
25,583,786 19,226,252
R A A BR A fE 222 (B3 ) The borrowings are repayable (Note):
BT R I
2012 2011
ANRETTE ARETIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
—4EN Within one year 5,108,752 3,580,372
Z IR —4 > [HN R AR More than one year, but not exceeding two years 11,573,111 6,205,534
ZNWAE » (HA = More than two years, but not exceeding three years 6,381,735 6,194,002
LA A (R R Y 4 More than three years, but not exceeding four years 1,623,988 1,396,420
ZIRMAE > (B T A More than four years, but not exceeding five years 90,000 1,489,924
AR LA Exceeding five years 806,200 360,000
25,583,786 19,226,252
W B A RTR Less: Amount due within one year shown
— 4N B F0R under current liabilities (5,108,752)  (3,580,372)
— AR B A Amount due after one year 20,475,034 15,645,880
FfF=E < 2 A2 IE T AR I8 Bk i A st ) 7 Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
HA7R © agreements.
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28. BT R ICAbAE K ) 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

5 —z——%
2012 2011
ARWFIL ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

KA BT Analysis of borrowings by currency:
—UAR¥FHE — Denominated in RMB 20,985,894 15,546,732
— I oA — Denominated in HKD 4,354,753 3,679,520
—DAEIeEHE — Denominated in USD 243,139 —

25,583,786 19,226,252

T i S0 AR B A T SR AT B R R A 2 DAY
Ak 34 BT HCHE AT & 2 I 4R -

Certain bank loans and bond as at the end of the reporting period were
secured by the pledge of assets as set out in note 34.
e S —F—f
2012 2011
| {7k HEF %
AR #HFr Effective AR #F 0 Effective
RMB’000 interest rate RMB'000 interest rate

E BT Fixed rate bank loans 4,508,572 5.74% 2,375,829 4.07%
FRBITER Variable rate bank loans 19,683,226 6.60% 15,460,499 6.17%

ATEENAETHAH - AEMBITA

&8 1 N R 1,400,000,000 7G K% ik —
T—NERA R HBEAROES (a4
ARG T AR R ) o EHERE R
AR 6.79% W I B 25 HE Y
EAT > A AERSE R AR
HTLH B — W J R 2 100 18 555 (1
15 5% B ) o A E R ZF — W 4RI A
S AH BRI R R
it 88 S KRR R K 6.7%  EHFFEA N JE
T 23 T () 4 R B R o w4
S5 P 2 N R 1,100,000,000 78 ) 1A
bR G B R EE o B A
A [ )25 T 0 2 T L o i AR A

EHREMLE EHR T - F T
H=ZT—-HWNATHEHHE AR
1,454,600,000 G ( & — — 4+ AR ¥
1,358,000,000 7C.) © f&ZFE ki ook B
a2 ATETI S E &S T ETHH A0
mGHERA -

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

On May 5, 2009, the Group issued a bond of the principal amount of
RMB1,400,000,000 and will be repayable in full by May 5, 2016, subject
to early redemption as described herein. The bond bears fixed coupon
interest rate at 6.7% per annum for the first five years payable semi-
annually in arrears and is subject to an one-off upward adjustment of up
to 100 basis points (inclusive) from May 5, 2014 at the election of the
Group. The Group will determine on April 25, 2014 the interest rate by
election of an upward adjustment to the interest rate but if it determines
to maintain the interest rate at 6.7%, the holder of the bond then may
elect to redeem all or part of the bond at the face value. A portion of such
bond (RMB1,100,000,000) is listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The bond is secured by certain properties and land use rights

of the Group.

Management estimates the fair value of the bond at December 31, 2012
to be approximately RMB1,454,600,000 (2011: RMB1,358,000,000).
The fair values of both the listed and unlisted portions of the bond have
been calculated with reference to the quoted market price of the listed

portion of the bond.
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29. SENIOR NOTES

= A
2012 2011
ARETE ARETI
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

B Senior notes
— R ZF BT B R — Senior notes issued in 2011 4,746,477 4,740,473
— N E - TR T E R — Senior notes issued in 2012 2,506,503 —
7,252,980 4,740,473

)

“E-—ENHEE > ANFEER
(B 1] 2> AR 85 47 A8 T 8 750,000,000
3 6 (£ A R %4,909,200,000 7C )
WA o BEE ([ ZF—~
FFEICERE ) o %% B E T
IR E9.5% » AEFFELN—K
AR > MER = F—/NENHtH
(IECETRERS ({/

SN F TR BB IS
Lo BT IR R BT > AR v
AT - AL R T
AR B S B B ik A oL 2 B
AW~ FIYEIR o 2SR RERRAE
J A 1 R 7 A HAR AT AR B
HeLABT A0 2 B R A R

AT S 645 0 A B
R S+ R/ AT
AR L R SR
WA T SCRPI A
S5 MO 85 IR L
BERHELAR L 2 25—
TR

4

Year

TR 4R
ZE—FAE N HAE

2014

2015 and thereafter

@

On April 7, 2011, the Company issued guaranteed senior fixed
rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value of
US$750,000,000 (approximately RMB4,909,200,000) (the “2016
USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 9.5% per annum (interest
payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully repayable at par
by April 7, 2016

The 2016 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC and Barbados. The guarantees are effectively subordinated
to the other secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of

the value of assets serving as security.

At any time and from time to time after April 7, 2014, the
Company may at its option redeem the 2016 USD Notes, in
whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of
principal amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve-month

period beginning on April 7 of each of the years indicated below.

J ] £

Redemption price

104.75%
102.375%
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29. BEREW @)

)

(%)

A F— AR A & H AT A R
] A0 ) AT R IRF I BB AR 45 —
F—IRNERTTEIEAR BT 100% 1)
SB[ O o I I A O B
HH )M T — N B 1
FHE R AR (g ) > 16 B 4 5
(EIE D) T ANELETE
i o

[ = — N4 B 18 14 B el A
WMz F—NEELEE > BQ)
B F—ANFEETERAREN
1.00% K (2)(A)F B [ H ) —
FAENAEHAR -EANE
30 08 2 T [EED b Gi) 4% A
iR 465 3 e ) 5 ) SR 100 {1 5 ¥ 2
2B AR B =T — N E T
ZHE & PU4EN A -E H AT B
AR T ek R R A RS CR A3
BB A EGHE AR 2
BEBE@) AR -E - ANEET
SENA B B 2 AR
RS -

W F AN H AL H AT
M > AN F A REHE ZF— N F 3R
TG ZE IR A 2 HH109.5% I HE o] {8
JIINEE R H 8 (B )
M REFHE A FLE () > PI—2%
ok DL E R TR AR S 1 B
PSR W s —F—A
HEETEEE ARG 359% 5 IR
A B ] A A B A 5 A AR
60 H A = 4T 19 AT o 75 R 1 Il 1%
F065% R REEAT H BT =
F—NEE TR SR AE
7% o
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

At any time and from time to time prior to April 7, 2014, the
Company may at its option redeem the 2016 USD Notes, in
whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the 2016 USD Notes plus the 2016
Applicable Premium as of, and accrued the unpaid interest, if any,

to (but not including) the redemption date.

“2016 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2016
USD Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00%
of the principal amount of such 2016 USD Notes and (2) the
excess of (A) the present value at such redemption date of (i) the
redemption price of such 2016 USD Notes on April 7, 2014 plus
(ii) all required remaining scheduled interest payments due on such
2016 USD Notes through April 7, 2014 (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using a
discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis
points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2016 USD Notes on

such redemption date.

At any time and from time to time prior to April 7, 2014, the
Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2016 USD Notes with the net cash proceeds of
one or more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 109.5% of the principal amount
of the 2016 USD Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that at least
65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2016 USD Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains outstanding
after each such redemption and any such redemption takes place

within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.
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29. R

)

(i1)

(%)

HHRS > RPIP R R
AR LI I HERY AP R K o

i 8 1 i e SRR A S R 1 >
A A AR S A A B 1019 1Y
i B S I A H I O LR )
EWEE A H S RERHE AR AT AR
BRIEE P A REIR —F—RER
TR

SR NEE LR IR R EL
R AT 2 A 315,995,000 £ 76
(#) N B %104,696,000 76 ) A K
CERANER TR B AR
£510.02% °

“E-ZH+ATAR AR
i — 25 B A R AT A
i {H400,000,000F% JC(4 A R
#2,513,560,000 7T ) () A ¥ 4 (B
RELEB(ZE—NLEELE
1) %% R AR
6.875% » 788 AF AT — ) A
B WER-E—UETH+AB
GIECTRERS 4/ v

R JUERTTEBR N E
5B R R LT o A R A
AN TAT - AL R T F
AR o B R A ST 2 BT I
YEIR o RZAFIE ORI PR ARE IS A5 408 R
7 ) FCAA SR AR YE e LA BT HE A
ZEEBEMR -
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2016
USD Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not

including) the offer to purchase payment date.

The net carrying amount of the 2016 USD Notes is stated net
of issue expenses totalling US$15,995,000 (approximately
RMB104,696,000) and the effective interest rate of the 2016 USD
Notes is 10.02% per annum.

On October 18, 2012, the Company further issued guaranteed
senior fixed rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal
value of US$400,000,000 (approximately RMB2,513,560,000)
(the “2019 USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 6.875% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully

repayable at par by October 18, 2019.

The 2019 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other
secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of

assets serving as security.
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29. BELSR ) 29. SENIOR NOTES (Coninued)

fifi A F SCHT R &4+ A+ W H BRI At any time and from time to time after October 18, 2016, the Company
gt (DE G i T /S T e may at its option redeem the 2019 USD Notes, in whole or in part,
— N A N B AR BE IR IO IR 2 4 at a redemption price equal to the percentage of principal amount set
HEEE I T TS IR A < B8 A 43 BE 1 B ) forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date if
158 7 48 2 JE [ O 38 9 AR AN LS redeemed during the twelve-month period beginning on October 18 of
i E R N 7 e S | R S5 S v each of the years indicated below.

Ay J 1
Year Redemption price
ZENE 2016 103.4375%
—F L 2017 101.71875%
—F— R EE 2018 and thereafter 100%

T =7 E A H A\ H FAT ] B ]
AN F BRI E R E £ T
SERRAR AR 10096 1 ] 165 7 4 2 B
I (REEE BB — JUEA B
1B R EFHE R A AR () - 8 e 2 3
(HIFETAY) —F— NAEE TSR -

[ =& —JUAFEA B A A B R A2
CE-NEEREE BOERW %
— JUAF 0 SRR S HEI 1.00% X (2)(A)
ABERE B GO=F—A"ETH+AH
A% — LA 0 9 2 W R -
(i) 52 A A 58 3R R [ £ ) 2 0 100 1]
B BEBLRG HA W - F— LFEE T
BN = F—NE A AR Z A
FEE TRk B RS AR B (S 5 2 e el
H R SHE R AT RS ) 2 BUEE B A
BT — LT IR A BIE R A
ARG EREM IR R

7 =% — N AR A N H RTAE A R
AN T A AR —F— JUEE T E A
GA106.875% W R A8 > 55 A & g e
H 30 (R 3% H ) A RESHE R A FLE,
(InF) > Ph—Se A b T80 A
S B I B4 BT AR SRR RIS
T NEETEB AL EH 5% ; MR
57 IR L I A A IR A o 5 4 TR A% 60
H A AT AT AT A B B D % > B D 65%
RRBT BB F - LEE LS
ARG BB AR -
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At any time prior to October 18, 2016, the Company may at its option
redeem the 2019 USD Notes, in whole but not in part, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2019 USD Notes plus
the 2019 Applicable Premium as of, and accrued the unpaid interest, if

any, to (but not including) the redemption date.

“2019 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2019 USD Notes
at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the principal amount
of such 2019 USD Notes and (2) the excess of (A) the present value at
such redemption date of (i) the redemption price of such 2019 USD
Notes on October 18, 2016 plus (ii) all required remaining scheduled
interest payments due on such 2019 USD Notes through October 18,
2016 (but excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date),
computed using a discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus
100 basis points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2019 USD Notes

on such redemption date.

At any time and from time to time prior to October 18, 2016, the
Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of
the 2019 USD Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of
common stock of the Company in an equity offering at a redemption
price of 106.875% of the principal amount of the 2019 USD Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption
date; provided that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of
the 2019 USD Notes originally issued on the original issue date remains
outstanding after each such redemption and any such redemption takes

place within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.



23

30.

ok 8 25 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS )

RN VP R R R R
LR ] HE ) A (B A EEK

i 3 A B 8 42 o B SRR S0 AR
A S A AR 1019 WO R B 7
HHHMOREZH) Z R A 30H
(B it EL A A 1 5 2 40 i [ B K 2
“EFNERTTES -

CE U 0 B R 2 MR TN (E R R
178 A 466,927,000 00 (4 A R
43,529,000 ) Ak » —F — JLFEE LR
B2 EBAER 2L 7.20% °

AR ZH=T—H 83%
N3 R T A 5 T AT BRA ) 2 T B R
BFitE 2 _F - AFELEBEL _-F
— VR TR AR I A N R
5,207,364,000 76 (— F — —4F : KR ¥
4,347,621,000 76 ) B A B % 2,620,123,000
I o

29).

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early redemption
options is insignificant at initial recognition and the end of the reporting

period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2019 USD
Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the offer to

purchase payment date.

The net carrying amount of the 2019 USD Notes is stated net of issue
expenses totalling US$6,927,000 (approximately RMB43,529,000) and
the effective interest rate of the 2019 USD Notes is 7.20% per annum.

The fair value of the 2016 USD Notes and 2019 USD Notes at
December 31, 2012 with reference to the quoted market price available
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited amounted to
approximately RMB5,207,364,000 (2011: RMB4,347,621,000) and
RMB2,620,123,000, respectively.

R T 30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FET B
Non-current
TR
2012
AR¥EF
RMB’000
ARSI & 57 EEARRY Derivative financial instruments
Al T A under hedge accounting
Bl Uit Cash flow hedges
— F i — Interest rate swaps 7,586
— 2 LR WA e dmi — Cross currency interest rate swaps 106,566
114,152
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30.
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51 0 SR 125 2 o 97 58 2 A LA
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SEp = = 00 0
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REF—NES 24

REF-WEBH R4

b ) 2 4 A A B 4 U
WHEF R FE—"E+ A=+ —
H > B FREHEH0AFHES LA
R 7,586,000 7G (45 4E B R 40 © %
A N (R AR AE S o

BB R w0

AR R - AL LT 46 2 AL
B TR R REH > LUEHR
6 — 7€ LB 5 95 7T B v T SR AT 18 3K
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B N R 52 A A BB 1 A 42 R % 1Y
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Contracts maturing in 2014

Contracts maturing in 2014

30.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Interest rate swaps

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following interest
rate swaps designated as highly effective hedging instruments in order to
manage the Group’s interest rate movements on its bank borrowings by
swapping a proportion of those borrowings from floating rates to fixed
rate. The notional principal amounts of the interest rate swap contracts
outstanding as at December 31, 2012, their remaining terms and

estimated total fair value are as follows:

AERSH
M B % 2 [ A% Notional it AT
From floating To fixed principal Estimated
interest rate interest rate amount fair value
HIBOR + 2.85% 430%  WI0520,000,000 AR5 2180007
HKD520,000,000 RMB),218,000
HIBOR + 2.85% 430%  #0240,000,000 AR 23680007
HKD240,000,000 RMB2,368,000

All of the above interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash
flow hedges. The fair values of the above interest rate swap contracts
totalling RMB7,586,000 (net liabilities to the Group) have been deferred
in equity December 31, 2012.

Cross currency interest rate swaps

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following cross
currency interest rate swaps designated as highly effective hedging
instruments in order to minimise its exposures to foreign currency and
cash flow interest rate risk on its floating-rate USD and HKD bank
borrowings and corresponding interest payment by swapping a portion
of those borrowings and corresponding interest payment from USD and
HKD to RMB and from USD and HKD floating-rate interest payments

to RMB fixed rate interest payments.
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A W R Jwi ] (4)

28 SR 5 441380 9 f
A A TH I E B B AR

KRR T DA G
11 7 2 52

5% 58 SUR T 3 4 01 R CE 7 T
H o %GR BRI -

LELH 2 H

Notional amount Maturity

% 11139,230,000 ¢ ZZ—-HENA AR

Sell USD39,230,000 08/04/2015

B it2,125,000,000 # TC ZEF—HEMANR
Sell HKD2,125,000,000 08/04/2015
F141,200,000,000 5 76 “E-REZH=+—H
Sell HKD1,200,000,000 31/03/2015

% it 520,000,000 8 70 ZF—NFENAZF\H
Sell HKD520,000,000 2810412014

it 240,000,000 TC “F—NENA=FAR
Sell HKD240,000,000 28/04/2014

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps (Continued)

The terms of the cross currency interest rate contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the respective designated hedged items
and the directors consider that the cross currency interest rate swaps are
highly effective hedging instruments. The major terms of these contracts

are as follows:

[ MR

Exchange rates Interest rate swap

AREE 1T 0.057 % 7T i LIBOR +4% 2 [H 72 1% 6.65%
RMB 1: USD 0.157 From LIBOR +4% to fixed rate of 6.65%
IN AP ARITE Hi HIBOR +4% % [ & 1% 6.63%
RMB 1: HKD 1.219 From HIBOR +4% to fixed rate of 6.63%
AREE 1121988 M HIBOR+3.15% 2 Bl & F1% 5.80%
RMB 1: HKD 1.219 From HIBOR +3.15% to fixed rate of 5.80%
AREE 1T 1.2199 5T 1 HIBOR +2.85% 2 [F1 & |2 6.695%
RMB 1: HKD 1.219 From HIBOR+2.85% to fixed rate of 6.695%
IN AP ARITE i HIBOR+2.85% 2l & A% 6.67%

RMB 1: HKD 1.219

From HIBOR +2.85% to fixed rate of 6.67%

bl A A W R R B 34 4 E AR S B
MEHWWEY - R _F—F+ A
Z+—H o Rl B R AH
A FE R A 3 N R 106,566,000 76
A HE £ T /R R 48 B

All of the above cross currency interest rate swaps are designated and
effective as cash flow hedges. The fair values loss of the above cross
currency interest rate swap contracts totalling RMB106,566,000 have

been deferred in equity at December 31, 2012.
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31. A K fii B 31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) JBe A (a) Share capital
RO 0.10 0
ZEEREE
Number of
ordinary
shares T
of par value Nominal
HK$0.10 each value
T
HKS$' 000
e Authorised
N-Z——#—H—H-
“E——FEF A=t —HR At January 1, 2011, December 31, 2011
e it gy I et and December 31, 2012 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
TR IR Issued and fully paid
R_F——4—H—H At January 1, 2011 5,155,000,000 515,500
T8 T R £ 7 FRE 4 ( MtaE (i) Issue of shares upon exercise of share
options (note (i) 50,000 5
woF——F+"H=+—H At December 31, 2011 5,155,050,000 515,505
T8 i FRE 5 47 FRE A ( WEE i) Issue of shares upon exercise of share
options (note (1)) 13,725,500 1,373
BT (M Gi)) Issue of new shares (note (ii)) 260,000,000 26,000
W_F—-_F+_A=1+—0 At December 31, 2012 5,428,775,500 542,878
ﬁ/ﬁ\,ﬁﬁ i%( i&ﬁﬁﬁ N Shown in the consolidated financial statements
WoF—-—#+-A=1+—H At December 31, 2012 FEHAR¥T T 475,802
RMB’ 000 equivalent
RoFE——Ff—A=1—H At December 31, 2011 HEHAR¥T T 453,415

RMB’ 000 equivalent

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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31, B Bedilifl o)
@ BA )

(1)

(ii)

HE-Z—-H#+TZHA=1T—H
AR > AR TR AT 1 M
1713,725,500 f (= & — — 4 -
50,000 % ) & % T {F 0.1 5 7C ) ik
o 4F IR BT AT (o P 1 47 660
M F2.94% J0 £ 12.528 % 6 (48
HNARE 2390 E AR 1022
TE) (2 ——4F : g 4470 (A&
WARM7.1870)) - BEATH K
TE 45 77 T B IR B 4 T 0y =2 A R
SfEfs o

REZF—ZHFNAA A AR
] % 17 260,000,000 B 4 A% 1 (B
0.1 JC 1 3% 78 B o 3z 42 B 1)
SERA R E BN B AR A T
A3 Charm Talent International
Limited FT 54 19 260,000,000 M4
T IR THI B 0.1 Vs TG B > iE
B8 11.88 T AR L AR =
ZF—ZAJUH VB BT E ST
HH17.91% °

MR B AT iR Bk Charm
Talent International Limited %% i
11.88 # 70 H (B A% 58 260,000,000
JBe 7 A ) 4 T T B 0.1 ¥ TG 9 4
JBE o B e CTEL A A 4 T o I
i B IE A A A S T Y —
JBCE o BT AR R A
ANFRFE—-"SFEHRATLH
FAT 9 I R 47 K B R 1 — ik
FRHET 88 47 > 3 7R 250 1 SR At
CET R = AR S -

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(a)  Share capital (Continued)

(i)

(@ii)

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company issued
13,725,500 (2011: 50,000) shares of HK$0.1 each upon exercise of share
options. The exercise prices of the share options exercised during the
year range from HK$2.94 to HK$12.528 (equivalent to RMB2.39 to
RMB10.22) (2011: HK$8.44 (equivalent to RMB7.18)). The new shares

issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all aspects.

On September 19, 2012, the Company issued 260,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each and arranged a private placement to independent private
investors of 260,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company held
by Charm Talent International Limited, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, at a price of HK$11.88 per share representing a discount of
approximately 7.91% to the closing market price of the Company's shares

on September 18, 2012.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same date, Charm Talent
International Limited subscribed for 260,000,000 new shares of HK$0.1
each in the Company at a price of HK$11.88 per share. The proceeds were
applied for the Group's properties development projects in the PRC and
as the general working capital of the Group. These new shares were issued
under the general mandate granted to the directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on May 17, 2012 and rank pari passu with

other shates in issue in all respects.
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(b)
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AERE > AR A A
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31.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Reserves

Name nature and purpose of reserves

(@)

Share premium

Share premium at December 31, 2012 and 2011 represented

share premium of the Company.

The share premium account is governed by the Cayman
Companies Law and may be applied by the Company subject
to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to
members; (b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares;
(c) the redemption and repurchase of shares (subject to the
provisions of section 37 of the Cayman Companies Law);
(d) writing-off the preliminary expenses of the Company;
(e) writing-off the expenses of, or the commission paid or
discount allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures of the
Company; and (f) providing for the premium payable on
redemption or purchase of any shares or debentures of the

Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.
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EAGH

HEHAAF RN E
W i ZFFENEAN
H+t—H> E®RBEA
3,999,999,000 B %5 % i {E
0.1 7T 1 I A7 52 B4 18]
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(V) A R A ([ 55 45 %%
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HWE_ZTELE+T A
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BEM—REZEMEA
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J& ]) H8 & 770,000,000 1
TG A A E H R
122 FGE g B S L A e g%
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Reserves (Continued)

Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(if)

(ii1)

Capital reserve

On June 11, 2008, a group reorganisation was completed
for the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
by issuing 3,999,999,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. The
difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued
by the Company and the aggregate amount of the share
capital of Juntion Development Hong Kong (Holding)
Limited (“Juntion Development”), then holding company of

the Group, is charged to capital reserve.

On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend of
HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000) to the
then shareholders of the Company and charged to capital

reserve.

Special reserve

During the year ended December 31, 2007,
Juntion Development injected additional capital of
HK$770,000,000 in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Chongqing Longhu Development Company Limited
(“Chongqing Longhu Development”) in which the non-
controlling shareholders are Madam Wu Yajun and Mr.
Cai Kui, who are also the ultimate controlling shareholders
of the Company at that date. The Group’s equity interest
in Chongqing Longhu Development has increased from
60% to 91.3% and a discount on deemed acquisition of
RMB620,672,000 which represents the excess of the share
of net assets attributable to the additional interest acquired
over the amount injected was recognised in special reserve as

the contribution from equity owners.
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(b)

(iv)

HoAbfik s
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1) 42 Tl Fie 3 48 B B
80 R A PR A D
([ EHE1E ) 49% 0 5
A REA AR
176,307,000 JC ° #% % Ui I
EAER RHER 5 AR &8
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EMNREATENEZHE
Bt HAb R RERR o

wWE-_Z-FELA
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TR BRI B A PR )
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A A AR 4 B £
A B #16,750,000C A
R #72,000,000 6 AR
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31.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Reserves (Continued)

Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

Other reserve

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Group
acquired additional 49% of the registered capital
of Chongqing Longhu Yiheng Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (“Chongqing Yiheng”) at a consideration of
RMB176,307,000 from non-controlling shareholders. This
acquisition has been accounted for as equity transaction
and the difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the

consideration paid are recognised directly in other reserve.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group
acquired additional 0.7%, 8%, 8% and 25% of the registered
capital of Xi'an Longhu Jincheng Company Limited (“Xi'an
Jincheng”), Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real Estate Company
Limited (“Chengdu Jinhua”), Sichuan Longhu Real Estate
Development Company Limited (“Sichuan Longhu”) and
Chengdu Longhu Tongjin Real Estate Company Limited
(“Chengdu Tongjin”) at a consideration of RMB16,750,000,
RMB72,000,000, RMB36,000,000 and RMB520,080,000
respectively from non-controlling shareholders. These
acquisitions have been accounted for as equity transactions
and the differences between the amounts by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair values of the

considerations paid are recognised directly in other reserve.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Reserves (Continued)

Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

)

(vi)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries established in the PRC, these subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
year’s losses, expand the existing operations or convert into

additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents the recognition of
the fair value of share awards under the Pre-IPO share award

schemes over the vesting period as set out in note 38(a).
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32, WERBHE 32. DEFERRED TAXATION
PIF AR E RN T EIEERIE (A The followings are the major deferred taxation (liabilities) assets
&) & rE Jr Hatd) recognised and movements thereon during the year:
(i1
SR R
Tk JRRN WA
REmE A RREE BN REBEA Widholding
ERESE  BATHE Land  Allowance (rita)  Unealised tax it
Accelerated Fairvalueof — BUEEHE  appreciation for Government  proficon onretained  (H7Eb)
tax  investment Tax ax  doubtful grants  intra-group  profits to be Others &t
depreciation  properties losses ~ provisions debts (Notea) ~purchases ~ distributed (Note b) Total
NBEFE AREFL ARBFL AREFT AREFr AREFL AREFn AREFL ARETT AREFr
RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMBUO0  RMBO00  RMBO0)  RMBUO  RMBUW)  RMBO0
RoZ——F—f—H At anuary L, 2011 64 (T4 R99 3044 0 B34 A0 B 3601 (LTl
B (IR FPA (Charge) credit to profic or loss (4664 65764) 2999 286983 - 673 1080 @60 760 B6T)
REF——EFZA=1-0 ArDecember31, 2011 (6788 906) 688 G140 30 ABL WA 90 GO (15754)
INB G (R)FHA (Charge) ctedit to proficor loss 2018 G L8 34417 - (6,09 482 = (BLI4) 108358
REZ-ZEFZA=-H At December 31, 2012 (89406)  (2,556,209) 184,566 961,834 3,750 16458 106,659 (79,360) 3,546 (1419,166)
FffE Notes:
o 2 4 B G O o I BB T M B R i B a. This represents the tax effect of the temporary difference arising from the treatment
1) B BT 7 A W R S BRI BT 2E o BT K of the government grants between the accounting standard and the tax bureau.
B EOR E I B > [T I 25 Tax bureau treats the government grants as an income but for financial reporting
T ) 81 IR T O B B e v A ) S P S purpose, the government grants are treated as deduction from costs of properties
W e under development for sales.
b. A BTSN 4 B S P A W R AR b. This represents the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the deduction of
TS 5 28 o 7 45 (B ] 11 [ N RS A8 k35 advertising expense. The Group can deduct its advertising expense of no more than
15% B & 45 B 37 > T AS 1] 008 B 3 43 (i 15% of its revenue and for the part that cannot be deducted, if any, it can be carried
) BV ET 7 00 4 4 ] it o forward to future years.
BRSPS RIRE > BT IEER For the presentation purposes of the consolidated statement of financial
TEEE (BE) B - LT BB iR position, certain deferred taxation assets (liabilities) have been offset. The
A E BTV M R T TE A AR AT following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances for financial
reporting purposes:
—#—f —F—%
2012 2011
ARWFIT ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R HE R TH B Deferred taxation assets 1,012,836 669,202
EAE LA A 18 Deferred taxation liabilities (2,432,002)  (2,196,726)

(1,419,166)  (1,527,524)
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At December 31, 2012, the Group had unused estimated tax losses of
approximately RMB798,444,000 (2011: RMB308,840,000) available to
offset against future profits. Deferred taxation assets have been recognised
in respect of approximately RMB738,264,000 (2011: RMB251,432,000)
of such losses. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining RMBG60,180,000 (2011: RMB57,408,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will

expire in the following years:

R TR

2012 2011

AR ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TR T4 2012 — 1,338
TR 2013 49,820 49,820
e Sl 2014 888 888
S 2015 3,428 3,428
ZENE 2016 1,934 1,934
Sl ad 2017 4,110 —
60,180 57,408

3 SO o T B {6 9 A0 B AR B T A
vl B I 2 D T R R U N A T R
A 73 IR Y A 209 1E th ) T8 11 B 45 A o
TR IR > IR 2 A I AR AR R
8 A ) R 43 T 28 R IR 48 i T A £ R
MERR) £ 25,000,000 %5 J6 (= F — —4F ¢
F) o A AR AR 1B R 400 4% 1T IR 2 A 4 )
1 IR ] > 3% 5 2 B AE T A% A A% 7T A
AN 45 ] > RO o7 40 w5 2 A T R

=4
e

Deferred taxation liabilities include provision for withholding tax which
has been provided for 20% of the latest financial year’s undistributed
profits arising from all subsidiaries situated in the PRC and held by
Hong Kong companies. At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
was HK$25 million (2011: nil). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these differences because the Group is in a position to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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33. B IkRAH 33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
AR o B AR B R R R ALY According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
I B 2 ] 6 2 0 e i BRORY B Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a defined
i1 58 OB R B o AR 20 R Y B B contribution retirement scheme administered by the local municipal
J& 4 7 ] % w44 5 DL BT R 2R AR government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are
R > % (b ORI SBR[ A Y calculated on certain percentage of the average employee salary as agreed
AR B ¥ H NS T a0 Et s e & by local municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
A BB AR IR AR R B 1 R AT A benefits of the employees. The principal obligation of the Group
HRAR % at B AR itk o with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

ARG TN HO A A R B koL The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
i AR B TR o S Y B R AR 4 qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
BERESHEE > FERZEANER separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustee.
Y 4 o AR B 22 A R < AR A 5 9% ) The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme and the
Zat AR - TR B AR R SRR o same amount is matched by employees.
WE_X-ZHFF+H=1+—HILF The Group recognised the retirement benefit contributions of
JE > A AR T e SRR AR AR A BN R RMB108,897,000 (2011: RMB71,913,000) for the year ended December
108,897,000 G (= & — — 4« AR #F 31,2012
71,913,000 ) °

34. HHIEE 34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

REEBIR - CHELLT EEME ALK
P 525 T AT T A Bl 9 £ I 1
C th & Y360 RO SR A1 Hef K

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and other
facilities granted to the Group and mortgage loans to buyers of sold

properties at the end of the reporting period:

e A

2012 2011

ANREFIL AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

BB Investment properties 3,399,800 3,900,627
a5 L B OE Prepaid lease payments 1,054,646 1,927,280
B PR Properties under development for sales 26,678,965 16,471,904
FE 2 Properties held for sales 562,988 389,687
TR SRAT A7 3K Pledged bank deposits 227,212 406,125
31,923,611 23,095,623

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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iNgs

ACAEJE fE A HALA

T2 SRR 4 T R R AL P BB
BEENLETENLEE #HE_Z
— 2+ A =+ A IR E R
SRAE & i A %) 5 N R M 77,681,000 76 (=
F——4F : NR93,339,0007C) o A%
B R R & H R EC A P T A
F—2 T AEME -

AR - AEBCEAF BT R
A A B FHRT 4 -

35.

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as a lessor

Contingent rental for certain properties was determined by a certain
percentage of turnover earned by the tenants. The contingent rental
income recognised during the year ended December 31, 2012 amounted
to approximately RMB77,681,000 (2011: RMB93,339,000). The
properties held by the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants

for periods ranging from one to nineteen years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

“F T R f

2012 2011

ARBETFL  ARETFIL

RMB’ 000 RMB 000

—ER Within one year 301,651 255,502
5B AR R AR (R E W AE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 572,759 501,414
HER After five years 308,396 362,236
1,182,806 1,119,152

AR AR 2y AR

HOHRAT I > 74 S AR T A0
24 A L 0 3 5 A L
FCHIRIT -

The Group as a lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of leased properties:

—®-  —x—f
2012 2011

ANRW¥FL ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—AE R Within one year 16,020 19,785
BRI (G E BWAE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 20,222 30,099
HER After five years 2,765 3,850
39,007 53,734

B EFORE AR B E b E
TR ERER WS o K-8
MBI — 2+ L4 mHERET
HE W #Z H#EE -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
leasehold land and certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of one to seventeen years and rentals are fixed at the date

of signing of lease agreements.
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36. &
R - AEEAG LTRSS

36. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

commitments:
2 & —z—%
2012 2011
AR¥TFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
CATAER R 56 B |RE Contracted but not provided for in
AR A the consolidated financial statements:

—HRSERERTRE — Expenditure in respect of projects classified as

I R A ERE properties under development for sales and
TEH B 52 investment properties under construction 16,243,396 10,587,509

— Expenditure in respect of acquisition

— 7 A et PR A B S of land use rights 5,793,647 4,709,435
22,037,043 15,296,944

37. BAREE

A B2 B A AR B ) 3E O R T 4 4R
FT R SRAT AR IR SZ A IR 1 &
BR _Z—_F+_A=1t—HHAHA
R #8,590,537,000 76 (= F——4 : AR
#7,755,814,000 70) © AN A FRR A
AR B 5% 5 BT AR A9 A PR R 4D
GBI AN K A Al H A
JIE V5 T 40 75 A9 10 T AR AR/ o [
R AR BRI R = — 2 R
F——E+ A =+ BRI R
TERERR B (H o

AL BATRUEARAEAYER T
ZRATREFAELR o 5% O H K
W3 J AR T 48 40 36 8 T 58 AR Eh 4R AT

PR

37.

Mortgage guarantees

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
RMBS,590,537,000 (2011: RMB7,755,814,000) as at December 31,
2012 in respect of mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of the
Group's properties. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts of the Group are
insignificant at initial recognition and the directors of the Company
consider that the possibility of default of the parties involved is remote,
accordingly, no value has been recognised at the inception of the
guarantee contracts and at the end of the reporting period as at December
31,2012 and 2011.

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group'’s properties. Such guarantees will be released by
banks upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and completion of

the relevant mortgage properties registration.

= N
2012 2011
ARMFL  AEHTT
RMB’000 RMB 000
8,590,537 7,755,814

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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38. DAIBCAR By e Ak 22 5

DA 65 0 S B
i -

a.

U2 B8 A S it 81
2R ) T TE UG B A4
s b (1A € Bt 31 1) 20 AR
B _FFLET-A=ZTHEAZ
FENFELA=+— HEBI R
KR o RIBM SR H] - AL
Al AN Rl R AR TR
Bt A2 B (158 B BB 1)
B3 58 TR 1 ) 5 7E 5 A B i A
WA B B0 E A RER
B LSRR R AEENE
B o

WER—FFELET—A=THEF
W, N EELET A
ETHERGER - CER T
F——4E+ = =+ — B RS
11 258 JBh R 003 i 0 R £ A8 3000 Tl oy &2
116,003,500 i (61 45 ] 3 35 4% i
1,677,750 L) > 4 Bl AG & B
AN B AR R 2 0.3% o 58 ) i
FTA BB > SRR ORI R
FEREA o SR A Ok AR > A
2T B 1 5 T I 03 A1 (L Bt
H I & A8 SR8 - B
BEANA_ZENFE—H—H -

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:

Pre-IPO share award schemes

The Company’s two Pre-IPO share award schemes (the “Share
Award Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
November 30, 2007 and July 31, 2009 respectively. Under the
Share Award Schemes, the Company has awarded the Company’s
shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group. The objective of the Share Award
Schemes is to align the interests of the employees with those of the
Company, to share the pride of ownership among employees and to

reward their performance and contribution to the Group.

Under the scheme adopted on November 30, 2007, the total
number of shares in respect of which Awarded Shares had been
granted on November 30, 2007 and remained outstanding was nil
and 16,003,500 (including 1,677,750 shares granted to directors),
representing nil and 0.3% of the shares of the Company at that
date, as at December 31, 2012 and 2011. The Awarded Shares,
subject to a vesting period, are being held by a trust of the ultimate
controlling shareholders. The vesting period is either four or five
years during which the award shares granted to employee will vest
on each anniversary of the first vesting date in equal portions. The

first vesting date is January 1, 2009.
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38. DA B A 2 25 B W A oK 22 B

(#)

DARE 25 45 SE 00 I 0y S W6

GinIEE 2

a.  H RO B B By S8 )
(#)
WE—ZEZNELA=+—HK
MEEHE . R _FRNELA
St —HERHHERZ-F—Z4
B_F——F+ZA=+—H1
oA 55 i 1 5% B B 403 B 9 14 4 Bl
£57,500,000 f (£ 45 ) 3 2 4%
112,084,750 & & ) 2% 15,000,000
JB (63 45 [ =& 4% 5 19 4,169,500
BBy ) 43 Bl A v B A2 ] i £
0.14% % 0.29% » € & 1 51 6 5%
J& R > el o A T B R A 5 TR
£ o BB AN HERTEE
1) 548 B0 P 073 14 17 o 18 57 o D 0 1) 45
AR HEREE o 805 E B3
BoF—ZELH=1—H-

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)

Under the scheme adopted on July 31, 2009, the total number of
shares in respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on
July 31, 2009 and remained outstanding was 7,500,000 (including
2,084,750 shares granted to directors) and 15,000,000 (including
4,169,500 shares granted to directors), representing 0.14% and
0.29% of the shares of the Company at that date, as at December
31, 2012 and 2011. The Awarded Shares, subject to a vesting
period, are being held by a trust of the ultimate controlling
shareholders. The vesting period is four years during which the
award shares granted to employee will vest on each anniversary of
the first vesting date in equal portions. The first vesting date is
July 31, 2010.
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DA JBe Aoy 2 B W i Ak k22 B

(#)

DAHE 25 45 B 1 i A D i i

i

a.

(#%)

TR B T MR S A
(%)
REFFLEL—HA=THEKZ
EEAELA=Z+—BFRR LK
I TRET- 25 8T EL 43 T g N R
116,050,000 JG K A K # 71,250,000
JC o IR B E L Rk
PR R HA RE 1 A X O B A
P o RS 35 2 MR i %
i H AR AT E - EERE
26~ R 4F- ) 2 I B R o IR
VB INGE L B TN iR e S
JEE S B RS U MR T T

WEE R T+
A=+T—H1%E > AAFHA R
75 ) S 1 1B A7 4 P HE RN B
7,834,000 70 K& A R 23,437,000
TR S o AR R SE B ) B0 DA
A ] B R RE R I B T
G o I > BRPIAARA TR
TRt o

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

a.

Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)

The weighted average fair values of the shares granted on
November 30, 2007 and July 31, 2009 were RMB116,050,000
and RMB71,250,000 respectively and were determined using
a mix of asset-based and market approach with option-based
pricing model is adopted to account for the vesting condition.
The significant inputs into the model were estimated fair value of
shares at the grant date, expected dividend pay out rate, annual
risk-free rate and volatility rate. The volatility is measured based
on past years historical price volatility of similar companies listed
on the SEHK.

The Group recognised an expense of RMB7,834,000 and
RMB23,437,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
respectively in relation to shares awarded by the Company. The
shares awarded by the Company will be settled with the existing
shares held by the trust of the ultimate controlling shareholders.
Accordingly, the respective amounts were credited to capital

contribution reserve.
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38 U BB AY 38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(4) (Continued)
DL RE 25 45 530 B I8t Ay 5% Bl / i i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
g /RNE 7
a. IR BRI A 5 a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)
(%)
AR N BT L IR 073 58 B 22 Ak e Mk A The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year
LI are as follows:
JBe Ay 5 i ¥ H

Number of S B 61

share awards  Vesting Conditions

le] 3 S A A B
Share Awards granted to directors:
-REFF LT —A=1H 6,711,000 H#EFHAMEE-ZEAFE—HA—HE25%
— on November 30, 2007 25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
B AR E T —FE—H—H25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
AREHBREE - ——F—A—HRA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
REAMEE—F——F—HA—HE25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012
“RZFFHNFELA=1T—H 8,339,000 HBFMHAMERE -F—FHELHA=1T—H25%
—on July 31, 2009 25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2010

ARHAMEE —F——FEA=1t—FR25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2011
AREAPEE-F——FLA=+—HR2%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2012
AREAMEE - Z—=FLtA=+—AR25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2013

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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38. BAJB A 2 Bk B W 4k 5K 22 B
(%)
DA 4 B 0 PR B D e e
Eip [KE 7
a. UL DB IR S
(#1)

16 {8 B 4% 1 % 3 A2 ) -

Share Awards granted to employees:
-R-FFLEL—A=1H
— on November 30, 2007

~REEBAFLAZ
—on July 31, 2009

RE-Z-HFZA=ST—HIREE
For the year ended December 31, 2012

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)

JRe 4 €8 85 2
Number of Bt

share awards ~ Vesting Conditions

50,554,000 ARH AMEE-FTNE—-A—HR25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
ARG AR E —F—FFE—H—H M 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
ARG HEE —F——F—A—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
ARHAMEE — T~ F—A—HRA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

21,661,000 HBEHAMEE_Z—-TFELA=T—HR25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2010
BREAMEE T ——FEEA=t—H R 25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2011
ARG AMEE - F—-"FELA=t—H R 25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2012
BHHMREE —R—=FLH=1T—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2013
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38 U BB AY 38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(4) (Continued)
DL RE 25 45 530 B I8t Ay 5% Bl / i i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
At )
a. IR BRI A 5 a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)
(#)
FENHE S AR 8RR AL A R The movements of the Company’s share awards held by directors
HER ST - and employees during the year:
e b 82 4
Number of share awards
[ S REF—T4
i~ R
KB E e B Kb
Outstanding Vested Outstanding
BiliHH as at during as at
Grant date January 1, 2012 the year December 31, 2012
pided “FFLET-A=Z1H
Share awards November 30, 2007 16,003,500 (16,003,500) —
“RBNELAZ R
July 31, 2009 15,000,000 (7,500,000) 7,500,000
31,003,500 (23,503,500) 7,500,000
idhig 3]
Number of share awards
Rt =t S
—A—H #h FoHEA
AEE Cin KB
Outstanding Vested Outstanding
Rz HH as at during as at
Grant date January 1, 2011 the year December 31, 2011
B 4 B2 “EFLFET-A=1H
Share awards November 30, 2007 32,007,000 (16,003,500) 16,003,500
SEENELAZ A
July 31, 2009 22,500,000 (7,500,000) 15,000,000
54,507,000 (23,503,500) 31,003,500

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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e Xl it 2% 4% 38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(%) (Continued)

DL RE 25 45 550 B I8 Ay 5% Bl / 1B it R Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
At )

b. R BB Tl R Pre-IPO share option scheme

2 T ) B UK s BR B I RRE
(T vk 2 B B i s R T
# ) TIRIER —EELE+—A
= HAER N — R A
FEHNEAREEESR KA ER
1 542 (LAY > 17 S R —
ZXRELES—H = HEAR K
B E R AL BB i 2e S 2 A ([ E
T H A 1) A HT— M 3 1k T
B R o ARDR T YA BR B i
JRHETT B > A5/ ) R L /A ) 3
O T R A A w0 1 A
HE o IR B B T IRCRE B
TR 2 HAE R 10 4F

REFFLET—HA=TH O
H B % HE 37,940,000 5 (2 45 1
F 4% 15,588,000 173 i FEHE) o it
SE - CHER SR ——F A
= — HORE KA B
e AR T ) 452 B TR AP AR AT O Y I
PR T B A B H £ 19,929,000 %
(045 ) # F 1% H 7,188,000 13 B i
HE) % 32,940,000 i (4235 [ 3 F4%
112,776,000 fi B I HE) - 4 =

— R CFE T AZ
H AN F AR 0.37% B 0.64% °

The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on November 30, 2007 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Group, and
options can only be offered and granted from November 30,
2007 until the business date before the date on which dealings in
the Company’s share first commence on the SEHK (“the Listing
Date”). Under the Pre-IPO share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries were granted options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The term of the Pre-IPO share Option

Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

On November 30, 2007, 37,940,000 share options (including
15,588,000 share options granted to directors) were granted. The
number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was 19,929,000 (including
7,188,000 share options granted to directors) and 32,940,000
(including 12,776,000 share options granted to directors),
representing 0.37% and 0.64% of the shares of the Company as at
December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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38. DA B A 2 25 B W A oK 22 B

(#)

DARE 25 45 S50 00 e 7y S8 i T

at#E : )

b.  HIRAPEE TR ()
DRIAT (AR 1 U B 5 i I Al
w1 B A ) EL A S
5% 4 10 7 A B R T T R AT AR
N AA > AR LT B
AR ) BB AT A AR B 109
ERON R e ORI
fffifER 646 T > R EFIE
—H—HHEE A 2.94 %70 -

DRI (AR o 2 B 5 i M M
F ) B AR ] 1 A B R R B
P2 AT R AT 1) 7 A6 P i
RERATIO M B M 2P IRE > R
B A IRF BB AT R 3098
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company
in issue at the Listing Date. The exercise price of the pre-IPO share
option initial at HK$6.46 and amended to HK$2.94 effective from
January 1, 2009.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares

in issue from time to time.
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DA JBe Aoy 2 B W i Ak k22 B

(#)

DARE 25 45 55 00 e A S Gh W %

st )

b,  HIRABEE NIRRT ()
BE_F——F T _H=1T—HI
AF B 7 4 R A R4 1 U B
B T TR 5 0 T Y B PR T
R IERERE X R E R E—4F
JEREES (T ——4F : ARW
3,273,000 7C) °

A PR TR ) i FBOHEE 2 kB e -t
T

) 345 1 T A

Share options granted to directors:
-RZFFLEF—-A=1H
— on November 30, 2007

1] {5 4% i1 R R 1

Share options granted to employees:
ROEELET AR
— on November 30, 2007

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

There was no share option expense in relation to the share options
under the Pre-IPO-Share Option Scheme granted by the Company
recognised for the year ended December 31, 2012 as the they were
fully amortised in the prior year (2011: RMB3,273,000).

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows:

i e

i I hE R AR
Number of S BHM: Contractual life
options  Vesting periods of options
12,776,000 A A BEE -FFNE~A—H A 25% ik
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009 10 years
HREAMEE = F—FFE—H—HB25% e

25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010 10 years

AR A EE = ——F—A—H A 25% T4

25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011 10 years
RIS - F——F—A—HR25% 4

25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012 10 years

25,164,000 EHEM AMEE-ZENE-A—HA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009 10 years

B AR~ R T~ —HB25% T4

25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010 10 years
AREAEE =R ——F—H—HR25% +4

25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011 10 years

B AR E = E - —H A 25% T

25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012 10 years
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38 U BB AY 38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(4) (Continued)
DL RE 25 45 530 B I8t Ay 5% Bl / i Jt R Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
At )
b. EMONGE e S b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
ENE R KRB RA AL R IR The movements of the Company’s share options under the Pre-IPO
A B R R T AR Share Option Scheme held by directors and employees during the
Y52 E) - year:
TR R
Number of options
3. S 3. S
—~i=H +ZA=1-H
RATE FEREITE AAT
ol Outstanding (k) QOurstanding
W at Exercised at
B Exercise  SEHIM January 1, during  December 31,
Grant date price  Vesting period 2012 the year 2012
HKS (Note)
TiE “EFRLE 294 ZEFRAET-AZHH
Share option T=A=1H -0 S
November 30, 2007 November 30, 2007 32,940,000 (13,011,000 19,929,000
to January 1, 2012
e 2
TAZ TRl
Exercisable at
December 31, 2012 19,929,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

Ly 6
Number of options
it S HoB—
—~H—H TZA=1-H
AfTfE AT
friife Outstanding R Outstanding
o at Exercised a
RS Brercise B M1 January 1, during  December 31,
Grant date price  Vesting period 2011 the year 2011
HKS$
Wt “EELET-A=E 294 ZERLEF-AZTH
Share option November 30, 2007 Felw St i
November 30, 2007 32,940,000 - 32,940,000
to Januaty 1, 2012
=
TZAZ Bl
Exercisable at
December 31, 2011 23,455,000

BRGE © AT R B A R T 3 B E A
11.97 #7C °

Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$11.97.

4F #t Annual Report 2012




o B U 25 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

WE-Z—THEFHAZ—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

38. DA B A 2 25 B W A oK 22 B

(#)

DR i 25 571 Ity SE IR e
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c. EYCZ BB R B
A T V26 BB 0 15
(T 0 2 B 8 1
) Ty RBR —FFAE T A
S S AmE AR R R
Mo FEANRRAAEMERRA
Pt 1 B 2 HEHE D o AR B A B
T EMI B > A AT BH
B A R B IR TR A A 7
o IR HE 20 BB O R
HERT ) F IR A2 EZ B0 10 =

REoEEFENELH =08
% 7T 58 810,600,000 A (42 45 1)
= H 7 4,550,000 I LA ) A7 Y
WERHE o MEMREM) 1T (B /% 8.44 U5
fl] °
AE——F—HTFLtHRZFE
—— A ANBRE RS
46,000,000 % (£ $§ [7] # = % )
9,200,000 it & 17+ ) 150,000,000
Ji (£ 45 In] 7 25 4% 11 55,600,000 [
JBE 473 ) BB A0 e B PR - A R
2t 11 B P HE 2 A R 718 4 il
5 N R 195,338,000 70 & A R
410,041,000 JC °
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

Post-IPO share option scheme

The Company's Post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on December 23, 2009 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Group. Under
the Post-TPO Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries were granted options to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The term of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is

10 years from the date of adoption.

On December 23, 2009, options to subscribe 10,600,000 shares
(including 4,550,000 shares granted to directors) were granted.
The exercise price of the option is HK$8.44.

On January 17, 2011 and September 28, 2011, options to
subscribe 46,000,000 shares (including 9,200,000 shares granted
to directors) and 150,000,000 shares (including 55,600,000 shares
granted to directors) were granted. The estimated fair values of
the options granted on those dates are RMB195,338,000 and
RMB410,041,000 respectively.



38.

ok 8 25 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DA JBe Aoy 2 B W i Ak k22 B

(#)

DAHE 25 45 B 1 i A D i i
i [RNE 7

C.

IR 4 BB AR I R RE S
(4)
FENTE T EAE R
HRZHWT -

i H AR
it
M

TR
i3S
e g 1)

WRFRE SO E 2 TR 4R M0 £ (B 4 o+ 1
) /255

TR R A 2 W) 5 AR IR
AP HRIEE o A T T
SAAE I O R B 2 e A A R
ANFTEGERYE - ATEERR G AT A5 R
AT -

AR R RN
Zh—H o R E KA B A
JBCAEE T B 432t R R AT Y 5 M
HE BT ¥ B 7 B H £ 205,835,000 %
1%206,550,000 B » A28 A %
— R ZF A=t
H 619 3.79% I 4% °

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

c. Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

These fair values were calculated using the binomial model. The

inputs into the model were as follows:

TAVATR F 8145 i i ft e
Share options granted on
ZF o ZF
—A+tH RAZHNAH
January 17, September 28,

2011 2011

Grant date share price 12.52 70 8.28 T
HK$12.52 HK$8.28

Exercise price 12.528 ¥ 8.28 W0
HK$12.528 HK$8.28

Expected life Fif ik i
Note Note

Expected volatility 41% 4£2%
Dividend yield 1% 1%
Risk-free interest rate 2.72% 1.36%

Note: Expected life of the option is calculated by the formula of (vesting period +

exercise period)/2.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the past few years.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,

exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was 205,835,500 and
206,550,000, representing 3.79% and 4% of the shares of the
Company as at December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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38. DA B A 2 25 B W A oK 22 B

(#)

DR i 25 571 Ity SE IR e

at#l « o)

c.H Y2 BB R N I T
(4)
VR A 0 B 2 B O 5
A B A5 0 A e
AR th 0 B T T T B 471
A0 R B R R L
i A A 7] 34T e 4
10% °

PRAT AR AR 1 2 Bl % 5 4% T A e
B B A R B AR B R U 2
AT AT ARAT 5 1 9 A B T
REBEAT O et e B ) 2RI > A
B AR T BT 30% ©

#wE-ZFZ—"HF+HA=1—HI
R AREBRAA AR LI E IR
N BB AR TR IR RE R 0 TS R b
fife 58 A 3t N R % 123,315,000 7C
(ZF——4 : AR%¥139,071,000
Jo) °
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company

in issue at the Listing Date.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares

in issue from time to time.

The Group recognised total expense of RMB123,315,000 (2011:
RMB139,071,000) for the year ended December 31, 2012 in
relation to share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

granted by the Company.
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

c. Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows:

T

BHER

TR H Contractual

giHAM Numberof ~ SEHIH life of
Grant date options  Vesting periods options
W E S R “ERNAELCACTEH AR A HEE T+ A=A A% T
Share options December 23, 2009 4,550,000 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
granted to directors AR AR E R+ AT =A%25% T
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years

AR A EEE - —F+ A +=0 R 25% i3

25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years

AREAMEE -+ AZ+=05% T

25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years

“Z——#—-At++tH ARHAMEE=F——F—RT+tHA 5% T4
January 17, 2011 9,200,000 25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
AR A REE=F-=F- A+t H A s% 5

25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years

AR BEE - F—E—-A+tH A 25% T

25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years

BREEHEE-Z-HE-A+LAR% 4

25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years

“F—HAAZTAR AR AMEE-F-=F A Z+/AH A 102 5
September 28, 2011 45,600,000  10% from the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
ARH A MEE - F—WE A =+ A 30% T

309% from the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years

BREEEE - F-HELA AR A 30% 1

30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years

B H A MEE - F A A =+ B 30% 5

30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years

“F-—FAAZTAR Al H R E = E LA N H 5 100% 5
September 28, 2011 10,000,000  100% from the date of grant to September 28, 2017 10 years
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38. IR By s Mo Ay sk & %  38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
() (Continued)
DL RE 25 45 530 B I8t Ay 5% Bl / i i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
At )
. BRAMBEHMBMESSE  c  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

(#)
Ji T
BHER
T S Contractual
KHHH Number of i ] life of
Grant date options  Vesting periods options
I L% 11 M “ERAETCACTEH AREAMEE - Z-RET AT Z0 A 5% T4
Share options granted December 23, 2009 6,050,000 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
to employees AR ABEE -+ A +=0 A 25% 4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
AR AEEE - F "+ A +=0 A 259 T
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
T e St g R PR i
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
“F—¥-At+LH AR AREE - —F—-A+tAA 5% i
January 17, 2011 36,800,000  25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
AR AR E == —-A+tAk25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
AR AR E - F—E—A+LH A 25% i3
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
R RS =T L B i
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
“E——ERAZTAR AR ASREE-Z-=F AT AR A 10% 4
September 28, 2011 94,400,000 10% from the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
A AR E = —E LA Z+AH A30% 6
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years
AREHERE = A T AR A30% T4
309% from the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years
AR AEREE = F—AEAZ T AH A 30% 4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years
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DU BT %A S 38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(#45) (Continued)
DL RE 35 45 580 0% R Ay 28 B i e e Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
wt#l )
e HEIR/PH B E R B RAEG c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
RN MR B A A 7 I The movements of the Company’s share options under the Post-
N BB 1 T TR S TR T R IPO Share Option Scheme held by directors and employees during
st - the year:
—E T4 2012
TRIRMESH
Number of options
RoEB-2E RE-2E
A= +ZA=1-H
Kl ERERHE AfrlE
frf Outstanding (Hrt) Outstanding
B at Exercised at
Gk Brercise SN January 1, during December 31,
Grant date price Vesting period 212 the year 002
HKS (Note)
iy CERNETCAZTER ZEFNETZAZTER
Shate option - Set:o5 ot
December 23, 2009 844 December 23, 2009 10,550,000 - 10,550,000
to December 23, 2013
ZF——E-1th ZF——F-f+th
ECR-RE-A LA
January 17, 2011 12528 January 17,2011 46,000,000 (714,500) 45,285,500
to January 17, 2015
“FEARZTAR “EEARZTAR
F2ELEAACTAR
September 28, 2011 828  September 28, 2011 150,000,000 - 150,000,000
to September 28, 2017
206,550,000 (714,500 205,835,500
o2k
bRzt
Exercisable at
December 31, 2012 18,685,500
TR (k)
Weighted average
exercise price (HKS) 9.3 12528 9.2
BEE - A7 68 H 9 B0 - 2 AR Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$14.17.
1417 7€
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38 U BB AY 38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

() (Continued)
DL RE 25 45 530 B I8t Ay 5% Bl / i i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
i IE
c. HOIR A B AR T RE T @ Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
&)
TR 2011
il
Number of options
RoF—— RoF——5
—~i—H TZAZ-H
Kl it Ktk
it Outstanding Ll (W3E) Outstanding
i a Granted Exercised at
R Brecke  SREHA January 1, during during December 31,
Grant date price Vesting period 011 the year the year 011
HKS$ (Note)
“ERMEFCACEER ZERNETCACTER
itk o St oy
Share option December 23, 2009 844 December 23, 2009 10,600,000 - (50,000) 10,550,000
to December 23, 2013
“E-—E-ItH ZE—E-f LR
FF-RE-ATLH
January 17, 2011 12528 January 17, 2011 - 46,000,000 - 46,000,000
to January 17, 2019
“E-—EAAZTAR “FEAAZTAR
EF-LENACTAR
September 28, 2011 828 September 28, 2011 - 150,000,000 - 150,000,000
to September 28, 2017
10,600,000 196,000,000 (50,000) 206,550,000
S S LI
Exercisable at
December 31, 2011 5,250,000
IR ()
Weighted average
exetcise price (HKS) 844 9.8 844 9.3
FfFzE « 47 i B 30 60 HE S 35 % A Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$12.54.
12.54 ¥ ©

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]




ok 8 25 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. BT Y
RO & B AR WL M BB 2 24 B
27 MBS BE0R 51 - 4R > AR
HBRT AT F B AS ¢

(a) FFFEHIHE

SR 8
/ES-SLIUN

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the balances with related parties set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and in notes 24 and 27, during the year,
the Group entered into the following significant transactions with its

related parties:

(a) Jointly controlled entities

= = M

2012 2011
ARBFT  ARNTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Sales of materials — 1,007

Property management income 584 10,880

(b) FEEHIGREDS

HEYR

(b) Key management and director

e
2012 2011
ARBFTE  ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Sales of properties 79,289 95,206

© FHOHEEMELRERE
BRIE (R A FI IO ) 135
PHRCR B R 11 -

()  The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of the
Company, who are the directors of the Company, for the year is set

out in note 11.
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40. ¥/ B8 4Y BI 40.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

A% S T SR R DL DR A 42 [ R e
FRARE > 7 R AL R R A 45
i 2 PSR AT AR K [ K o

AR5 B B B A 5 4 A5 1 (B4 20
AT W 5E 28 B 29 487 B BY fiF Bk i 8 SE 5
#) ~ BeLREFEYFHEU AR
B AL HE SR (L35 C B ATIROA ~ Mg
BAREEA)

Ay T O A B B A o R
FHA W0 ARFEEEFEARK

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes,
where appropriate, the borrowings and senior notes disclosed in notes
28 and 29 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,

reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular

basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the

74 B SR BUEAA B A9 JEL By - 3 R HUE
CEELREE S 3 w3

cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and take

appropriate actions to balance its overall capital structure.

41. EWTH 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Sl TREN a.

Categories of financial instruments

&R R
2012 2011
ANRETL  ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
&R Financial assets
QIR Available-for-sale investments 8,600 8,600
BB N (R4 Loans and receivables (including cash
HeRBEEEY) and cash equivalents) 19,896,894 15,591,670
SR AR Financial liabilities
J 6 LA Amortised cost 40,416,778 30,517,923
8 A TEHM TSR TE  Derivative financial instruments
designated as hedging instruments 114,152 —
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41. BT H @)

b.
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Al TR IR R I A I Wi
JA ~ e REAST) B 77 0H ~ B4
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PRRAR ~ SRAT B AR 5 3K DA R 5B
RiE o ZE M T RANFERRA
FARER T o BLa% % 4l TR AR B HY
Ja B e AR % 5 L B ) BORRR T
3o A T B I A A L g A
e R 2 o A 5 R B 6 10 o

i 3 Ja B

A4 0 3 5 B S
5B 2553 ) JER 2 LA B A L
BT SR (R T30 -

AL 6 B9 i LR A
IR T R o
KA -

RS g8

S SRAT & B B SR AT B L At £ 3K
(Z BTG F R RARE AR
AT B A 3 51 B i ) A R Gt
B B BT 5 A R e B - R A
8 T T 3B B 4 U R

7SR BN T B B A R AT A
LA B ] 5 A At B 2 SRAT B
Al i 35 e 48 5 SR A R A - (L
R -

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include derivative
financial instruments, accounts and other receivables, amounts due
from (to) related parties, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, accounts payable, bank and other borrowings and senior
notes. Details of these financial instruments are set out in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates risks and

other price risk (see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the

risk over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank balances
and bank and other borrowings which carried at prevailing market
interest rates and variable rate based on the interest rates quoted by

the People’s Bank of China, respectively.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to pledged bank deposits, bank and other borrowings

and senior notes which carried fixed interest rate.
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The management aims at keeping material bank and other
borrowings at fixed rates at appropriate level by entering into
interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps. In order
to achieve this result, the Group entered into interest rate swaps
and cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge against certain
exposures to changes in interest rates of the bank borrowings. The
management adopts a policy of ensuring that all the material bank
and other borrowings of the Group are effectively on a fixed rate
basis, either through the contractual terms of the loan facilities
agreements or through the use of interest rate swaps and cross

currency interest rate swaps.

Details of the Groups interest rate swaps, ctoss currency interest
rate swaps and bank and other borrowings entered into by the
Group at the end of the reporting period are set out in notes 30

and 28, respectively.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of

China arising from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Incterest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments carried at
variable rates (bank balances and bank and other borrowings) at the
end of the reporting period and assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 200 basis point increase or decrease for bank
and other borrowings and a 100 basis point increase or decrease for
bank balances are used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the possible change in interest rate in respect of bank

and other borrowings and bank balances respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by 200 basis points in respect of bank and
other borrowings and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year would increase/decrease by nil (2011:
RMB10,296,000) for the year ended December 31, 2012, after
taking into effects of the interest rate swaps and the cross currency
interest rate swaps designated as hedging instruments and

capitalisation of interest costs.

In addition, if interest rate had been increased/decreased by
100 basis points in respect of bank deposits, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB137,876,000 (2011:
RMB105,907,000) for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management

The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures including expenditures incurred in property sales as

well as capital expenditures are also denominated in RMB.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
borrowings denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of individual subsidiaries. The Group entered into
currency swaps to hedge certain material bank borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies. Given this, the management
considers that the net exposure to currency risk is kept to an
appropriate level. It is the Group's policy to negotiate the terms
of the hedge derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to
maximise hedge effectiveness. Details of the currency swaps entered
into by the Group at the end of the reporting period are set out in
note 30.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk arising from bank
deposits denominated in foreign currencies. The management
maintains the portfolio of bank deposits denominated in different
currencies and the exposure to currency risk is kept to an

appropriate level.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

I 35 R B 4 c.  Market risk (Continued)
KNS R B A B () Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
AL A& B H UM EHE R The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated
BB E R B AR (ZIEE LY monetary assets and monetary liabilities (other than bank
T BB A0 HE 440053 2 1Y SR AT 1 3K borrowings subject to foreign currency swaps designated as
BRAN) BT E QR hedging instruments) at the respective reporting date are as
follows:
2 2%
2012 2011
ANBWTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Assets
KT USD 1,873,238 1,622,500
B0 HKD 1,787,906 24,586
R T SR
2012 2011
ARl TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Liabilities
eV USD 7,252,980 4,740,473
0 HKD 329,576 3,084,774
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41. BT H ) 41.

T 35 Ja\ B (4)
AN I B B ()
SR FE AT

ES B YT PSS SN
i M 3 ) L

R R AR A BN B S A
IR A1 Y e =R o ik 5 9% 1 B UK
J o SRR A M AL AR S ) S
WrtE & IHE (18 E HAE WL
FL 38 S e ) 5 g 1] 5 80 Y 4R
FTAEFRBRAT) > S 1A 47 A o R 4t
DL B A R 2R 11 596 5T © 5%
PR 18] T O B AT B
AN L ) S 2 7 A
i@ S} 41 EE B < 45 26 ] AE 4 B 110 o
fili o SRR HE 7 AT G4 LA AN S HE Y
SRATAE TR A e SR AT 46 8 I O HE 4R
TIEE - B8/ (BB FR AR
TR IR P 5 4 13 0 ) 9 38
VAL CAREUNTY SR il PN 2
(B 5% > BIBHAF B 35 A 75 8 /) 45 1Y
B2

C. C.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange fluctuation of USD
and HKD against RMB.

The following table details of the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items (other than the bank
borrowings subject to cross currency interest rate swaps designated
as hedging instruments) and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes bank borrowings as well as bank
balances and pledged bank deposits denominated in foreign
currencies. A positive/(negative) number indicates an increase/
(decrease) in profit for the year where the RMB strengthens against
the relevant currencies. For a 5% weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on

the profit for the year.

e N
2012 2011
AR AREFT
RMB’000  RMB 000
e USD
A B ¥ | Profit for the year 268,987 155,899
I HKD
R (1R ) v A1l (Loss) profit for the year (72,917) 183,009

At (S JE Bt

74 S T 0 4 0 5 4 S A
IR - AT > SRR AA AT
T 15 0 L e L5

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its available-
for-sale investments. However, the management considers that the

Company's exposure to fluctuation in equity price is minimal.
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d.

e S0 B B L

AR IR A4 I P 3
TR BT HAE A M
S O R T 2 B S I B A
BOBAEERR > TEEALGS
SRR DL 0 T 31 4% L e 5
B MR T (B DA R MR 37 B
BRER A R o AHEEER
R EWTEERTRERE
Y B A Bl i [ 0 O B - B
2 G [ 7 o 3 A R 0 ) 4 R
S B 5 T A RE SR IR LA B B W B
TR AR 2R o BB AR
Gl T INE S LN X DR
SRR > S ph A SR B AL A
A e I EL 3 e A RS Y
ETIEER -

731 F 07 34 1 I R T AR i A T
TR i B AR AR BRAT B I A A AR
1o BB EEEEREA R

BRATIA 2 K i s B TR SR AT B9 )
4 e MR W I 2 ) B R R £
FEIR B T LA > A4 B
B2 AT 5 k&R - il
R R BB

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Credit risk management

At each of the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees issued by the Group is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed in note
37. In order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures
are carried out to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and other receivables
and amounts due from related parties at the end of the reporting
period. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position are net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts,
estimated by the Group's management based on prior experience

and their assessment of the current economic environment.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit

rating agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings and amounts
due from jointly controlled entities, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, in which exposure is spread over a

number of counterparties and customers.
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41. BT H @)

d.

5 B\ B A B )
REBEERRTHYENS - &
S W R A4 S
I 2 A A T SR TR AL
18 W IR A 2 I
{6709 o 45 J7 45 (R0 K A
BRI > B 108 1 AT P 2
oA B A o R B K A AT
BRET RIS o FEMCRE T - AL
T M 0 o [
Wik o El - SBE B A E I
5 A B s 15 | B A AT AL
WAL > HRERE U %
e (R TT 2E  T (B S R A
BT B 10 & A (R
EEEEBA R © LTS > A4
EHERS > AEBOREEEARE L
IR -
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Credit risk management (Continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70% of
the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage during the period of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay
the outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit the sales deposit received
and resell the repossessed properties. Therefore, the management
considers the Group would likely recover any loss incurred arising
from the guarantees. The management considers the credit risk
exposure to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers
is limited because the facilities are secured by the properties and
the market price of the properties is higher than the guaranteed
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that

the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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ARSI AT RS Y 4 B
T G 85 k2 AR T - A%
Al B BRI E AR -
AT T AR B A S
T R A BT -

21K X PRt i yie
A i 7 2 T B TR R 8 5 40 21 10
F o R A SR B AT AR Sk B
SRR LR USSR W N iR e
BN - RPEOHEANE A B

=)
UILE ©

fi M S A% AR A AT R B
SRILHE AR E R RGH -

BEsh > T RFIIA L AT ST
HERE & & 0T o TR B
FHEEE RN THIRITBS
MBEORA) R - HIE
FHREAEER > HENEHE 2
R A 7 S0 A M 2 i A4 O 7 )
AT MR E o AEEAE S TR
()0 B B AT AR 1 K0 B3 B
B REREEHER /AT A
A TR B G U B R ] 2 4R i
BBLE -
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

€.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and the flexibility through the use of borrowings. The
directors of the Company closely monitor the liquidity position
and expect to have adequate sources of funding to finance the

Group’s projects and operations.

The following table details the Group’s expected remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the discounted
amount is derived from interest rates existing at the end of the

reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
(inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net
basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as
illustrated by the yield curves existing at the end of the reporting
period. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial
instruments is prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management considers that the contractual maturities are essential

for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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41. ZWITHR @) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continucd)
e. VREIHE KR4 e.  Liquidity risk (Continued)

RZ%-2
+2A
iy =

ik S AMiBIBE

Weighted Carrying AR

average  amountac  0EG0H  GIZEIS0H 181365 1524 1535 34 Total

interest December 31, 0to 60 61to180 181 to365 lto2 2t03 Over undiscounted

rate 2012 days days days years years Jyears  cash flows

ARKTE  AEHTTE  ARKTE  ARETZ  ARETE  ARKTTE  ARETZ  ARKTE
RMB'000  RMB'OO) ~ RMB'000  RMB'OJ) ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

FhEEMIE  Non-derivative

financial liabilities
NP Non-interest bearing — 7580012 3213 3409116 3828783 - - — 7580012
THIR Fixed interest rate instruments T42% 13,153,540 211,624 673,914 930,734 2,473,579 2732966 9,455,561 16,478,378
BEIR Variable interest

rate instruments 6.60% 19,683,226 666,969 1,253,950 3201312 10942,721 4,479,947 1,579,716 22,124,615
HEBERAY Financial guarantee contract — — 8526317 — — — — — 8526317

40,416,778 9,747,023 5,336,980 7,960,829 13,416,300 7212913 11,035,277 54,709,322
fitk TJ — FH4 H Derivative-net settlement
fEgmTH Derivative financial instruments 114,152 1,331 8,151 11,895 33,728 64,942 — 120,047

40530930 9748354 534531 7972724 13450028 7277855 11035277 54,829,369

S

E+2A

EFy  =t-H
f% WEREE AMBBE
Weighted Carrying i
aveage  amountac  0E60H  61Z180H 181%365H 1528 2535 B35 Total
interest  December 31, 0t0 60 6110180 1810365 1to2 2t03 Over  undiscounted
rate 2011 days days days years years 3 years cash flows

ANRBTE ARETZ ARKTT AEKFT ARETT ARETT ARKTZ ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMBO0O  RMB'000  RMBOO)  RMB'000  RMB'OJ)  RMB'000

) Non-incerest bearing — 6551198 302348 2258729 3678451 311,670 - — 655,198
THIR Fixed interest rate instruments 8.40% 8,506,226 174,484 213,788 1,229,013 1,133,626 1,449,473 6,836,603 11,036,987
BEIA Variable interest

rate instruments 6.17% 15,460,499 84,305 305,085 3,092,995 6,478,709 5,388,985 2,176,674 17,526,753
HHERAY Financial guarantee contract - — 179814 - - - - — 717814

30,517,923 8,316,951 2,777,602 8000459 7,924,005 6,838,458 9,013,277 42,870,752
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FEFMERMARZFETAS
A D P S Y AR 64
A2 0 RSt B T =

At A B B R & # 2 B A
PRI 5T R8> AEBRIEL
PR B 2 AR (R IN B 29 o
FE IR AL ERA
AR % % PR AR A T RE S 208 1 A°F 5K
TH o SR WA AR5 O AR
PR AR T REVE T k52 > 4R i
R AT RETE AR IR 52 5 O B
TEAfE R B i S 2 (5 R
) 7T REAE -
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

€.

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest

rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.

4F #t Annual Report 2012




o B U 25 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

WE-Z—THEFHAZ—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

41. W TR
f.  ATE
T e T R A T AR B
DEEN

o WA HERR B IER G A
O FE Ty R A T A
HEMBERE - "
Ml % A AR A i 35 i B R
Brbs e X o B FEA TR
1 R A R e 1R

o HiteMEEKERMAMR
(AEFEAT LS TE) A
4 0 W R RSN T
BB ERENEE &

o MAETEMAFHEURMER
B0 W AT B R R - JE
AT AR TR 2 R LA
AL i i A AT R BB

ERBEDIEE

B 2 LA B 5 28 J 29 4 B2 HO REA
08 FAH 0 8 2 I B S SRR AT A
St TH AR 114,152,000 76 (=
T——1F ) RAFEFR
B o BRI 55 6 W IR DL R
A ARG A B M 2 4 P 7 4
Tl 2 55 1 R TR BRG0P (B AR

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

the fair value of financial guarantee contracts on initial
recognition is determined based on the present value
of expected payments when default, where the main
assumptions are the probability of default by the specified
counterparty extrapolated from market-based credit

information and the amount of loss, given the default;

the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative financial instruments) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based

on discounted cash flow analysis; and

the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated
using quoted prices. When such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for

non-optional derivatives.

Except for the bond and senior notes with fair value disclosed

in notes 28 and 29 respectively and the derivative financial
instruments of RMB114,152,000 (2011: nil), the directors of the

Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and

financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

statement of financial positions approximate their respective fair

values at the end of the reporting period.
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T B B MR D AR T R 4 F
AR &
o€ BEM LR A SR TR A
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F) A h TE SR AR AT E T
B WHAB AR R - B
NS n IR R (I =S
1Y) ¥ i K 2 (L ) A DA S ) HAth
BORG » Aa S EHE (RIERR ) 5K
4% (R 1 B ) -

AR BE BB A R — AR B )
Z [H] 3 S

42. Bk MR PR

AR —ZE—HZFH s AEEE
T {EL 1] 2> AR 5 4T 41T B 500,000,000 3 76
(%) N R % 3,139,800,000 7T ) 974 45 (R 48
JorE BB > [ AERIR G 6.75% » HE
BESS EFE=F—AZ+0A
AR IE I -

41.

42.

RE-F-HFEFZHA=ZT—HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f. Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position

The derivative financial instruments designated as hedging
instruments of RMB114,152,000 (2011: nil) are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, which are grouped
into Level 2 measurement. Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the current and

prior years.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On January 29, 2013, the Group issued guaranteed senior fixed rate notes
to the public at par with aggregate nominal value of US$500,000,000
(approximately RMB3,139,800,000) which carry fixed interest of 6.75%
per annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully
repayable by January 29, 2023.
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43. A v) B g R 43. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(@) AAFHMBRANZBEE (a) Financial information of the financial position of the
i Company:

“FE Ek

2012 2011
ARBFT  ARMBTT
RMB’000 RMB 000

FEwi o & A NON-CURRENT ASSETS
&I A F Investments in subsidiaries 17,296,903 15,169,365
WG CURRENT ASSETS
JRE NS AR AR B At RE QR 2K JE ~ 4545 Accounts and other receivables, deposits
J AT A and prepayments 3,974 1,114
SRATHE R B4 Bank balances and cash 3,364,053 566,335
3,368,027 567,449
M UNER CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEATHRSR ~ B %4 RERTBISC  Accounts payable, deposits received and
accrued charges 6,895 4,417
JREASk Fff JB8 /2 ) 2K TE Amounts due to subsidiaries 3,398 3,455
SRAT A ——4FNEI®]  Bank and other borrowings - due within one year 1,109,074 416,088
1,119,367 423,960
TR NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,248,660 143,489
B IR A TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 19,545,563 15,312,854
JBeA K fits A CAPITAL AND RESERVES
A (52 BBt 5 31) Share capital (see note 31) 475,802 453 415
ik Reserves 8,213,812 7,439,238
BB TOTAL EQUITY 8,689,614 7,892,653
Fewm £ 65 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SRAT R HAbME S — —F&FIW  Bank and other borrowings - due after one year 3,488,817 2,679,728
B Senior notes 7,252,980 4,740,473
A aEm TR Derivative financial instruments 114,152 —

10,855,949 7,420,201

19,545,563 15,312,854
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. ARAF B ER ) 43. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(b) AR (b) Movement of reserves of the Company:

RS TEERG
BfaE BB Share Capital ¥kt ZirBH

Share Capital option contribution ~ Hedging Accumulated it
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total

ARKTE AREFE ARKTZ ARWTE ARKTT ARKTL ARKTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB 000

e
—H—=H At January 1, 2011 6,432,904 2,523,930 55,019 153,687 - (510,725) 8,694,815
Gn) Loss and total comprehensive
AR A% expense for the year — — - - —  (866,229)  (860,229)
AR SEHEL  Recognition of equity-settled
Tl BRI MTSE share-based payments — - 142,344 BA37 - - 165,781
HERBMRNEE  Dividend recognised
as distribution (515,509) — — — — — (515,509)
Tr{EEBERER TR Tssue of shares on exercise of
share options 562 — (186) — — - 376
e
TZH=1—H  AcDecember 31,2011 5,917,961 2,523,930 197,177 177,124 — (1376954 7,439,238
EWER Loss for the year — — — — —  (870,686)  (870,680)
ERIATEEL  Ocher comprehensive expense
for the year — — — — (114152 — (114,152

EREHFLEE  Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (114,152)  (870,686)  (984,838)

ERMERLEE R Recognition of equity-settled

ity BIEREMIfE  share-based payments = — 13315 7.8%4 = — 1349
HERBMROAE  Dividend recognised
as distribution (902,980) - - — — —  (902,980)
TR R IT IR0 Tssue of shares on exercise
of share options 53,430 — (16,156) — — — 37,274
B Issue of new shates 2,505,677 — — — — — 2505677
WAL Transaction cost attributable
YOS to issue of shares (11,708) - — - - — (11,708)
R-F-_F
TZH=1—H  AtDecember 31,2012 7,562,380 2,523,930 304,336 184,958 (114,152)  (2,247,640) ~ 8,213,812
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43, ARB A WBER @ 43. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(c) G EA T (c) Investments in subsidiaries

e
2012 2011
ABHFT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BT > A Unlisted shares, at cost 2,875,598 2,875,598
P 1 B J 2 R 3 Deemed capital contribution to subsidiaries 14,421,305 12,293,767

17,296,903 15,169,365

(d)  FEAT B 2 W]k (d) Amounts due to subsidiaries
B AT A 2 ) R A~ AR The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
B EOR 2 - are repayable on demand.
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44. WSR2 v ~ 3 I
B8 2 v I

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES

RoB— R —— A

St—H > AAAEERBAT - R

P B T A AR 0 T

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, jointly controlled

entities and associates at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

il BRI RAR
JRLH A5 T M A TR/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully R
W4 incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of EEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
ZF-T “T——f
2012 2011
iy gl
Subsidiary
Al s B 5 A A A (B 3k a) i 93.5% 935%  rMERARE I B E S
Beijing Dezhuo Trade Company PRC 20,000,000 G PRC Trading of construction
Limited (note a) BUE A AR materials
20,000,000 7¢
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
s HE R B A PR 7 (fEzE D) HR 91.3% 91.3%  sEMEAARM FH B
Beijing Huicheng Investment PRC 10,000,000 75 PRC Properties development
Limited (note b) BUE A AR
10,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
b R R A R~ 7 () ilo 91.3% 913%  EMEAARE il Iz
Beijing Longhu Chengheng PRC 2,000,000 7C PRC House decoration
Decoration Company Limited (note a) BRI A N R
2,000,000 7C
Registered
RMB2,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB2,000,000
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4. WBAW >~ XFEMHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

Bk 48 2 ) Wk () JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
AL/ LT RAR
RRLE G5 T A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
e
2012 2011
W2 (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
Je R B A RA R (M5 b) il 89.9% 89.9%  EfftEA ANRK Gl W TR B AR A A R
Beijing Longhu Properties PRC 1,000,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) BRI AR and provision of
1,000,000,000 JG consultancy service
Registered

RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

ACCREMSE RS A A 7 (7T a) HE 90.0% 90.0%  sfftEAR AR HE /ES £
Beijing Longhu Property Service PRC 5,000,000 TG PRC Properties management
Company Limited (note a) e IN
5,000,000 TG
Registered
RMBS$,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBS$,000,000

A B B A A A (HRED) il 91.3% 91.3%  sEftEAR AR i ES i
Beijing Longhu Qinghua PRC 500,000,000 G PRC Properties development
Property Company Limited (note b) G e INH
500,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB500,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB500,000,000

A xREm R B A A A (Hika) HE 91.3% 913%  MERARE Gil=! LES I
Beijing Longhu Shidai Properties PRC 1,400,000,000 7C PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) BUE A AR
1,400,000,000 JG
Registered
RMB1,400,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,400,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—HEF A= HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2012

4. WBAW > LFEWHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl M ERS ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
kB R R
L H A5 T M A P TR/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully EHE
AGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TFE ZR—F
2012 2011
W~ (42
Subsidiary (Continued)
TR EEMRAT BEA R A (HiLa) el 91.3% 913%  sEftEAR AR il LES i3
Beijing Longhu Tianxing Properties PRC 600,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) BRI AR
600,000,000 7
Registered
RMBG600,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBG600,000,000
AL RE P B A A (ML a) il 91.3% 91.3% st EAR AR i E 3195
Beijing Longhu Zhongbai PRC 1,500,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Properties Company Limited (note a) e IN
1,500,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB1,500,000,000
Paid up capital

RMB1,500,000,000

A R E A RA R (H7Ea) I 91.3% 913% il EAARY L VES YT il
Beijing Mengke Propemes Co., Ltd. (notea) ~ PRC 830,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
G e INM and provision of
830,000,000 JC consultancy service
Registered
RMB830,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB830,000,000

A s B B A A A (Hata) i 91.3% 913%  AMERARE I VES I
Beijing Tongrui Wanhua Real Estate PRC 2,800,000,000 G PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) BUE A N R
2,800,000,000 7
Registered
RMB2,800,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB2,800,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ey ST

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44, WA - PR EM K 44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B8 A wl B RERE a0 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

AL/ LT RAR
RRLE G5 T A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TE R F
2012 2011

W2 (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)

At RE I BUE B A PR A (ML a) Sl 91.3% 91.3% st EAR AR el LES i
Beijing Xingshun Real Estate PRC 700,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) i YN
700,000,000 7
Registered
RMB700,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB700,000,000

A e B A WA A (H7Ea) Sl 91.3% 91.3% st EAR AR HE VES i
Beijing Xiongrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC 10,000,000 75 PRC Properties development
(note a) i e INEL
10,000,000 75
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

WMEEEEARAA (HiEa) il 93.5% 93.5%  aEMPEAR AR i ES i
Changzhou Jia'nan Properties PRC 720,000,000 G PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) BREARNRYE
720,000,000 7
Registered
RMB720,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB720,000,000

MBI 5 A A ] (HFREb) HE 96.8% 96.8%  sLftEA iz LES I
Changzhou Longfor Jiye Co., Ltd. (note b) PRC 124,690,000 % TG PRC Properties development
HRBA
124,690,000 %78
Registered
USD124,690,000
Paid up capital
USD124,690,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE=% RSt

For the year ended December 31, 2012

4. WBAW > LFEWHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
BB A A RN ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/ LT RARE
AL H G T e P JBeA/ A A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully EHE
AGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TFE ZR—F
2012 2011

W& 2w (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)

WMEEEERRAF (ko) il 100% 100% &R Lilc B9
Changzhou Jiabo Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note c) PRC 196,160,000 5 ¢ PRC Properties development
R A
196,160,000 £ TG
Registered
USD196,160,000
Paid up capital
USD196,160,000

G im B XA RAR (Hka) il 91.3% 913%  EftEA ARK il E 3195
Wuxi Jianan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note a) PRC 260,000,000 JG PRC Properties development
e IN
260,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB260,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB260,000,000

EGFEEBEARAA (Hita) il 91.3% 913% L&A AR Gilo] R 395
Wusxi Jiarui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note a) PRC 559,500,000 JC PRC Properties development
e IN
559,500,000 7C
Registered
RMB559,500,000
Paid up capital
RMB559,500,000

ST EFRARAF (Hita) i 91.3% 913%  AMERARE I VES I
Wuxi Jiateng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note a) PRC 720,000,000 TG PRC Properties development
R A R
720,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB720,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB720,000,000
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RE=B A F = A L

For the year ended December 31, 2012

4. WBAW > FEWHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

Wk 8 2 vl 9 ERS ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
AL/ BT RAR
L A5 B R A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
S e
2012 2011
W2 (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
A B G A R A Sl 91.3% 913%  sEftEAR AR el LES i
([ AR |) (Bfka) PRC 30,000,000 JG PRC Properties development
Chengdu Jiaxun Investment Company e YN
Limited (“Chengdu Jiaxun”) (note a) 30,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
FRARSRIE B 53 2 7 (Wi a) B 93.5% 93.5%  FEMEAARYE B EHE
Chengdu Jinteng Trade Company PRC 20,000,000 G PRC Trading of construction
Limited (note a) i e INEL materials
20,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
JRCHRE A 80 A R ] (WFRED) il 94.2% 94.29%  sEMEARANRHE il ES i
Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real PRC 100,000,000 7G PRC Properties development
Estate Company Limited (note b) G e INH
100,000,000 7¢
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
TS RE M A A 7] (3L a) il 91.04% 91.04%  sHEARARK Gil=! S gt
Chengdu Longhu Property PRC 5,000,000 7 PRC Properties management
Services Company Limited (note a) BUE A AR
5,000,000 7
Registered
RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—HEF A= HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WHE S~ J% I ¥ &
BB 2 A IR )

GRS

Name of company

W~ (42

Subsidiary (Continued)

FRARHE A B A WA 7 (HFRED)

Chengdu Longhu Tongjin Real Estate
Company Limited (note b)

FH P A R 7] (W)
Chengdu Xixi Real Estate Company

Limited (note a)

JRCHS PG R B3 A A (W RE o)
Chengdu Xixiang Real Estate

Company Limited (note a)

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/

L G T e P

Place of Equity interest

incorporation/ attributable to

establishment the Group
“F-TF R —F

2012 2011

B 93.5% 93.5%

PRC

HE 91.3% 91.3%

PRC

I 91.3% 91.3%

PRC

R R
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

REM A R
966,549,865 JG
e YN
966,549,865 JG
Registered
RMBI66,549,865
Paid up capital
RMBI66,549,865

AR B AR A R
335,660,000 7
e IN
335,660,000 7
Registered
RMB335,660,000
Paid up capital
RMB335,660,000

AL A AR
436,370,000 TG
e IN
436,370,000 TG
Registered
RMB436,370,000
Paid up capital
RMB436,370,000

EHE
Place of

operation

il
PRC

B
PRC

I
PRC

EX ]

Principal activities

B

Properties development

BRI

Properties development

B

Properties development
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ey ST

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44, WBAT - L PR B K 44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B8 A A WEER ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

AL/ LT RAR
RRLE G5 T A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TE R F
2012 2011

W2 (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)

AR AR R (Wika) I 93.5% 93.5%  sEMEAR AR i EE
Chengdu Yuanbo Gardening PRC 20,000,000 JG PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Co., Ltd (note a) i YN
20,000,000 7
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

JRCHRE I 80 A A 7 (WFRED) Sl 91.4% 914% &R AR HE VES i
Chengdu Longfor Jincheng Real Estate PRC 390,000,000 G PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note b) i e INEL
390,000,000 75
Registered
RMB390,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB390,000,000

FRARREMAIU I E A PR 7 (s b) B 92.8% 928% AR AR HE ES L
Chengdu Longfor Beicheng Co., Led. (note b) ~ PRC 1,970,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
e IN
1,970,000,000 JG
Registered
RMB1,970,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,970,000,000

JRCHREMA S A R 7] (WFaEa) HE 91.3% 913%  MERARE Gil=! LES I
Chengdu Longfor Jinhua Real Estate Co., Ltd.  PRC 650,000,000 TG PRC Properties development
(note a) F e YN
650,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB650,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB650,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE=% RSt

For the year ended December 31, 2012

4. WBAW > LFEWHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
BB A A RN ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/ LT RARE
L G T e P JBeA/ A A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully EHE
AGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TFE ZR—F
2012 2011

W& 2w (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)

BRI R BB IR R (D) B 91.3% 913%  EfEARARE il LES i3
Chongqing Beilonghu Property PRC 700,000,000 7 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) & N
700,000,000 JG
Registered
RMB700,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB700,000,000

HBHE LA A A (k) HE 91.3% 91.3% st EAR AR i VES i
Chongqing Henghong Investment Inc. PRC 10,000,000 G PRC Properties development
(note a) BUL A N
10,000,000 75
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

B A M E BB TR ] (WFREb) I 93.5% 935%  rEMEARARE i VES i
Chongging Juntion Real Estate PRC 778,000,000 TG PRC Properties development
Development Inc. (note b) G e INM
778,000,000 7
Registered
RMB778,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB778,000,000

BRI AR A RAE (Hika) P 91.3% 913%  AMERARE I VES I
Chongqing Longhu Chengheng PRC 1,000,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Real Estate Development Inc. (note a) BUE A N R
1,000,000,000 JG
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WBAW > LM M B 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B 48 2 ) 1A ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
AL/ LT RAR
L G5 T A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
e
2012 2011
W2 (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
R A AT IR A B (MR D) il 91.3% 91.3% kA AR el MERRRILE
Chongqing Longhu Development PRC 1,308,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) BRI AR and investment

1,308,000,000 7
Registered
RMB1,308,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,308,000,000

EEREMIE AR RARAR (k) hE 91.3% 91.3% st EAR AR HE VES i
Chongqing Longhu Hengshang PRC 30,000,000 G PRC Properties development
Real Estate Company Limited (note a) i e INEL
30,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000

EEREMACEREARAR (Fkb) e 95.6% 95.6%  sEfEAR AR i ES i
Chongqing Longhu Kaian Real Estate PRC 1,278,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Development Co., Ltd. (note b) G e INH
1,278,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB1,278,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,278,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—HEF A= HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WHE S~ J% I ¥ &

BB 2 A IR )

GRS

Name of company

g 2 5 (4)

Subsidiary (Continued)
BRI B RA WA A (HfREa)
Chongqing Longhu Properties

Company Limited (note a)

M B AR (W)
Chongging Longhu Xijie

Real Estate Company Limited (note a)

TR M AR A B R A A ) (f3Eb)
Chongging Longhu Yiheng Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (note b)

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/

L G T e P

Place of Equity interest

incorporation/ attributable to

establishment the Group
“F-TF R —F

2012 2011

Gl 91.3% 91.3%

PRC

i 91.3% 91.3%

PRC

I 95.6% 95.6%

PRC

R R
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

A EA AR
1,544,912,450 T
& INH
1,544,912,450 T
Registered
RMB1,544,912,450
Paid up capital
RMB1,544,912,450

HAUB-EINH:
624,000,000 JC
e IN
624,000,000 JC
Registered
RMB624,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB624,000,000

Al e YN
360,000,000 G
BRI N R
360,000,000 G
Registered
RMB360,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB360,000,000

EHE
Place of

operation

il
PRC

1
PRC

Gl
PRC

EX ]

Principal activities

LIESIIYEH
Properties development

and investment

Properties development

and investment

B

Properties development
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ey ST

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44, BB W) ~ It [l ¥ B S K&
B8 2w e )

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

GRS

Name of company

W& 2l ()

Subsidiary (Continued)

EEMEEARA R (D)

Chongqing Rongkai Industrial
Company Limited (note b)

HER A RN (H7Ea)
Chonggqing Tianzhuo Investment

Company Limited (note a)

EERMIREREARA A (WiEa)
Chonggqing Tianlang Agriculture

Development Company Limited (note a)

AL A
AL H
Place of

incorporation/

G5 T A P
Equity interest
attributable to

establishment the Group

BT ZR—F

2012 2011

Gl 93.5%
PRC

93.5%

i 93.5%
PRC

93.5%

1 93.5%
PRC

93.5%

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

BT RAR
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

M EA AR
698,000,000 JC
& N
698,000,000 JC
Registered
RMB(98,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB(98,000,000

AR A R
20,000,000 JC
e IN
20,000,000 JC
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

Galli e YN
10,000,000 7G
G e INH
10,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

B
Place of

operation

PRC

PRC

EX ]

Principal activities

Properties development

B

Properties development

Bt

Nursery of seeding tree



Ak o 2 A Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—HEF A= HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WHE S~ J% I ¥ &

BB 2 A IR )

GRS

Name of company

Wis & 2~ ) ()

Subsidiary (Continued)
BRI E IR A R A T (5ka)
Chongging Xinlonghu Properties

Services Company Limited (note a)

R A B R A IR ) (k)
Chongqing Longfor Dezhuo Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. (note ¢)

B E A 7 S 5 A B8 ) (3 )
Hangzhou Longhu Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. (note ¢)

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/

L G T e P

Place of Equity interest

incorporation/ attributable to

establishment the Group
“F-TF R —F

2012 2011

B 91.3% 91.3%

PRC

HE 100% 100%

PRC

i 100% 100%

PRC

R R
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

Ak EA AR
5,000,000 G
& N
5,000,000 G
Registered
RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

A
150,000,000 3 76
B IA
150,000,000 3 76
Registered
USD150,000,000
Paid up capital
USD150,000,000

Al
229,400,000 %76
B A
189,400,000 3 76
Registered
USD229,400,000
Paid up capital
USD189,400,000

EHE
Place of

operation

il
PRC

B
PRC

I
PRC

EX ]

Principal activities

LJE i

Properties management

BRI

Properties development

B

Properties development
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4. WBAW > FEWHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B85 2\ WA ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
AL/ LT RAR
L A5 B R A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
S e
2012 2011
W2 (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
BUM HERE 7 e P A PR A ] (it a) Sl 91.3% 913%  EfftEA ARK el MR
Hangzhou Longjia Real Estate Development ~ PRC 50,000,000 7G PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) i YN
50,000,000 7
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
e A A PR A (ML) Sl 93.5% 93.5%  EftEAANRKE il MR
Shanghai Hengchi Real Estate Company PRC 1,000,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Limited (note a) BRI AR
1,000,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital

RMB1,000,000,000

LR A A A (T a) B 91.3% 913% AR ARK HE ES E S
Shanghai Longhu Property Management PRC 5,000,000 TG PRC Properties management
Company Limited (note a) G e INH
5,000,000 TG
Registered
RMBS$,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBS$,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—HEF A= HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WHE S~ J% I ¥ &

BB 2 A IR )

GRS

Name of company

g 2 5 (4)

Subsidiary (Continued)

LI B R A WA A (HREa)
Shanghai Longhu Real Estate Co. Ltd.

(note a)

M E MR R A (HEa)
Shanghai Xinrun Garden Virescence

Company Limited (note a)

LR AT A WA A (k)
Shanghai Yujiu Industrial Company Limited

(note a)

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/

L G T e P

Place of Equity interest

incorporation/ attributable to

establishment the Group
“F-TF R —F

2012 2011

B 91.3% 91.3%

PRC

HE 93.5% 93.5%

PRC

I 93.5% 93.5%

PRC

R R
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

Ak EA AR
100,000,000 7C
& N
100,000,000 7C
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000

EAUB-EINHE:
12,000,000 75
e IN
12,000,000 75
Registered
RMB12,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB12,000,000

Al e YN
20,000,000 7G
G e INM
20,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

EHE
Place of

operation

il
PRC

B
PRC

I
PRC

EX ]

Principal activities

Properties development

CEE

Nursery of seeding tree

B E S
Trading of construction

materials
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

4. WBAW > FEWHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

Wk 8 2 vl 9 ERS ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
R AR AL/ LT RAR
RRLE G5 T A P JeA/ REMEEA
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TE R F
2012 2011
W& 2l ()
Subsidiary (Continued)
AR o A PR ] (BT ) il 91.3% 913%  EfftEA ARK Gl MR
Shanghai Hengshi Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note a) PRC 1,000,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
BRI AR

1,000,000,000 7
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

AR A PR ] (HERE D) HE 95.6% 95.6%  sEfftEAR AR HE VES i
Shanghai Hengyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note b) PRC 1,100,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
B AR AR
1,100,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB1,100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,100,000,000

LA A A RA A (HERED) il 45.7% 457%  pEftEAANRKE il MR
Shanghai Hengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note b) PRC 1,589,000,000 JG PRC Properties development
e IN
1,589,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB1,589,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,589,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE=% RSt

For the year ended December 31, 2012

4. WBAW > LFEWHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

1Bk 4% 2\ WA ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
R/ LT RARE
AL H G T e P JBeA/ A A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully EHE
AGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
S e
2012 2011
W& 2w (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
LR B A AT R B (KT b) el 93.5% 93.5%  EfftEAANRK Gl VIE S5
Shanghai Hengjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note b) PRC 4,300,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
& N
3,445,657,500 TG
Registered
RMBA4,300,000,000
Paid up capital

RMB3,445,657,500

B RE MR A IR AT (D) B 98.5% 98.5% skt EA B IE S
Shenyang Longhu Estate PRC 65,000,000 %75 PRC Properties development
Development Co., Ltd. (note b) B IA
65,000,000 %7
Registered
USD65,000,000
Paid up capital
USD65,000,000

P RE AT AL B A R A A (HEEb) I 96.2% 96.2%  FEfEA i VES i
Shenyang Longfor Xinbei Real Estate PRC 113,000,000 3 G PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note b) BEEA
113,000,000 %7
Registered
USD113,000,000
Paid up capital
USD113,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ey ST

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44, BB W) ~ It [l ¥ B S K&
B8 2w e )

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

GRS

Name of company

g 2 5 (4)

Subsidiary (Continued)
V10 A R D (W RE D)
Sichuan Longhu Real Estate

Development Company Limited (note b)

PIZREM SR B A A 7 (W7Ea)
Xi'an Longhu Jincheng

Company Limited (note a)

P REMISERH A A 7 (3T a)
Xi'an Longhu Property Service

Company Limited (note a)

AL A
AL H
Place of

incorporation/

G5 T A P
Equity interest
attributable to

establishment the Group

BT ZR—F

2012 2011

il 93.5%
PRC

93.5%

i 91.3%
PRC

91.3%

1 91.3%
PRC

91.3%

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

BT RAR
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

M EA AR
50,000,000 7G
& N
50,000,000 JG
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000

AR A R
430,000,000 JC
e IN
430,000,000 JC
Registered
RMB430,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB430,000,000

GalN-g N
3,000,000 TG
G e INH
3,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB3,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000

B
Place of

operation

il
PRC

e
PRC

Gl
PRC

EX ]

Principal activities

IESYE

Properties development

B

Properties development

PEE R

Properties management
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—HEF A= HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WHE S~ J% I ¥ &
BB 2 A IR )

GRS

Name of company

W& 2w (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)

% REM O A A 7 (7T a)

Xi'an Longhu Real Estate Inc. (note a)

PRI B A A 7 (H7Ea)
Xi'an Longhu Xingcheng Estate
Co. Ltd. (note a)

PSR A Al (Wi 3k a)
Xi'an Yeheng Industrial

Company Limited (note a)

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/

L G T e P

Place of Equity interest

incorporation/ attributable to

establishment the Group
“F-TF R —F

2012 2011

B 91.3% 91.3%

PRC

HE 91.3% 91.3%

PRC

I 93.5% 93.5%

PRC

R R
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

Ak EA AR
50,000,000 JG
& N
50,000,000 JG
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000

EAUB-EINHE:
499,610,000 G
e IN
499,610,000 G
Registered
RMB499,610,000
Paid up capital
RMB499,610,000

Al e YN
20,000,000 7G
G e INM
20,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

EHE
Place of

operation

il
PRC

B
PRC

I
PRC

EX ]

Principal activities

Properties development

BRI

Properties development

B E S
Trading of construction

materials
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE=B A F = A L

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WBAW > LM EM®E 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

Bk 48 2wl e ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
R AR AL/ LT RAR
RRLE G5 T A P JeA/ REMEEA
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
e
2012 2011
W& 2l ()
Subsidiary (Continued)
T HEMI T B PR W) (BT ) il 94.2% 94.2% &R AR Gl MR
Xi'an Longfor Runrong Real Estate PRC 615,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) i YN
615,000,000 TG
Registered
RMBG615,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBG615,000,000
SRR A WA A (W Rk ) I 91.3% 913%  FEMEAR AR | B
Wauxi Longhu Real Estate Inc. (note a) PRC 615,200,000 JC PRC Properties development
BRI AR
615,200,000 TG
Registered
RMBG615,200,000
Paid up capital

RMBG615,200,000

5 R A PR (EEb) B 95.2% 95.2%  EMEAARM HE ES L
Qingdao Longfor Real PRC 1,100,000,000 JC PRC Properties development
Estate Co. Led. (note b) e IN

1,100,000,000 7
Registered
RMB1,100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,100,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—HEF A= HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WHE S~ J% I ¥ &

BB 2 A IR )

GRS

Name of company

W& 2w (47)

Subsidiary (Continued)
RS EEARAR (Hikc)
Qingdao Longjia Real

Estate Co. Ltd. (note c)

BRI ESEA WA A (HRE )
Qingdao Longkai Real

Estate Co. Led. (note ¢)

WL A B A I A (W3 o)
Ningbo Longjia Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (note c)

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/

L G T e P

Place of Equity interest

incorporation/ attributable to

establishment the Group
e e S

2012 2011

el 100% 100%

PRC

HE 100% 100%

PRC

i 100% 100%

PRC

R R
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

A
90,000,000 £ 7T
SR A
90,000,000 £ 7T
Registered
USD90,000,000
Paid up capital
USD90,000,000

A
70,000,000 76
B IA
70,000,000 76
Registered
USD70,000,000
Paid up capital
USD70,000,000

AL A
99,800,000 %7
BRI
99,800,000 %7
Registered
USD99,800,000
Paid up capital
USD99,800,000

EHE
Place of

operation

il
PRC

B
PRC

I
PRC

EX ]

Principal activities

Properties development

BRI

Properties development

B

Properties development
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RE=B A F = A L

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WBAW > LM EM™® 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B 48 2 ) A ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
AL/ BT R AR
JL B A B 1 TR/ g A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully BB
WA 4T incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of R
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TF %4
2012 2011
Wi 2 5 ()
Subsidiary (Continued)
T & REWI B A RA R (i Rk a) 1 91.3% 91.3%  FEfFEARARKE el WEER
Yantai Longfor Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note a) PRC 600,000,000 7 PRC Properties development
BRI NRE
600,000,000 7
Registered
RMBG600,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBG600,000,000
K HE Y A 5 7 A PR W] (W) i 93.5% 93.5%  sEMFEARARKE ilo MR
Dalian Longfor Donggang Real Estate PRC 110,000,000 JG PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) Fg e YN
110,000,000 7G
Registered
RMB110,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB110,000,000
Jasmine Spread Investment Limited KA B 100% 100%  EERAS0000%T  Fis RE
([T BRBRA 2T HK Investment holding
HE) Authorised
The British USD50,000
Virgin Islands Paid up capital
(the “BVI") UsSD2

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WBAW > LB K  44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

1Bk 4% 2\ WA ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
R/ R R
L G T e P JBeA/ A A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully EHE
AGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TFE ZR—F
2012 2011
W& 2w (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
Join Dragon Limited AT RS 100% 1009  EERARS0,000 %L Ak RELR
BVI BREBA2ETT HK Investment holding
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
usD2
Longfor Investment Co. Led. (Fff7k £) SR RS 100% 100%  EERA1ET it BRELEMR
Longfor Investment Co. Led. (note f) BVI BRA 1 E T HK Investment holding
Authorised
USD1
Paid up capital
USD1
Silver Oak Enterprises Limited KRBT RS 100% 100%  HEERAS0,000%T  F RE LR
BVI BRRA 2% T HK Investment holding
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
usD2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ey ST

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. BB AT - P M EM K 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B8 A vl B RERS ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

AL/ LT RAR
RRLE G5 T A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
“F-TE R F
2012 2011

W2 (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)

HEERARAR Fits ([ 7)) 100% 100%  HEERA 10,000 Fil RELR
Fortune Glister Development Limited Hong Kong BRI T HK Investment holding
(“HK") Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

HRE A RAT Hi 91.3% 913%  HEBA Fi SRR
Joy Wealth Trading Limited HK 100,000,000 75 HK Investment holding
B A
69,687,000 7C
Authorised
HKD100,000,000
Paid up capital
HKD69,687,000

gz A R~ il 100% 100%  HERA00008T A e ceidle
Joyline Corporation Limited HK BRI 1T HK Investment holding
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—HEF A= HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2012

44.

kDS 2 )~ 36 I 8

BB 2 v IR )

GRS

Name of company

W~ (42

Subsidiary (Continued)

RBE R (PR ARAH

Juntion Development Hong Kong
(Holding) Limited

Longfor Company Limited

ERARA A

Treasure State Limited

kB
R H
Place of
incorporation/

establishment

Fifs
HK

i
HK

i
HK

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

A I A

Equity interest

attributable to

the Group
S e
2012 2011
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

R R
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

B E AR
2,000,000 7T
SR A
2,000,000 7T
Authorised
HKD2,000,000
Paid up capital
HKD2,000,000

HIERA
10,000 7C
BRI 1T
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

REAHBA 10,000 # 7T
BRI 1T
Registered
HKD10,000

Paid up capital
HKD1

EHE
Place of

operation

HK

i
HK

ik
HK

EX ]

Principal activities

R

Investment holding

B

Investment holding

Investment holding
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

44, BHEA W) ~ It [ P B e &
Bk 48 A ) Wk ()

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

AL/ LT RAR
RRLE G5 T A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
e
2012 2011
St ]
Jointly Controlled Entity
AR HESHT 3T IR 7 G 59.296# + 59294+ EMEAARE i IESYE
([ AR 1) (Mfkd) PRC 629,993,500 JC PRC Properties development
Chengdu Huixin Real Estate & N
Company Limited (‘Chengdu Huixin”) 629,993,500 J&
(note d) Registered
RMB629,993,500
Paid up capital
RMB629,993,500
BB R B A RA A il 47.7% #+ 47.7% 4+ GERPEAR AR il MR
([ R zrE D) (Mkd) PRC 382,890,100 7C PRC Properties development
Chengdu Jia'nan Real Estate e IN
Company Limited (“Chengdu Jia'nan”) 382,890,100 TG
(note d) Registered
RMB382,890,100
Paid up capital
RMB382,890,100
R I B A PR il 46.2%#+ 46.2%#+  sEMEA AR il MR
(T HCER S RE |) (FhE Q) PRC 653,275,800 TG PRC Properties development
Chengdu Jinghui Real Estate G e INH

Company Limited (“Chengdu Jinghui”)
(note d)

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]

653,275,800 7G
Registered
RMB653,275,800
Paid up capital
RMB653,275,800
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WHE S~ J% I ¥ &

BB 2 A IR )

GRS

Name of company

IR el T (42)
Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued)

FRCH A e B A R
(TR ) (B )

Chengdu Tuocheng Real Estate
Company Limited (“Chengdu Tuocheng”)
(note d)

BB AR
ARRA R (HFEd)
Longhu Land Limited (note d)

Northpole Intermediary Limited
(I"Northpole |)

Northpole Intermediary Limited
(“Northpole”)

R A AT
Top Grand International Enterprise

Limited

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R/

L G T e P

Place of Equity interest

incorporation/ attributable to

establishment the Group
“F-TF R —F

2012 2011

Gl 46.2%#+ 46.2%%+

PRC

HE 5094 50%#

PRC

L 44494 44494

Cayman

Islands

ik 50%# 50%#

HK

R R
TR/ A
Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

REM A R
633,495,100 JG
e YN
633,495,100 JG
Registered
RMB633,495,100
Paid up capital
RMB633,495,100

A
27,000,000 76
B IA
27,000,000 76
Registered
USD27,000,000
Paid up capital
USD27,000,000

REMHE A 200 370
BURRA 200 7T
Registered
UsD200

Paid up capital
UsD200

S A
10,000 #7C
BRRA
10,000 #7C
Registered
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD10,000

EHE
Place of

operation

il
PRC

B
PRC

P2 R
Cayman
Islands

HK

EX ]

Principal activities

Properties development

BRI

Properties development

Investment holding

Investment holding
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. WBAW > LM EM™® 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B 48 2 ) A ) JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
AL/ LT RAR
RRLE G5 T A P JBeA/ A
Place of Equity interest Issued and fully B
VAGEA incorporation/ attributable to paid share capital/ Place of 7
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital operation Principal activities
e
2012 2011
B A
Associate
S % BT (4635 il 20% 20%  FfEE Gl B2
HIRAT (Hike) PRC 1,250,000 7t PRC Production of air
Ar Ke Er (note e) SRR 100 F 70 conditioners
Registered
USD1,250,000
Paid up capital
USD100
BB (R B AR AT SR AT RS 474% 474%  HRERA B RE LR
Jiaxun Land (China) Company Limited BVI 50,000 7T HK Investment holding
(Formerly known as BUEIEA 100 0
Easeridge Investments Limited) Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
USD100

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

4. WBAW > LFEWHEME 44 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

BB 2 A IR )

BT -

@ kMR 2w B e A 2 [ A 4 R
JE A3 -

b) KA R A B L 2 A AR

© kM AR B B L 2 A A A
¥,

@ ZHEEREE AR PR B A
¥,

@  ZBEATE R BELZ 2ANE A

°

e

O %ML A R AR A R
AR T ELHARA  THA R 2 7] e A
RRIRIEREA

4 HAF AT A5 H AR A AL
BREET AN S AN AR A 3t I 2 )
B 25 W R AR BOR A
ERERHFEE -

+  REEE R EE A R 2 B
AR F T~ B R~ A S R B
B HE H77.84% ~ 4.74% ~ 4.50% % 32.05%
MRERR o T Northpole (748 [ 4% 7] #52 i B
) 23 B B R R g ~ BRI %
AR 5 A A BT 92.169% ~ 95.26%
95.419% J 67.95% WML o IEAIE 5%
Wik o F%5E A E) B R A BUR
ELMABEE—SRE - AEHER
W 2 ) R A [ o R A A
SE[RI P B 49.139% KA -

HERN > ERIURFEB AL
BRBUR E 2 A48 I 2 7] > 3t [ 1 )
LB g A R o SRR it A B
JB o> m) > 1] 2 o BT R M R
FLREBRILR -

MEHRBAAR -F—_F+A=+—
HB T EE &S - EEENCENRE
BEATIAA AW MR A R 4 2 A S AN
R #1,400,000,000 JLEZBRAL ©

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The subsidiary is a domestic wholly-owned enterprise established in the PRC.

(b) The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.

() The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
(d) The jointly controlled entity is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.
(e) The associate is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

(6)) The subsidiary is a wholly owned subsidiary and directly held by the Company. All

other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

# These companies are accounted for as jointly controlled entities as at respective
period end date as in accordance with the memorandum and articles of the
companies, major financial and operating policies of these companies require the

unanimous consent of all directors.

+ The interests in Chengdu Jia'nan, Chengdu Tuocheng, Chengdu Jinghui and
Chengdu Huixin directly held by Chengdu Jiaxun (a subsidiary of the Group) and
Northpole (a jointly controlled entity of the Group) are 7.84%, 4.74%, 4.50% and
32.05% and 92.16%, 95.26%, 95.41% and 67.95% respectively. Pursuant to the
relevant joint venture agreements, major financial and operating policies of these
companies require the unanimous consent of all joint venture partners. The Group
is effectively entitled to 49.13% of profit of these jointly controlled entities through

its subsidiary and jointly controlled entity.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at December 31,
2012, except for Chongqing Longhu Development which has issued
bonds with principal amount of RMB1,400 million, in which the Group

has no interest.
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Five Years Financial Summary

BETZH=Z1—HILEE

Year ended December 31,
R SR ZER-FE ZRRUE ZRER)\UE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
AR¥TFLE ANREETFT ARETFT ARETFLT ARETL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
e Revenue 27,892,830 24,092,893 15,093,122 11,373,962 4,475,199
o i v ) Profit before taxation 11,301,542 11,444,230 7,068,474 4,061,040 680,679
PRES N Income tax expense (4,436,068)  (4,523,942)  (2,051,101)  (1,568,581) (281,198)
A I Profit for the year 6,805,474 6,920,288 5,017,373 2,492,459 399,481
DL AL Attributable to:
E/ANCIESZ DN Owners of the Company 6,301,060 6,327,560 4,130,155 2,209,207 331,590
DB A £ Minority interests 564,414 592,728 887,218 283,252 67,891
A i ) Profit for the year 6,865,474 6,920,288 5,017,373 2,492,459 399,481
BET-H=+—HILEE
Year ended December 31,
R R4 ZEZ-FF ZFLNE ZFENE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ARWTFLE ARETFCT AREFT AREFEFL AREFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R A ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
W A Total assets 125,426,497 97,260,041 71,713,564 42,445,102 32,396,267
B EME Total liabilities (92,849,085) (73,165,371) (54,347,744) (29,206,540) (28,452,033)
32,577,412 24,094,670 17,365,820 13,238,562 3,944,234
E/NGIE DN Equity attributable to
JREAG E 22 owners of the Company 29,909,248 21,940,541 15,980,256 12,138,678 3,122,561
D B SR Minority interests 2,668,164 2,154,129 1,385,564 1,099,884 821,673
32,577,412 24,094,670 17,365,820 13,238,562 3,944,234

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE 1 Hi & A FR 2 #]







Longior Je i il 7=



	封面

	封面內頁

	目錄
	集團架構
	公司資料
	主要物業權益表
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員簡介
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況報表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底內頁

	封底


